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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Director(s)”) of Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NAEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Liang (Chairman)

(appointed as Chairman on 30 June 2021)
Mr. Wang Hongpeng (Managing Director)
Mr. Xiao Yong
Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu (Chairman)

(resigned on 30 June 2021)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chen Zheng (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin
Mr. Zheng Xiaodong
Mr. LiYao
(appointed on 29 March 2021)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Xu Liang (Chairman)
(appointed as Chairman on 30 June 2021)
Mr. Wang Hongpeng
Mr. Xiao Yong
Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu (Chairman)
(resigned on 30 June 2021)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin (Chairman)
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law
Mr. Zheng Xiaodong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Xu Liang (Chairman)
(appointed as Chairman on 30 June 2021)
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin
Mr. Zheng Xiaodong
Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu (Chairman)
(resigned on 30 June 2021)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEER

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Liang (Vice Chairman)
(appointed as Vice Chairman on 30 June 20217)
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin
Mr. Zheng Xiaodong
Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu (Vice Chairman)
(resigned on 30 June 2021)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Xu Liang

(appointed on 30 June 2021)
Mr. Shang Yuxiong (appointed on 26 March 2021)
Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu

(resigned on 30 June 2021)

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Xu Liang
Member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(appointed on 30 June 2021)

Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu
(resigned on 30 June 2021)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Shang Yuxiong
Member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and
Registered PIE Auditor

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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Conyers Corporate Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEEH

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Unit 1606, 16/F K. Wah Centre
191 Java Road

North Point

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
8271

WEBSITE

www.gdc-world.com

6 Annual Report 2021 53R

BEROBFETIRE

BEIZEBRAR
B

SRANER 1835
AL b4

AfRER

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HMREERBEIEERMH

55

it A

EEEE 19155
BEREDL 16421606 =

LGN
8271
#83t

www.gdc-world.com



Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited R ERE BRI ZE R AR 2 7

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES
ESKEHREEAEBZERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Liang, aged 56, is a senior accountant, graduated
from Fudan University and obtained a bachelor's degree in
statistics and a master’'s degree in business administration
from Tsinghua University. Mr. Xu has been the Chairman of
the board of Directors (the “Board”), the Chairman of each
of the executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the Vice Chairman of the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) of the Company between June
2017 and July 2018 and since June 2021, and an Executive
Director and a member of each of the Executive Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since June 2017. Mr. Xu joined
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (“Shougang Group”), the ultimate
holding company of Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited
("Shougang Hong Kong"”) in 1988 and held various senior
positions. He is the managing director of Shougang Hong
Kong, the chairman and an executive director of Capital
Industrial Financial Services Group Limited (formerly known
as “Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited”) (“Capital
Financial”) and an executive director of Shoucheng Holdings
Limited (“Shoucheng Holdings”). Both Capital Financial
and Shoucheng Holdings are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Shougang Group and Shougang Hong Kong are substantial
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong. Mr. Xu has extensive experience in
management.

Mr. Wang Hongpeng, aged 48, graduated from Nankai
University in Tianjin in 1996 majoring in business English
and obtained a degree of executive master of business
administration from Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance
of Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 2017. Mr. Wang was
appointed as an Executive Director, the Managing Director
and a member of the Executive Committee of the Company
in December 2019. He is currently an executive director
of Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd., which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Shougang Group. Shougang Group
is a substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong. Mr. Wang served
as the minister of Foreign Liaison Department of Well-off
Promotion Committee of State Commission for Economic
Restructuring in Beijing (It REIRGERFINEZES/NE
fE# Z& 8 &), a media supervisor of the Beijing branch of
Saatchi & Saatchi Great Wall Advertising Co., Ltd. (Xt &
WA ESEER AR RS AR]) and the managing director
of Ogilvy Century (Beijing) Advertising Co., Ltd. (B3Ett4
(=) EEHBR A, possessing extensive experience in
fields including business management, capital market, fund
management and cultural technology.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EENESREEAEZERE

Mr. Xiao Yong, aged 44, graduated from the College
of Economics of Hubei University with post-secondary
qualification in business administration in July 1999. Mr.
Xiao was appointed as an Executive Director and a member
of the Executive Committee of the Company in June 2019.
After completing the Three-dimensional (“3D") Video and
Animation Training Course jointly organized by Shenzhen
University and Institute of Digital Media Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited* GRERENHEERIFMECRI) BRA
A]) (“Shenzhen IDMT"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, in August 2001, he served as one of the
first group of character animators in Shenzhen IDMT. Since
then, he served various positions in animation production
department in Shenzhen IDMT and accumulated over 20
years of experience in related fields of animation industry.
Mr. Xiao serves as a director and the general manager of
Shenzhen IDMT since March 2013. He is also a standing
member of the Cartoon Artists Committee of the China
Television Artists Association.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chen Zheng, aged 62, is an engineer and senior
economist. He holds a bachelor’'s degree in chemical
engineering and a master’'s degree in business
administration. Mr. Chen was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
in February 2005. He was re-designated as the Deputy
Chairman of the Board and a Non-executive Director in
December 2018. He also serves as an executive director of
Greater China Financial Holdings Limited and an independent
non-executive director of Jiu Rong Holdings Limited, both
of which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Chen was the managing director of operations of Capital
Financial. He has extensive experience in investing business
and corporate management.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law, aged 70. Prof. Law was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in September 2008. He is also the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Prof. Law graduated from the
University of Texas at Austin with a doctor of philosophy
degree in mechanical/industrial engineering in 1976. He
joined The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986
and retired in August 2012. Before retirement, he was
a professor in the Department of Decision Sciences
and Managerial Economics. He was the associate dean
and subsequently the dean of the Faculty of Business
Administration of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
from 1993 until 2002. Prior to returning to Hong Kong, Prof.
Law was a director of Operations Research at the Cullen
College of Engineering and a director of Graduate Studies
in Industrial Engineering at the University of Houston and
was also involved with the U.S. Space Program in his career
with McDonnell Douglas and Ford Aerospace in the United
States. He acts as a consultant for various corporations
in Hong Kong and overseas. Prof. Law is active in public
services and served as a member of the Provisional
Regional Council of the Hong Kong SAR Government and
various other committees. He is active on the boards of
profit, non-profit and charitable organisations in Hong Kong
and overseas. From July 2003 to February 2006, Prof. Law
had also acted as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company. He currently serves as an independent non-
executive director of Tianjin Port Development Holdings
Limited, Binhai Investment Company Limited, Regal
Hotels International Holdings Limited, Tianjin Binhai Teda
Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited and Shougang Fushan
Resources Group Limited, all of which are companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of Beijing Capital International Airport
Company Limited in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EENESREEAEZERE

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin, aged 67 Mr. Lam was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in July
2015. He is also a member of each of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. In
May 2020, Mr. Lam was appointed as the Chairman of
the Audit Committee. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia and New Zealand
and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), and a honorary fellow of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Lam was an Adjunct Professor
in the School of Accounting and Finance of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University from September 2014 to August 2016,
and was a member of the Finance Committee of the Hong
Kong Management Association. Mr. Lam has extensive
experience in accounting, auditing and business consulting.
Mr. Lam was a member of the Listing Committee and the
Financial Reporting Advisory Panel of the Stock Exchange
from 1997 to 2003, a committee member of HKICPA from
1994 to 2009, and a partner with PricewaterhouseCoopers
Hong Kong from 1993 to 2013. Mr. Lam graduated from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in
June 1975. Mr. Lam currently serves as an independent non-
executive director of Shougang Century Holdings Limited
(formerly known as “Shougang Concord Century Holdings
Limited”), Shanghai Fudan-Zhangjiang Bio-Pharmaceutical
Company Limited, Spring Real Estate Investment Trust,
COSCO SHIPPING Ports Limited, Nine Dragons Paper
(Holdings) Limited, WWPKG Holdings Company Limited,
CITIC Telecom International Holdings Limited and Topsports
International Holdings Limited, all of which are companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of Vital Innovations Holdings Limited and
Bestway Global Holding Inc. in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

Mr. Zheng Xiaodong, aged 45, obtained a bachelor'’s
degree in international economics in July 1998 and
a master’'s degree in world economics in June 2006
from Fudan University. Mr. Zheng was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
June 2019. In May 2020, he was appointed as a member
of each of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. He serves as the president of
marketing and chief executive officer of Leo Digital Network
and the president of Shanghai MediaV Advertising Co.,
Ltd., in which he is responsible for operation and agency
businesses. Mr. Zheng served as a director and the deputy
general manager of Leo Group Co., Ltd., a company listed
on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002131), the
marketing manager of Great Wall Broadband Network and
the general manager of eastern China region and the vice
president of Allyes AdNetwork. He has extensive experience
in the internet industry and marketing field.

Mr. Li Yao, aged 40, obtained his bachelor’'s degree in
science and bachelor’s degree in economics from the
Peking University in 2003 and his master’s degree in human
geography from Peking University in 2006. Mr. Li was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in March 2021. He was the partner of Ski Resort
Business Unit of Vanke Group and the chairman of Songhua
Lake Resort. He is currently the partner of Hotel and Resort
Business Unit of Vanke Group and the vice-chairman of
Beijing Ski Association. Mr. Li has extensive experience in
the operation of professional culture complexes, stadium
with multimedia facilities and sports events as well as the
development of intellectual property of ski industry.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors, are also the senior management of the
Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHRES

We shall have a fresh start as we enter into another new
year. On behalf of the Board of Global Digital Creations
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | herewith report to all
shareholders, stakeholders and friends, who are mindful
of our growth, the business performance of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2021.

2021 was not only an extraordinary year, it was also a very
important year for the Group's development. Not only did
we overcome the impacts brought by the spread of the
COVID-19 epidemic (the "“Epidemic”), but we also alleviated
the impacts from the volatile domestic and foreign capital
markets and the impacts from the traditional film and
television industry caused by the Epidemic. The business
planning and restructuring under the new five-year plan
(2021-2025) have been successfully formulated, shifting the
focus towards the integration of culture and technology.
We created a digital and visual service ecosystem driven by
culture and technology, and we promoted the transformation
and upgrading of the traditional film and television
production business to an Intellectual Property (“IP")-based
high value-added visual industry, while expanding new
cultural space business at the same time to create a new
city icon.

12 Annual Report 2021 F£FE 3
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In 2021, the Group actively adapted to the new features,
new situations and new requirements brought by the 14th
Five-Year Plan period of Mainland China. According to the
actual situation of the market and the Company’s core
competitiveness, we adjusted some of our development
strategies and development plans, and mapped out a three-
stage strategic model of digital vision-virtual reality-digital IP
assets in response to the challenges of market uncertainty.
GDC leveraged a combination of technology strategy, high-
quality strategy, talent strategy and cultural strategy to
comprehensively plan and coordinate various business
models and to design new strategic path based on the
actual development of the Group. We took metaverse-related
industries such as virtual characters and virtual reality/
science fiction as the focus of our new business expansion,
with the mature animated film and television business and
cultural new space business as the industrial foundation, to
accelerate the shaping of our new development strengths.

We remained true to our original aspiration and made
animated movies that belongs to China. The Group’s original
animated ocean-themed IP “Journey to the Center of the
Deep Ocean”* ({(Hb0)%5C)), of our domestic blockbuster
series, stood out from numerous excellent children’s movies
in 2021, became number one at the box office for domestic
animated movie during the period of first of June 2021
and was highly recommended by China Central Television
("CCTV").

Positioning our businesses with the goal of "activating
digital economy with animation films and creating a new
icon for urban culture’ we successfully worked together with
Jiangxi Province to create the “Finless Porpoise”* ()
project and cooperated with Jiangsu Province to create
the “Maoshan”* (L)) project, and we narrated Chinese
stories with local IP and helped digitizing Chinese stories,
thus assisted the local government in creating a distinctive
city icon.

New cultural space segment underwent active and
continuous upgrade to construct an industrial ecosystem
involving animation, film and television, games, virtual
reality and others. With “urban living room"” as the
functional concept, we promoted animation education, film
and television production, virtual live broadcast and the
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITEHES

establishment of creative incubation hub. By establishing
the Group's West China headquarters in Chengdu City,
operating Chengdu’s Wuhou Sports Park* (REEERAE),
we embrace “Cultural IP + Technology + Sports” as our
core value, and creating an innovative ecological sports
park, target to redefine the city with culture. In addition,
negotiation regarding the Western Zhi Gu Global Digital
Base Project* (FHE[E AIREKENTE ) was also in progress,
with an aim to create and expand new experiences of
online-offline immersion and cultural-technology integration
for our customers.

Our digital virtual character business will be fully integrated
into the industry chain related to the Metaverse. The
Metaverse combined cutting-edge technologies from multi-
disciplinary. It is the next-generation Internet with virtual-
real symbiosis, and is the digital embodiment of the future
social economy and cultural civilization. The Group will be
seizing the development opportunities from the Metaverse
and the cutting-edge technology industries in the future,
and will leverage its first-mover advantage in the virtual
reality and the science fiction industries to target the
Metaverse and mapping its business layout, extending from
the production tools of digital virtual character to Virtual
Reality digital assets and to create an ecology of user
generated content. Our digital virtual character business
has reached an industry-leading level in the niche genres of
digital technology in terms of motion performance, mo-tion
capture, sound mimic and character appearance production.
In addition, the live broadcast and online KOL have formed
cooperation arrangement with the leading live broadcast
platform to create a diversified business model.

IP authorization business has been fully expanded as well as
created touring product lines and launched products in the
forms of art display, entertainment, interactive experience,
books, popular science education, apparel and food. Fashion
jewelry and accessories are designed and developed in
Chinese style to cater for young consumers. The ocean-
themed IP has obtained cooperation from toy dealers to
develop new smart toy products.
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Our IP productions have won multiple awards, including: our
animated film “Journey to the Center of the Deep Ocean”*
(HoMEEEE ) was awarded the “Excellent Animation” (5%
gERH A and “Excellent Authorized Animation Brand”
(BFH 8 RIEHEHE) in the “Dynamic Golden Sheep” (B4
=), as well as nominated for Best Animated Feature Film (&
EFHE R KE) in the Xinguang Award* (#1)¢5%), and was
chosen as a special selection in the Animated categories
by the selection committee in the 14th Shenzhen Youth
Film Festival* (RIIFEFEE); our “Soldier Shunliu: The
Hero Battle”* (X XIBE : EEF)) was awarded the
9th “Shenzhen Copyright Golden Award”; r “Shunliu's
Talk on Party History”* (JEBEZ L)), a programme host
by digital virtual characters, was selected into the annual
recommendation list of popular science videos by “Dian Zan
e 2021 China Science Communication”* (H% e 2021%1%
) and was well received and reported in-depth by major
platforms.

In 2022, we will continue to be proactively chasing our
dreams and we are determined to realize our goals, and
we will adopt “present Chinese legends with digital vision
technology” as our mission and responsibility while focusing
on developing our digital cultural content. In addition to
enhancing our effort in developing traditional industries, we
will also support emerging industries, work together with
members of the public to innovate and seek development
opportunities, and achieve success in the future.

On behalf of the Board of the Group, | would like to express
my deepest gratitude and appreciation to all our staff for
their hard work and dedication, and | would also like to
extend our sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business
partners and clients for their utmost support to the Group.
Last but not least, | would like to show my highest respect
and my most sincere blessings to all the leaders and friends
who care about and support the development of the Group.

Xu Liang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022

*For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E w4l e

2

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

The key financial indicators are analysed as below:

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

FEUBRERER
TEMBEREEZOT

FECEER

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000  Variance(%)
FET FiET ZE) (%)
Revenue Wz 84,689 78,635 8
Gross profit margin E R 53% 46% 7
Profit attributable to owners KRAFHFE A &
of the Company 15,963 8,107 97
Earnings per share (HK cents)  &&R&F) GEL) 1.06 0.54 96
CONSOLIDATED me
As at 31 December
M®12H831H
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000 Variance(%)
FET FiET ZE) (%)
Total assets BEE 690,083 650,302 6
Total equity attributable to RARFBARGHERRTE
owners of the Company 506,496 467168 8
Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEHEY 318,845 306,850 4
Current ratio (times) TEH R (F) 1.28 1.23 4
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year"),
revenue from the continuing operations for the Year
amounted to HK$84,689,000, representing an increase of
HK$6,054,000 as compared with HK$78,635,000 for the
corresponding period of 2020. Revenue of the new cultural
space division increased by HK$5,118,000 as compared to
the corresponding period of last year, and revenue of the
Computer Graphic (“"CG") creation and production division
increased by HK$936,000 as compared to the corresponding
period of last year.

EEEWM D

Bt % (51 B8

Wz
HE2021F12A31BEFE(AFEE]) 2
REFBEEER 2 Wk 584,689,000 7T
H22020 4 [A #78,635,00078 7T tt & - & N
6,054,000 7T ° X AL %7 2= [ 5 2B Uk %5 (A b 32
hn5,118,000/8 L - MEME G ([EHES )
BIVE K BUE 5 EF Uk 2 [ L 38 5N 936,000 78 7T °

REVENUE BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS FOR 2021

202N FRFBELEEBREIEXZHK I D 2 W

CG creation and
production

B EI&REIE
&%{’E

76% New Cultural Space
ALz

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS FOR 2021

2021 FHFEREXEKIRWEE 5 2 W R

Mainland China
R A

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales from the continuing operations for the Year
amounted to HK$40,125,000, representing a decrease of
HK$2,708,000 as compared with HK$42,833,000 for the
corresponding period of 2020, which was mainly attributable
to the decrease in the outsourcing production cost for the
CG production.

1% Other
Efb

SHEMA
AEERABELEEBZIHEREKR
40,125,000/ 7T + #2020 4 [7] #3 42,833,000
TR 22,708,000 7T - EERERKBE BRI
BEUERAR PR -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEmILE D

Other Income

Other income from the continuing operations for the Year
amounted to HK$20,850,000 (2020: HK$13,061,000) was
mainly from government grants of HK$12,400,000 and
interest income HK$8,225,000.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses from the continuing
operations for the Year amounted to HK$11,452,000,
representing an increase of HK$7,738,000 as compared
with HK$3,714,000 for the corresponding period of 2020,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in marketing
expenses arising from distribution of an animated film.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses from the continuing operations
for the Year amounted to HK$37407000, representing an
increase of HK$1,648,000 as compared with HK$35,759,000
for the corresponding period of 2020, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in staff costs.

Provision for Impairment of Financial Assets and
Contract Assets

Provision for impairment of financial assets and contract
assets from the continuing operations for the Year amounted
to HK$242,000 (2020: HK$586,000), which was the
provision for impairment of amount due from an associate.

Other Gains, Net

Other net gains from the continuing operations for the Year
amounted to HK$6,032,000 (2020: HK$1,757,000), which
was mainly from the increase of HK$6,038,000 in change in
fair value of investment property.

Finance Cost

Finance cost from continuing operations for the Year
amounted to HK$14,000 (2020: HK$65,000). The Group
does not have any loans, and the finance cost for the
Year represented the interest expense on lease liabilities
recognised in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 16.

Profit from Continuing Operations

Based on the above factors, profit from the continuing
operations for the Year amounted to HK$15,963,000,
representing an increase of HK$7856,000 as compared
with the profit of HK$8,107,000 the corresponding period of
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Loss from Discontinued Operation

Loss from discontinued operation for the Year amounted to
HK$15,140,000. Such loss increased by HK$14,105,000 as
compared with HK$1,035,000 for the corresponding period
of 2020, mainly due to: 1) the adjustment in provision for
rental and settlement payables of HK$13,931,000 (equivalent
to RMB12,385,000) generated in relation to the litigations
of the cultural park in 2020, while there was no similar
adjustment for the Year; and 2) the payment of employee
severance compensation for the Year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of HK$318,845,000 (2020: HK$306,850,000),
which were mainly denominated in Renminbi, United States
dollars and Hong Kong dollars, and restricted bank deposits
amounted to HK$46,603,000 (2020: HK$36,462,000).

As at at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had
no borrowings or overdrafts. The Group's current ratio
was 1.28 (2020: 1.23), which was calculated based on
current assets of HK$383,056,000 and current liabilities of
HK$299,089,000.

The Group adheres to the principle of prudent financial
management and investment and strives to maintain healthy
financial position.

Capital Structure

Equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to HK$506,496,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$467,168,000). The increase was mainly due to increase
in special reserve of HK$19,813,000 from the disposal
of 10% equity interest in a subsidiary in Mainland China
(for the purpose of this annual report “Mainland China”
refers to the mainland of the People’'s Republic of China
(the "PRC") and does not include Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan) for the Year, the profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$5,668,000 and the exchange differences
of HK$14,039,000 on translation of financial statements
attributable to owners of the Company from functional
currency to presentation currency.

Material Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant

Investment
The Group did not have any material acquisitions, disposals

and significant investment during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEmILE D

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2021, there were no charges on any of
the Group's assets for loans and bank facilities.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Currently, the Group earns revenue mainly in Renminbi,
and incurs costs mainly in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars. The Directors believe that the
Group's operational cash flow and liquidity do not have
significant foreign exchange exposure, and thus has not
implemented any foreign currency hedging policy at the
moment. However, if necessary, the Group will consider
using forward exchange contracts to hedge against foreign
currency exposure. The closing Renminbi exchange rate
as at 31 December 2021 was approximately 1.3% and
3.0% higher than average Renminbi exchange rate and the
exchange rate as at the end of 2020, respectively, and such
exchange differences led to an additional exchange gain of
approximately HK$9.91 million being recognised in the other
comprehensive income upon translation of its net assets in
the financial statements of operations in Mainland China of
the Group for the Year. The above exchange rate fluctuations
did not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
position.

Contingent Liabilities

Save for note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2021.

Events Occurring after the Reporting Period

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting
period are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Employees

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 194 (2020:
221) full time employees (other than employees of the
Group’s associates). The Group remunerates its employees
mainly with reference to the prevailing market practice,
individual performance and experience. Other benefits, such
as medical coverage, insurance plan, mandatory provident
fund, discretionary bonus and employee share option
scheme are also available to the employees of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the
Company nor its subsidiaries had paid or committed to pay
any amount as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company and/or its subsidiaries to any individual.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

CG Creation and Production

The revenue of the CG creation and production division
of the Group was mainly attributable to the incomes from
production services of animated films, television series and
digital virtual characters, box office receipts of original and
co-produced animated films, authorizing the copyrights of
animated films and television series as well as authorizing
businesses derived from the IP

The production projects mainly came from the PRC. Our
CG creation and production division undertook a series of
projects produced with cutting-edge digital virtual character
technology, including the 3D animation production of a
digital virtual character, Ai Ling* (X ), digital scenes
of reality Internet, the digital city of Metaverse, digital
virtual staff, animated virtual idols, live streaming for virtual
marketing conducted by virtual spokesperson, as well as the
digital anchor of “Shunliu’s Talk on Party History”* (JIE&3

).

EEE WA DA

EBEOE

Wang Hongpeng £ Z 5
Executive Director and

the Managing Director
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WA D AT

An ocean-themed original animated film, “Journey to the
Center of the Deep Ocean"* ({(M/0ri#%5C)), produced with
new characters and stories was officially released during
the Dragon Boat Festival on 12 June. Notwithstanding
that the box office receipts of the film were affected by
the prevention and control measures against COVID-19
in Guangdong Province, it still ranked the first in the
domestic animated film box office on the day of screening
on 1 June, and was recommended by CCTV and rewarded
positive reviews. Another ocean-themed original animated
film, “Around the World in 80 Days"* ((ZRIFHIERB0K)), is
currently in the early stage of story writing and art design.

REABEER G OEL)  RAZHAEME
ZRNEREFEBER - 106 A 12 AR FEfE
M BXEREHNTREHENZE TR
F-EBNE6A1AHRENESHESHES
TEEUE  WETRAERAEBMTF - 5
—HREPWRAIBEET GREHIKEOK) -
HEABFSTE  BRIEETHHMNERS
FISEMERET ©

The Yangtze Riverthemed animated film “Finless Porpoise:
Dance in the Wind"* (L - EF%E)) co-producing with
Jiangxi Cultural Performance Group* (L& X EEE) and
Jiangxi Hukou Cultural Tourism Group* (HOXRER) is
currently in production and distribution by the Group with
strenuous efforts.

The authorization of the business derived from the IP of
animation was rolled out during the year, creating a product
line for touring exhibitions and launching products such
as food for mothers and babies, apparel, entertainment,
interactive experience, books and popular science education,
which landed in more than ten first-tier cities. Currently,
it focuses on expanding the authorization of apparel and
food, and has developed fashion jewelry in Chinese style
for young consumers. It has also created a series of tiger
mascots in connection with the Year of the Tiger, and
cooperated with toy manufacturers and video platforms to
develop ocean-themed smart toys.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

New Cultural Space

The revenue of the new cultural space division of the Group
was mainly generated from rental and management fee
income related to properties in various locations.

GDC Building in Shenzhen continued to attract high-
quality animated film and television, high technology and
cultural and creative enterprises, which led to the use
of digital vision as core and the extension to industries
such as networks, games, virtual interactions and artificial
intelligence. With the utilization of its self-developed digital
technology cloud platform for cloud data and information
processing to provide professional operation management
services for the parks, it has continued to enhance the
digital technology management system as well as to
improve ancillary facilities and services. Foshan Digital
Animation Industry Base* (ff [ £t 15 8) )2 &= % & #b) has
strived to be turned into Digital Animation Incubation Base*
(BFE)EM{LEH) and a base of Live Streaming for Virtual
Marketing* ( #t A B & & & H), and it is making good
progress.

The preparation for the Chengdu Sports Park project* (AX#B
BEEEIMEE) is in full swing. The project is an innovative
ecological sports park project operated by GDC with the
philosophy of “Cultural IP + Technology + Sports’ redefining
the city with culture and creating city landmark with
technology. In addition, the Group has several projects under
business negotiation in Chengdu. The sci-fi themed digital
park project of Shougang Innovative Center* (& 8l &l #7 b
L)) is also being actively conceived and planned, in order
to create a new experience space for immersive online and
offline experiences as well as integration between culture
and technology.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WIS

Research and Development

The Group has first-mover advantage in the construction
of Metaverse application technology, as well as possesses
application and business experience in the areas of digital
virtual simulation and full-real digital scenario, with which
it has swiftly mapped its business layout in the digital
virtual character industry. The Group has completed the
development of computer animated character and artificial
intelligence engine driver interface, as well as optimized
the production process and technics. The Group has also
continued to enhance the improvement and application of
new technologies such as unreal game engine and real-
time rendering for lightings, and has conducted continuous
product marketization for its own IP — CG Aline cloud
platform, a document automated management system.

In particular, as to digital virtual character technology,
software and hardware solutions of semi-automatic
control integrated system, highly accurate full-body
mo-tion capture, and artificial intelligence control have been
designed to be applied to made-to-orders for digital staff,
virtual spokespersons and digital scene customization. The
related technology has received affirmative comments in
the industry. Meanwhile, it plans to develop a digital virtual
character IP asset matrix and a digital virtual character
software-as-a-service (“SaaS"”) platform available for free
choice and customization to provide technical integration
solutions in the areas such as live streaming for virtual
marketing, financial services and local digital spokespersons.
As to digital virtual characters and immersive technology in
extended reality (“XR"), the Group is striving for in-depth
cooperation with local and overseas leading companies in
the fields of computing chips, wearable equipment, artificial
intelligence and voice recognition technology to promote
commercial applications.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Government Awards

As to government awards, it has been funded by the
governments at all levels in Shenzhen and Nanshan District
for various fields such as original animation, original research
and development, corporate research and development
investment, high-tech enterprise cultivation, and intellectual
property rights. Besides, it was rewarded the honorary titles
of Municipal Child-friendly Practice Base in Shenzhen* (%
JITmHRRERGFEEEM), Green Channel Enterprise in
Nanshan District, Shenzhen* ((RYIT @ ILEZEBEGE),
and Child-friendly Practice Base in Nanshan District* (FgLL
@R EREREEM).

As to works awards, it was rewarded various honors,
including Annual Science Film and Television Nominee
Award by China Association for Science and Technology* (#
Bl RHp FE R E R IR 1), Excellence Award for Animation
Feature Film of Dynamic Golden Sheep Support Program*
(B FHKREFTEEFEHERR H), Excellence Award for
Animation Brand Authorization* (1875 &))8 @ 2R 1E), the
second runner up of the Radio and Television Award in
Guangdong Province* (EREERBFRE=FH), and the
Jury Special Award of the Shenzhen Youth Video Festival* (%
NEFXERBTLZEERIE).

OUTLOOK

The Group will make substantial investment in the industrial
chain related to the Metaverse. The Metaverse combined
cutting-edge technologies from multi-disciplinary, is the
next-generation Internet with virtual-real symbiosis, and
is the digital embodiment of the future social economy
and cultural civilization. The Group will be seizing the
development opportunities from the Metaverse and the
cutting-edge technology industries in the future, and will
leverage its first-mover advantage in the virtual reality and
the science fiction industries to target the Metaverse and
mapping its business layout, extending from the production
tools of digital virtual character to Virtual Reality digital
assets and creating an ecology of usergenerated content,
thus striving to become a marketization entity which is a
Metaverse-related industry chain.
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BB WA D AT

Animated film and television original business will continue
to develop multiple theme series such as ocean exploration,
Yangtze River stories, Chinese mythology and science
fictions in the future. The undertaking and production
business will further expand the animated films, web
dramas, game promos and game animation production
businesses, which provides high-quality and stable
production services for first-tier enterprises.

Following the inception of Sports Park project in Chengdu*
(Fk#BEEE AE™EH), the Group will embrace “Cultural
IP + Technology + Sports” as core value, operate the
cultural new space with the concept of commercialization,
and create an innovative ecological sports park, thereby
redefining the city with culture and creating a city icon with
technology. Meanwhile, the Group will also model a product
matrix mainly on high-tech experience, high-tech operation
and high-tech industry, enhance the capability of replication,
as well as continue to expand new projects.

*For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of all shareholders and to enhance accountability and
transparency.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code") as set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 December 2021.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings as set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiries with the Directors, all Directors confirmed
that they have complied with such code of conduct and
the required standard of dealings regarding securities
transactions by the Directors throughout the year ended 31
December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprises eight
members including three Executive Directors, Mr. Xu Liang,
Mr. Wang Hongpeng and Mr. Xiao Yong; one Non-executive
Director, Mr. Chen Zheng; and four Independent Non-
executive Directors, Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law, Mr. Lam
Yiu Kin, Mr. Zheng Xiaodong and Mr. Li Yao. The Board is
chaired by Mr. Xu Liang and has a balanced composition of
Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors such that
there is a strong element of independence at the Board
level, which facilitates independent judgment. All Directors
have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group and the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the businesses of the Group. Details of backgrounds
and qualification of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “"BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS" of this
annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Composition (Continued)

The Non-executive Director and the Independent Non-
executive Directors are of sufficient calibre and number for
their views to carry weight. The functions of Non-executive
Directors include, but are not limited to:

° making an independent judgment at Board meetings;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise;

° serving on Board committees if invited; and

° scrutinising the Company’s performance.

To the best of the knowledge of the Company, the Directors
have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with each other.

Role and Functions

The Board is responsible for overall strategy formulation,
overseeing the risk management and internal control
system on ongoing basis and monitoring performance of
the Group. It delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to the Executive Committee within the control and authority
framework set by the Board. In addition, the Board has
delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Further details of these committees are set out
in this corporate governance report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board meets at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Additional meetings would be arranged,
if and when required. The Directors can attend meetings in
person or through electronic means of communication in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws").

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the
agenda of each meeting and each Director may request
inclusion of matters in the agendas. Generally, at least
fourteen days’ notice of a regular Board meeting is given
and the Company endeavours to give reasonable notice
for all other Board meetings. The Company also aims to
send the agenda and the accompanying Board papers to
all Directors at least three days before the intended date
of a Board meeting. The accompanying Board papers are
prepared in such form and quality so as to enable the Board
to make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible for ensuring that the Board meetings’
procedures are complied with and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of
the Board meetings and meetings of the Board committees.
Drafts and final versions of which would be sent to the
Directors for their comments and records respectively after
the meetings. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail
relating to the matters considered by the Directors and
decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
Directors or dissenting views expressed (if any). Minutes of
Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
the Directors.

If a substantial shareholder of the Company or a Director
has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by
the Board (including material transaction with connected
persons) which the Board has determined to be material,
a physical Board meeting will be held instead of by way of
written resolution to deal with the matter.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Meetings and Attendance (Continued)

The Board held six Board meetings during the year ended 31
December 2021. The Directors had made active contribution
to the affairs of the Group and the Board meetings were
held to consider, among other things, various projects
contemplated by the Group, review the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system of the Group,
and to review and approve the quarterly results, interim
results and annual results of the Group. The attendance
records of the Board meetings and general meeting held in
2021 are set out below:

EEg(E)

EESEEREEBR(Z)
HE2021F12A831BILFE  EFg L8717
BREZECSH - HNUBSERBIKERNER Y
B ZEETCLRBRTZENASE(H
FRE)AEERETZESEERE  BIASE
[ [ I K N BB EA Y R AT 2 B U A R B R
ML EAREB I FEHE  PHEEREFE
B M2 FEMBITZESE SR MREKX
SR ILFELENOT

Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings eligible to attend

Name of Directors EEnE HESBRIE CEKEEER R
Board General
meetings meeting
EEZggE BRASESE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Xu Liang (Chairman) (appointed as B BREFEE)R 6/6 1/1
Chairman on 30 June 2021) 202146 A30 HEZ (T
BEE)
Mr. Wang Hongpeng RIS (EFABATE) 6/6 11
(Managing Director)
Mr. Xiao Yong H BA4 6/6 1/1
Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu (resigned on 30 June  TREEF+ (R2021F6 2/2 0/1
2021) H 30 BEFE)
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mr. Chen Zheng (Deputy Chairman) bR AEEAE (BIEE) 6/6 0/
Independent Non-executive Directors BV IE$TEE
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law SRR 6/6 1/1
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin MRERER S A 6/6 1/1
Mr. Zheng Xiaodong L e 6/6 0/1
Mr. Li Yao (appointed on 29 March 2021) 2 Z=HA4 (R20214 3 4/5 1/1
H 29 H#EZ(TF)

Remark:  Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu, Mr. Chen Zheng and Mr. Zheng Xiaodong
were not able to attend the annual general meeting of the

Company due to other business commitments.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Access to Information

The Directors may seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. The
Company will, provide independent professional advice to
the Directors to assist the relevant Directors in discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Board is supplied with relevant information by the
management pertaining to matters to be brought before
it for decision making as well as reports relating to
operational and financial performance of the Group at
least three days before each Board meeting. All Directors
are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance and financial position to enable the Board as
a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. Where
any Director requires more information than is supplied
by the management, they have the right of separate and
independent access to the Group's management to make
further enquiries if necessary.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
will review the profiles of the candidates and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and retirement of Directors.

According to the Bye-laws, any Director appointed by
the Board shall hold office, in the case of filling a casual
vacancy, only until the next following general meeting of the
Company or, in the case of an addition to the Board, until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company,
and shall then be eligible for re-election at such general
meeting. Every Director (including the Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Directors) is
appointed for a specific term and is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction
of the regulatory requirements. The Directors are regularly
updated on the latest development of the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to ensure
compliance with the good corporate governance practice.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in 2013. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members. While
all Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the Company's businesses. Selection of
Director candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, race,
language, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or other wise), skills and knowledge. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
policy, developing and reviewing measurable objectives for
implementing the policy and monitoring the progress on
achieving these objectives. The Nomination Committee will
review the policy and the measurable objectives at least
annually to ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board.

Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) in December 2018. The Nomination Committee
assists the Board in ensuring a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for the appointment and
reappointment of Directors as well as plans in place for
orderly succession (if considered necessary), including
periodical review of such plans and maintaining a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’'s businesses. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria
in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

o diversity perspectives with reference to the
Company's business model and specific needs,
including but not limited to gender, race, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience

o commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest

The Board has the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of Directors as permitted in the Bye-laws and
shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidate(s) to stand for election at any
general meeting. The Nomination Policy shall be reviewed
when necessary, and can be revised by the Board from time
to time.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Continuing Training and Development

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided to the Company a record of
training which they received during the period from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021. According to the

Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited R ERE BRI ZE R AR 2 7
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EEg(E)

records provided by the Directors, a summary of the training
received by the Directors are set out as follows:

SREARE

ESEERIIREE
R2021F1A1HZE2021F12 531 B ILHIE
2RESHASEBEIXER YO AARQ
AR EMERE 2B - REBERRHEZ
L8 EEMERI ZEIIBAMT

Attending or
participating in
seminars/workshops/
reading materials and
updates relating to

the latest development
of the GEM Listing Rules
and other

applicable regulatory
requirements

HERSMHE
WEY BEEEGEM
FHRAIRHEAM
BRALHRERZ
Name of Directors EEnA B ERNESN
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Xu Liang (Chairman) r BERE(FE) (R2021F6 A v
(appointed as Chairman on 30 June 2021) 30 HEZFAF/E)
Mr. Wang Hongpeng (Managing Director) F RIS KA, (EFLAEE) v
Mr. Xiao Yong B BiLE v
Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu EREFZ L N/A A3 A
(resigned on 30 June 2021) (R20214 6 A 30 HEHE)
Non-executive Director HHITEE
Mr. Chen Zheng (Deputy Chairman) PR RS (&F/EE) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHITESE
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law 7 SUEEHUIR 4
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin MIBER A v
Mr. Zheng Xiaodong BB ST A 4
Mr. Li Yao > ZEAE 4
(appointed on 29 March 2021) (R2021F3 29 HEZ(F)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’
liabilities are in force to protect the Directors and officers
of the Group from their exposure to risk arising from the
businesses of the Group.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director are
separate and are not performed by the same individual to
reinforce their independence and accountability. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Xu Liang (appointed on
30 June 2021) and Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu (resigned on 30 June
2021) are the Chairman of the Board respectively, and Mr.
Wang Hongpeng is the Managing Director of the Company.
The Chairman provides leadership for the Board and
overall strategy formulation for the Group. The Managing
Director has overall responsibility for the Group's business
development and day-to-day management. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Managing
Director is clearly established and set out in writing.

With the support of the Executive Directors and the
Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive adequate information, which must be
complete and reliable in a timely manner.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) provide a wide range of expertise
and experience as well as checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of the Group and its shareholders.

Pursuant to Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed four Independent Non-executive
Directors. One of the Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Lam Yiu Kin has appropriate professional
qualifications on accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has received from each
Independent Non-executive Director an annual confirmation
of his independence for the year ended 31 December
2021 pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
based on the contents of such confirmations, the Company
considers that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent during the Year.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Non-executive Director and all Independent Non-executive
Directors were appointed for a specific term and are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Bye-laws. Details of the terms are set out in the section
headed "REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS"” of this annual
report.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Board Committees

The Board has established the following committees to
oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of the Board's responsibilities. All
committees have their own written terms of reference. All
resolutions passed by the committees will be reported to
the Board at the next Board meeting.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established in September
2007 and comprises all Executive Directors. As of 31
December 2021, the Executive Committee consists of three
Executive Directors namely, Mr. Xu Liang (appointed as
Chairman on 30 June 2021), Mr. Wang Hongpeng and Mr.
Xiao Yong. It is chaired by Mr. Xu Liang.

The Executive Committee has been conferred with the
general powers of the Board (except those matters
specifically reserved for the Board) to manage and oversee
the operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in July 2003 with
specific written terms of reference which set out its
authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange's website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company's website.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)
The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

° overseeing the relationship with the Company’s
auditor;
° reviewing the quarterly, interim and annual financial

statements; and

° overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management, internal control system and policies
which include the whistleblowing policy reporting
system.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference and obtain external
legal or other independent professional advice if it considers
necessary. It is given access to and assistance from the
employees of the Group and reasonable resources to
discharge its duties properly.

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Yiu Kin, Prof.
Japhet Sebastian Law and Mr. Zheng Xiaodong. It is
chaired by Mr. Lam Yiu Kin. None of the members of the
Audit Committee are former partners of the auditor of the
Company.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2021 with the Company’'s management
and the internal audit manager, two meetings of which were
held with the external auditor of the Company.

The Audit Committee had, among others, reviewed:

° the Group's internal control system and risk
management;
° the final results of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2020;

° the quarterly results of the Group for the three
months ended 31 March 2021;

° the interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2021; and

° the quarterly results of the Group for the nine months
ended 30 September 2021.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held four meetings in 2021 and the
attendance record is set out below:

SREARE

ExERE(E)
BEREES(F)
N2021 %  ERREGBRIT4INEGHR €53

HEEEIT

Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
eligible to attend

Name of Directors BEEHR HEEBRY SERLEESERY
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin (Chairman) MIRER A (£ E) 4/4
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law 78 SEEHR 4/4
Mr. Zheng Xiaodong BEEE R S A 4/4

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board had
no disagreement with the Audit Committee’s view on the
selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditor of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in August
2003 with specific written terms of reference which set
out its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;
° identifying and making recommendations to the

Board suitable and qualified individuals nominated for
directorships;

° making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the Directors and
succession planning for the Directors; and

° assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Where vacancies exist on the Board, candidates are
proposed and put forward to the Nomination Committee
for consideration. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be submitted to the Board for approval.
The Nomination Committee will also take into account the
Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy when
identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members
of the Board. In addition, the Board reviews the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time, so as to develop and
review measurable objectives for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and to monitor the progress on achieving
these objectives.

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek
any necessary information from the employees of the Group
within its scope of duties and obtain external independent
professional advice if it considers necessary.

The Nomination Committee consists of four Directors,
namely, Mr. Xu Liang (appointed as Chairman on 30 June
2021), Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law, Mr. Lam Yiu Kin and
Mr. Zheng Xiaodong. It is chaired by Mr. Xu Liang. The
Independent Non-executive Directors constitute the majority
of the committee members.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee had, among others:

° recommended to the Board the appointment of new
Directors and the change of Chairman of the Board;

° assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive
Director; and

° reviewed the structure of the Board taking into
account the Board Diversity Policy.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in 2021 and
the attendance record is set out below:

SREARE

ExERE(E)
REZES(#A)
R2021 5 REHEZEGBRIT2REH @3

HEEEIT

Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings eligible
to attend

Name of Directors EEng HESBRIE SEBEEER R

Mr. Xu Liang (Chairman) (appointed 15 &% (/) (#2021 F 2/2
as Chairman on 30 June 2021) 6530 HEZ T AEFRE)

Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law 78 EEHR 2/2

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin MRER 2/2

Mr. Zheng Xiaodong BB S A 2/2

Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu (resigned on 30  12BeF L+ (1R202146 A30 H 1/1
June 2021) BEE)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in July
2003 with specific written terms of reference which set
out its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’'s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all Directors and senior management of the Group
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

reviewing and approving the Directors’ remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives;

determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Directors;

reviewing and approving the compensation payable to
the Executive Directors and senior management and
the compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct; and
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

° ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman of
the Board about its proposals relating to the remuneration
of the Executive Directors. It has explicit authority to seek
any necessary information from the employees of the Group
within its scope of duties and obtain external independent
professional advice if it considers necessary.

The remuneration policies applicable to the Directors and
management of the Group are performance-based and
in line with market practice. The Company reviews the
remuneration packages annually taking into consideration
market practice, the competitive market position and
individual performances.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four Directors
namely, Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law, Mr. Xu Liang, Mr. Lam
Yiu Kin and Mr. Zheng Xiaodong. It is chaired by Prof. Japhet
Sebastian Law. The Independent Non-executive Directors
constitute the majority of the committee members.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee had, among others:

° determined the salaries of the Executive Directors
for year 2022 and discussed the bonuses of the
Executive Directors for year 2021 and determined it
in early 2022;

° made recommendations to the Board on fees for
the Non-executive Director and Independent Non-

executive Directors for year 2022;

° reviewed the terms of service agreements of the
Executive Directors; and

° reviewed the terms of letters of appointment of an
Independent Non-executive Director.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2021
and the attendance record is set out below:

SREARE

ExERE(E)
FWEES (£)
N2021 % HFHEREGBRIT2REH €3

HEEEIT

Number of meetings

attended/Number

of meetings eligible

to attend

HESERE

Name of Directors EEnA SEREEERRH
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law (Chairman) BXEHR () 2/2
Mr. Xu Liang (Vice Chairman) * BEREEEE) 2/2
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin MIBER A 2/2
Mr. Zheng Xiaodong BB R A 2/2
Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu (resigned on 30 June 2021) BRFZL 11

(R202146 H30 HEHE)

Corporate Governance Function

The Company's corporate governance function is carried out
by the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference
adopted by the Board in compliance with code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code, which include (a) to develop and
review the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; (b) to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of
the Group; (c) to review and monitor the Company'’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and
the Managing Director, and is responsible for advising the
Board through the Chairman and/or the Managing Director
on corporate governance matters. For the year under review,
the Company Secretary has confirmed that no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training has been taken.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing financial statements of the Group which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group on
a going concern basis. In presenting the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements, announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the GEM Listing
Rules, the Directors aim to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group's position and
prospects.

The statement of the auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, on its reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is
set out in the section headed “"INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
REPORT" on pages 106 to 116 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is of the opinion that sound internal control
systems will contribute to the effectiveness and efficiency
of the operations of the Group and to safeguard the Group's
assets as well as the shareholders.

The Board is responsible for monitoring, maintaining and
overseeing the internal control systems of the Group. The
Executive Committee helps the Board to discharge its
responsibilities of ensuring and maintaining sound internal
control functions by regularly and continuously reviewing
and monitoring the internal control systems and processes
so as to ensure that they can provide reasonable assurance
against material errors of the Group.

The internal control system is embedded within the
business processes so that it functions as an integral part of
the overall operations of the Group. The system comprises a
comprehensive organisational structure with assignment of
definite accountabilities and delegation of the corresponding
authorities to each post. Based on the organisational
structure, a reporting system has been developed under
which the division head of each principal business unit
reports to the Executive Committee directly.

Business plans and budgets are prepared by the division
head of each principal business unit annually. In preparing
the business plans and budgets, the management identifies
and evaluates any potential risks. Measures will be put in
place with an aim to ultimately manage, control or eliminate
such risks.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

The business plans and budgets are subject to review
and approval by the Executive Committee. The Executive
Committee reviews the monthly management reports on the
operational and financial results of each principal business
unit and measures the actual performance of the Group
against the business plan and budget concerned. During
such reviews, the Executive Committee also considers
and assesses the effectiveness of all material controls.
The Executive Committee holds periodical meetings with
the management of each principal business unit and the
finance team to, amongst other matters, address the issues
in such controls, identify areas of improvement and put the
appropriate measures in place.

The internal control system is documented and if any
revision is required, such information will be submitted to
the Audit Committee for evaluation.

Moreover, the Group has established “Whistleblowing
Policy” “Procurement Policy and Guideline” and “Delegation
Policy” in order to strengthen its internal control system.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its
role in overseeing the Group's internal control function by
reviewing and evaluating the effectiveness of the internal
control system.

The Company has set up an internal audit department (the
“I.A. Department”) which assists the Executive Committee
and the Audit Committee in discharging their internal control
duties. The I[.A. Department, which is independent of the
operational departments of the Group, is responsible for
conducting regular audits on the major activities of the
Group. Its objective is to ensure that all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls
as well as risk management, are in place and functioning
effectively. The |I.A. Department reports to the Executive
Committee and the Audit Committee with its findings and
makes recommendations to improve the internal control
system of the Group.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

The Board considers that it is an ongoing and continuous
process for the Group to review and improve its internal
control system in order to ensure that they remain effective
in the dynamic and everchanging business environment.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has
been, through the Executive Committee and the Audit
Committee (with the assistance from the [.A. Department),
continuously reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control system. The division head of each
principle business unit and the Managing Director made
representations as to compliance by themselves and their
subordinates of key internal control system for year 2021
to the Board. The requirement for making representation
letters by the management can strengthen individual
responsibility for corporate governance and controls. The
Company considered its risk management and internal
control systems effective and adequate.

To comply with the code provision C.2.2 of the CG Code,
the Board also included a review of adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function, internal audit
as well as the function relating to its environmental, social
and governance (“ESG"”) performance and reporting, their
training programmes and budget in its annual review for
year 2021.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

In relation to the handling and release of inside information,
the Group has established corresponding policies to restrict
its employees from unauthorized use, handling or external
release of the operating and financial information which is
for internal use, to ensure the Group is in compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations.

Internal Control System

e |dentify & evaluate potential
risks, including ESG and climate change
risks, when preparing the annual
business plan & budget
Fﬁﬁﬁqii%i‘%ﬁrimﬁ“*
PR R ERR - BHERE -
e kEs &':M\%“{KZH[&A

e Put measures in place for
managing, controlling or
eliminating risks

Internal
Division
Head/
Management

e TEHEITER

TAE IR FE 6 SOH bR R E EIRE Report findings & make
HERYTE T rggommeniations

* |Implement business plan ﬁiﬁélﬁé/;:;&
MITEBE 2

e Prepare monthly management report
AT AEEmE
e Revise business plan from time to time
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Audit Department
AERER T ERFT

Conduct regular audit
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FEREABIELAR A o

NEPEZERE

e Review & approve business plan
& budget
%ﬁﬁ&ﬁt?%iﬂ“ﬁzﬂ&?ﬁ”*

* Review monthly management

report for:

=M AEE®RE:

(i) measuring actual performance
against business plan & budget; &
NEBEIRFEEREEER R R

(i) reviewing & assessing

effectiveness of all material controls

TRt AT R PTE EA BT EHIRK

Executive Committee

BTEES

Audit Committee
EREES

Review & evaluate the overall
effectiveness of internal
control system
B0 MRl A BB EA IR [ A B

e Make recommendations

bdanf =

R
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TEERHRET

INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued) R EBEEE (42)
Internal Audit Functions A EBEET T EE

Financial Operational
Control Control

3 EEEER

Internal
Audit
A EE T

Risk Compliance

Management Control
[ B B 2 BREE
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

Risk Management Framework

The Group has established an Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) framework to effectively identify, assess and manage
risks. Enterprise operates in environments where factors
such as competition, restructurings, changing markets and
technology create uncertainty. Uncertainty comes from an
inability to precisely predict the likelihood that events (risks)
will occur and the associated impacts.

The ERM framework enables management to adopt a
proactive and systematic approach for identifying and
managing risks across the organization to evaluate risk
impact and likelihood of occurrence. Risk managing
workshops are conducted in each operating unit and
an ERM Implementation Pack is prepared to guide the
implementation of the risk managing work.

The objective of this ERM Implementation Pack is for
establishing the Group’s ERM framework and policies,
including defining roles and responsibilities; providing key
principles and concepts, a common language, and clear
direction and guidance; and setting up a foundational basis
needed to design and implement an ERM process that
effectively addresses the Group's operations.

Audit
Committee

BEREES

Risk
Management

Working Group
E B EE T FE

CREABE

B EE (&)

[\ Bz ' 72 R 7

AEECDEYL TEERBREZES - ABRO
Bpl o AR EEAR - EERNEERRT
B Bl mSEBELRMRERERHELD
FRBARE 2= - T T EABAIRI & IR E R AL ERE TR
= (ER) BEERNAREEMBEARNESN -

ZERERRGIEEEEENEDREIIRNER
BEOEEBAI R ERAENER - EFHER
REEMARLEMEENE - AEECDATZE
BUSERTRAREEMNEMER T(ARE
BEFMIAEERREE TIFNER

HCEBREEFMINBNEEEZLAEE D
XEREENERLEEK BRATAGLE
£ RBEIZREES  BEXFZES B
Wiy s kgl - RRAMERASENLE
[ EEIRIZE NERE -

Operating
Units
EEBN

Risk Management Structure

The Board oversees the overall management of risks,
including ESG risks. The Risk Management Working Group
assists the Board and Audit Committee to review and
monitor key risks. Operating units are responsible for the
identification and management of risks in their operations.

Ebs BB LR

EXeoRERAEEREARERE  E4E
RIRE - e hEnER - BERERET AR
BHEEERERZESRGA L EEARA
%o 2BEURABRRHIMNEREXHT 2R

(&

o o
A

Annual Report 2021 &% 47



Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited & B} & 1§ & =&

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Risk Management Process

By applying the principles and methodologies described in
the ERM Implementation Pack, management develops five
key steps for implementation.

Risk
identification

Risk
assessment

B E

Objectives

B B 3% Bl

ERAERQA

B EE (&)

[E b B TR R A2

B R E R ACE R

2 BIEF M) 2 RANRTT

& HIE T RIEE ARG

Risk response
and control
activities

BB P
REBRER

Monitoring
and reporting

ERRBE

(1) Objective setting is a precondition to event
identification, risk assessment, and risk response.
There must first be objectives before the
management can identify and assess risks, and take
necessary actions to manage the risks.

(2) Risks are identified at the entity, activity and process
level by using various techniques.

(3) Risks are evaluated from two perspectives —
likelihood and impact. Criteria are developed upon
which identified risks will be measured in terms of
likelihood and impact. Following this, risks will then
be prioritized according to their “Risk Rating” which
is the combination effect of “Likelihood” and “Impact”

(4) In evaluating response options, the management
considers the effect on both risk likelihood and
impact, recognizing that a response might affect
likelihood and impact differently. Having selected risk
responses, management identifies control activities
needed to ensure that the risk responses are carried
out properly and in a timely manner. The effectiveness
of the controls are assessed by using the three-point
scale.

(5) A risk management report that highlights key risks
and action plans is presented to the Audit Committee
and the Board annually. Significant changes in key
risks on a day-to-day basis are promptly reported to
the Group's management and immediately handled.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Risk Management Process (Continued)

Risk management changes over time. Risk responses
that were once effective may become irrelevant; control
activities may become less effective, or no longer be
performed; or entity objectives may change. In the face of
such changes, management continually works to improve
the risk management framework in order to keep pace with
the changing dynamics of businesses.

The Board has reviewed the risk management report of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and evaluated
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management system,
including (a) the changes, since the last annual review, in
the nature and extent of significant risks (including ESG
risks), and the Group's ability to respond to changes in
its business and the external environment; (b) the scope
and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks
(including ESG risks) and of the internal control systems,
and where applicable, the work of its internal audit function
and other assurance providers; (c) the extent and frequency
of communication of monitoring results to the Board and its
committees; (d) significant control failings or weaknesses
that have been identified during the period and the extent
to which they have resulted in unforeseen outcomes or
contingencies that have had, could have had, or may in the
future have, a material impact on its financial performance
or condition; and (e) the effectiveness of its processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rule compliance.

Principal and Key Risks of the Group

As an objective of risk management, we must first
understand the principal and key risks currently faced by the
Group and the corresponding strategies against such risks.
The table below sets forth the principal and key risks which
the Group is currently facing:

Principal Risk
FERME

SREARE

ARER(£Z)

RAREERR(F)

ARE B MR - RATZ AR AR
UHRAALEGTANE | BB RN
AR S R B A AT DB R R
. EREEY LSS BRESHKER
pE RS BXERESENEEEERS
Wit -

EEeCEHHE2021F 12 A31 BIEFER
EE(RABREERE MR AEEZRARE
BEFHAN B @QBLAFEEE &
RE (BIFRE L MERER) A1EE R
BEMNE  ARNEEEEEFEMINBIRE
BEMEEN b EREEFEELRR (2R
5 e MERRER) MRIES ZRHNEE
MEE - AR (ER) NPT B E b i
BIREENTE cRESEeRELZESEE
ERAAERNEEMEE : (d)EL RS ERY
BORIEHI B9 E  UREER DL A
RS RA e B EELEEATE
WA TERERSB BHMRBESIENT 0 Ke)
HESmEMEMRAEGHRFNERIE -

REBEz TR RERER
tEREREENEE  HAILBRENREB
FIEE A E R MR AR AR EYZEFE BE
BHVREE - TREAXASEBNEYNEER
FAR AR

Corresponding Strategy
PE R B

Disputes with the contracted party involved in a
cultural park development project. This might have
significant impacts on the Group's asset value and
profit.

—EXERFENGE TR ERBEENY - Y
AEEEEBEMANEEESE -

We have appointed lawyers to follow up on the
litigation proceedings with the aim to achieve the
best outcome.

EEFEEME R BREARRRL

FOEEFER -
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AN - 3= NI2N
u:% B /A ﬁ%
Key Risks

B R = b

Corresponding Strategy
g

To protect the Group’s intellectual property rights
and also to avoid unintentional infringement of
others’ intellectual property rights.
REREBABER - ARELEETRILHANE
FERERITR °

Cyber security issues compromising data integrity
and system availability.
Mz rMEE BB TEEMASG A A -

Threats to public health and disruptions in
business operations due to unexpected outbreak
of pandemic diseases (COVID-19).

It (A ERRS) BESHARBENEEES
HREE °

ESG-related risks may expose us to public health
threats, business disruptions, and increase the risk
of physical damage to properties.

RIE e BAHERER A EERMERERENR
EEE - XI5 LA&i'DD%%EEEETEE’JHﬁ““ °
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We register copyrights immediately upon the
completion of images, innovative designs, texts and
graphics and require the related parties to sign a
confidentiality agreement. We closely monitor if there
is any infringement of the Group's intellectual property
rights in the market while avoiding unintentional
infringement of others’ intellectual property rights.
R - BIER - XF - BREKEZEVETRESS
Rk 2B {’Eﬁﬁﬁnﬂ% Tz?%.:% ﬁtﬂ%i%% E AN
EE%HE%?%E’M%%

BEENTR -

Strictly enforce data backup and implement various
security measures such as setting up firewall and
installing anti-virus software to enhance data integrity
and confidentiality. We regularly provide cyber security
training for staff.

TERDHIE AR L 2E BN N AE AP & 84 AR
BT BMRBBENTEUHMREZN  UEHAB TR
HERL 2 -

We continue to strengthen anti-pandemic measures.
We remain alert and cautious with the ongoing
development of Pandemic and assess the impact
on operation and financial performance. Formulate
responsive strategies in a timely manner to mitigate
various business risks.

AN E R BN EER  BYEIRBEERRIT
AHEE B A EE I BN - ,Z%g%i%iﬁﬁmﬁﬂﬁﬁ:

BB - DORE RIS AREE 2 e

An environmental policy is in place. We closely
monitor the changes in applicable laws and regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance. Details of the
ESG-related risks of the Group are set out in the
section headed "ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL and
GOVERNANCE REPORT"” on pages 54 to 88 of this
annual report.

EHIECRBEEER) : BYBEREEERTER Tk
AERBEL - BANEENERE 18 BaHEBER
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration paid/

payable to the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
is set out as follows:

SREARE

BB AT &

HZE2021F12 A31 BIEFE SR R TR
NEVZEED - EEROKEEETR BRI S
;YT -

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered FriR it IR 7 e ERER

HK$'000

FET

Statutory audit services ETEE AT RS 1,320
Non-statutory audit services: IEETEEFTRT

Review on interim financial report EHH P HB SRS 360

1,680

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

To foster effective communication with the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”), the Company provides
extensive information in its annual, interim and quarterly
reports, announcements and circulars. All Shareholders’
communications are also available on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company’'s website.

The general meetings of the Company provide a useful
forum for Shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
The Directors and members of various Board committees
will attend the annual general meetings of the Company
to answer questions raised by the Shareholders. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. The Company's
external auditor, where appropriate, is available to answer
Shareholders’ queries at the general meetings.

RIEERARARBRR((RR ] 2EHERE
B ARRREFR  PHBERFERS
NEMBK EIRHEEER - IARFERAE
FHE R R EE R P uh R A R RIEIE R B -

ARAMBERAGREREHEEEGHR
RNERYE BEFNEFSHEZHEEREE
ZBBEFEARBDZBFBAFARE  NEE
MECRIEHZME - 2REEHSHERIEME
HE - AR FSMBZERED (E ) B HERR
Rg - MERRZER -

)% 18

i

Annual Report 2021 &% 51



Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited R R E B A Z =R ER 2 5

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

All notices of general meetings despatched by the Company
to its Shareholders for meetings were sent in the case of
annual general meetings at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and at least 10 clear business days in
the case of all other general meetings.

Voting at general meetings of the Company is conducted
by way of poll in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules
and the Bye-laws. The detailed procedures for demanding
and conducting a poll will be explained by the Chairman at
general meetings. The poll results will be published on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Convening Special General Meeting and Putting Forward
Proposals at General Meeting

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, any one or more Shareholder(s)
holding (at the date of deposit of the requisition) not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company with
the right to vote at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary by mail to the Company'’s
head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and
concerns to the Board in writing, addressed to the
Company’s head office and principal place of business in
Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

When proposing a person for election as a Director,
Shareholders are requested to follow the requirements and
procedures as set out under the “Corporate Governance”
section on the Company's website.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Bye-laws during the year ended
31 December 2021. A copy of the latest consolidated
version of the Bye-laws has been published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy in December 2018,
which aims to allow Shareholders to participate in the
Company's profits whilst maintaining the adequate
cash reserves for the Company’'s continuing business
development and future growth. Any dividends will be
declared or paid at the discretion of the Board pursuant
to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and the Bye-laws
and will depend upon, among other things, the operations,
capital requirements and surplus, general financial condition,
contractual restrictions of the Company and its subsidiaries,
and such other factors as the Board may deem relevant.
This policy shall be reviewed when necessary, and can be
revised by the Board from time to time.

SREARE

IREREER (&)
BRREBATSERESZZREF
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Rk - HEREGHRSE

FOREWORD AND REPORTING PERIOD

Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group” or "we")
is one of the leading digital and visual integration
conglomerate in the industry. Adhering to our sustainable
development philosophy and operating principles, we
establish good environmental, social and governance
("ESG") policies, endeavour to fulfil our corporate social
responsibilities and contribute to the development of green
digital technology. The ESG report of the Group (the “ESG
Report” or the "Report”) gives an account of strategies
and overall performance on office operation and property
management business of the Group’s headquarter and its
major subsidiaries in respect of environmental protection,
operation management, social welfare and working
environment during the year ended 31 December 2021
("2021" or the "Reporting Period”).

The Report has been approved by the board of directors (the
"Board”) of the Group on 25 March 2022.

BOARD STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present 2021
ESG Report of the Group. The Report demonstrates our
commitment to continuously improving our sustainability
performance in areas such as corporate governance,
community engagement, customer satisfaction and
employee care.

The Group believes that a strong governance structure
is essential for the effective management of ESG-related
issues. The Board has overall responsibility for the ESG
issues of the Group, including formulating strategies,
ensuring that the Group has appropriate and effective
internal control and risk management systems, monitoring
the Group’s ESG performance, and approving ESG reports.
The key management of the Group (the “Key Management”)
are responsible for implementing relevant policies and
evaluating the Group's performance in various aspects of
ESG. Departments of the Group are involved in coordinating
and implementing appropriate policies and measures in
the daily operation to implement the Group’s policies and
strategies in respect of ESG issues. The Key Management
report to the Board on the progress of ESG related work
in a timely manner, and provide advice to the Board on
relevant issues to continuously improve the Group’s ESG
performance.
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BOARD STATEMENT (Continued)

In order to prioritise major ESG-related issues, the Board
and the management continue to communicate with the
stakeholders of the Group with reference to their opinions,
and invite them to participate in materiality assessment
regularly to examine various ESG issues in an orderly
manner. Information on stakeholder communication channels
and materiality assessment conducted by the Group are
set out in the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement”
and “Materiality Assessment’, respectively. In order to have
a better understanding of stakeholders’ expectations for
the sustainable development of the Group, the Group will
further strengthen communication with stakeholders, and
formulate relevant sustainable development policies and
measures with reference to their opinions, so as to enhance
the ESG performance of the Group.

Notwithstanding the Group has not generated any significant
environmental impact in terms of operation as a digital and
visual integration conglomerate, it still actively responds
to the environmental policies on carbon neutrality, saving
energy and waste reduction implemented by the People's
Republic of China (“PRC"), and promotes sustainable
development of enterprises. The Group takes corresponding
measures for different areas to reduce its impact on the
environment, and regularly reviews the effectiveness of
relevant measures. In addition, the Group believes that
setting ESG-related targets can enhance the Group's
commitment to corporate social responsibility and allow
the Group’'s stakeholders to better understand the Group's
ESG performance. Therefore, the Group has formulated its
ESG targets on issues that are material to the Group for the
first time during the Reporting Period. The relevant targets
are set out in the sections headed “Emissions” and “Use
of Resources” The Board regularly reviews the progress
of relevant targets and ensures sufficient measures and
resources for the Group to achieve the set targets.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude
to the directors, management team and all employees for
their contributions to the sustainable development of the
Group. | would also like to express my appreciation to all
the stakeholders for their lasting love and support. In the
future, the Group will continue to enhance its governance
and transparency to provide quality services, and will focus
on the efficient use of resources to fulfil its corporate social
responsibility and achieve a sustainable future.

Chairman
Xu Liang

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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REPORTING FRAMEWORK AND PRINCIPLES

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the
reporting principles and standards of the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” ("ESG Reporting
Guide”) set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "HKEX").

The Report should be read in conjunction with the section
headed “"CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT" set out on
pages 27 to 53 of this annual report.

The Group attaches great importance to materiality,
quantitative and consistency in the preparation of the
Report. The Group has applied these reporting principles
in the above ESG Reporting Guide, of which details are as
follows:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to
identify material issues during the Reporting Period, thereby
adopting the identified material issues as the focus for
the preparation of the Report. The relative importance of
materiality issues was reviewed and confirmed by the
Board and senior management. Please refer to the sections
headed “Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality
Assessment” for further details.

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in
the calculation of relevant data as well as the relevant
assumptions were disclosed in the Report. The key
performance indicators (“KPIs") are supplemented by
explanatory notes to establish benchmarks where feasible.

Consistency: The preparation approach of the Report was
substantially consistent with the one in the previous year,
and explanations were provided regarding data with changes
in the scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies.
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REPORTING SCOPE

The content of the Report covers the Group's headquarter
in Hong Kong and its operations in Shenzhen and Foshan.
Since the Group has obtained the legal title of the properties
in Foshan during the Reporting Period, the reporting scope
of the Report has included the data of the operations
located in Foshan compared with the ESG report during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (“2020"). The principal
businesses of the Group, namely (i) CG creation and
production as well as the digital and visual business based
on intellectual property rights; and (ii) new cultural space
(property leasing and management services) are included
in the reporting scope. The reporting scope is determined
by the management of the Group. When making decisions,
management has considered the importance of the impact
of various business activities on the Group’s policies and
financial performance. The environmental data in the Report
only covers the data generated by the Group’s self-use
office. The environmental data in the Report only covers the
data generated by the entities in which the Group has actual
operation and control, namely all self-use offices and public
areas of the GDC Building located in Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, the PRC (the "GDC Building”).

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We believe that the opinions of our stakeholders can
contribute to the sustainable development of the Group.
Therefore, we appropriately communicate with our
stakeholders and promote the participation of stakeholders
through different forms and channels of communication.
The followings are the main categories of stakeholders and
communication channels:

RIR - HERERERE

HREHE

RBENRNBDRERNEB IR TS BI RN
PRI B 1L BB &b o Fr A AN 52 B 7 R 25 1
FEESHEILUMENSEMABRE  HE2020F
12 A31BIEFE([2020F ) IRE - Hte X
BURMRE - AMEMIREFHE LI T LA
ﬁMmm%ﬁéﬂ AEBMOETBER - 81

BB GRAMEREERAMBEESERDN
%%ﬁiﬁﬁ Ry X Ef (mMERER
BEERE)  MEMNARREEHE - RAfEE
ERAEBENETIEEET - BITRKE 12
BEEE T TRXESTESE ANEB KRR LM
REFENEEN - ARENRFEBERS
REEBEERBLMITHENER  BIATE
B AP A = MALHA A BR IR L B 8 3R BRERS
AE (MRIREIERE]) A REIFTEERNE
& o

FES2R

BMEETRBENENEREINAEE Z#F
BER RLRMEZSHESHEOEER I
BRTAFAREBRREBREZFHENSHE -
WTAETZEAFNELEBRERE
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R HERER/ERE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Major Stakeholders
FTERHGE

FESR

Communication Channels
BERE

Shareholder
%R

Employee

(=]

Client
Ly

Supplier
YY)

Government and regulatory authorities

BT RS #E

Community, non-governmental organisations
("“NGOs") and media
B SERRATARAE & a8
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Company website

NGIEE

Quarterly, interim and annual reports
FE - PHRFERE
Announcements and circulars
NERIEK

General meetings

BERRE

Employees’ activities

EEEH

Staff communication

BT

Regular meetings/training courses
EHEE®EIIRE

Daily operation/communication
BEEE /R

Regular meetings and visits
FHgEKEES

Regular client surveys
THETEFERAL

Procurement process
R

Daily operation/communication
BEEE R

Regular review and evaluation

TE B B MR

Regular performance reports

BRI FE R

Email, letter and phone contact

BE - EHNEEHBE

Occasional face-to-face meetings and visits
TR RFD

Exchange and study tours
RmERE

Public welfare activities
NG

Online media

Sl
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group determines the scope of its ESG disclosures in
accordance with the requirements of the ESG Reporting
Guide. The management identified and assessed material
issues after considering the Group's business operations
and the standards adopted by the industry. The impact of
these material issues is assessed on the basis of their
importance to the sustainable development of the Group
and its stakeholders. The relevant assessment is related
to the current development stage of the Group, and may
change in the future. The matrix in respect of the material
ESG issues of the Group is summarised as follows:

RIR - HERERERE

BRI

AEEZRIRE L8 MEREIINEREE
HIRE (e MEARBEFENGE - §12E
& BN SR B ) R A8 1 K R X AT SR AR
& HERMBBETH LG HFEE
HRENFEREHARERERNEAIFE
HRMNBERE TUNZ - HEFZENRE
HE A RS BUARRE - SRR IR E ) © LA
TEESAEEERRE e MhEaEEM

=

Materiality Assessment Matrix

ERMFEERE

FrlbE T REHE T

Talent Training Management and Courses
AT BINEERRE

Supply Chain Management
HEEEE
Energy Efficiency
BEIRY

Waste Management
&

HEBEHETENTERE

Exhaust Gas Emissions
BEESRHERR

Influence on Stakeholder Assessment

Occupational Health and Safety Employment Practices
BRERERSE EAES

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

Corporate Social Responsibilities

EMSEE

Intellectual Property Protection
l i
Anti-corruption
RIBE5E

Privacy Protection

Customer Services
B R

Service Quality Control
kA% e &

BEE

Level of Significance of Economic, Environment and Social Impacts

HEE RENGERZTE

We regard the results of materiality assessment as
important indicators in our future planning and policy
formulation in respect of ESG, and will continue to promote
the sustainable development process of the Group based on
these material issues.

FEEDBACK

Any opinions and advice are welcome from our
stakeholders. You may provide your comments on the
Report or our performance in respect of sustainability via
email to info@gdc-world.com.

BMABEZHFENERER/BMARKER
B odHelkEna T mALRRFERNER
ER YEREEEBUHS  THHESAE
E R AT A I RAEAE o

BRREE
BPEAEnEREERLREZ - BTARA
BESIRMEABERRTANRRIEHESR

B8 - WEHZ info@gdc-world.com °
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Al

Emissions
Emission Management

The Group attaches great importance to good
environmental management in order to fulfill the
Group’s social responsibilities. The Group has
formulated relevant environmental management
systems such as the “Environmental Policy” for
daily operations to protect the environment and
support sustainability. Such systems prescribe
management measures for greenhouse gases
("GHG"), exhaust gas emissions as well as
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes generated
from the Group’'s operations.

The Group strictly abides by the regulations
and laws related to environmental protection
applicable to its operations, including
"Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting of
the GHG Emissions for Industrial Enterprises’,
"Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China’ “Air Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the People's Republic of China’
“Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law
of the People’'s Republic of China” of the PRC,
and "Air Pollution Control Ordinance” and “\Waste
Disposal Ordinance” of Hong Kong as well
as other local laws and regulations related to
environmental protection. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not in any material non-
compliance with local laws and regulations in
relation to environment due to the discharge
of air and GHG, sewage, hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes.

During the Reporting Period, the Group set
a waste reduction target for the first time
with an aim to reduce the intensity of non-
hazardous waste (tonne/m?) by at least 3% in
2026 compared with the level in 2020 (i.e. 0.002
tonnes/m?).
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Al

A. BE(E)

Emissions (Continued) Al BRI (&)
Exhaust Gas Emissions ER B
Due to the business nature of the Group, its ERAEEEBNLE  AEEM
major exhaust gas emissions are from the use FTEERHBREEHER - K
of vehicles. The Group encourages employees EEREREETREEAANHRRE
to use green transportation such as taking SBEITESEHELITAN - A%
public transport or cycling as much as possible. EeHFMBEWMET TR
The Group also carries out regular maintenance & LABRR IR RHEFE - 1k >
on its vehicles to reduce fuel consumption, TREE R BE SRR o 858 2021 F
thereby reducing carbon emissions and BABHDZFEEELE B
exhaust gas emissions. In 2021, although the FIIE & H R R R BB ARG R
COVID-19 epidemic still affected the Hong ZH AEmEBEmEs ASERE
Kong headquarter, the epidemic situation in ERFTHE 2 BWERBATIEM -
Shenzhen, another place of business of the & 1t FH 822020 F A~ &£ [E 72 2021
Group, was controlled, which led to an overall FHRERPEMEBFTIG N -
increase in the use of vehicles required for the
Group's business travel. Therefore, the Group's
exhaust gas emissions in 2021 has increased
compared to 2020.
During the Reporting Period, the performance REE R IS A BERBERE
of exhaust gas emissions of the Group is as W -
follows:

Unit
Pollutants BHER B 2021 % 2020 F
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) RA1Y (NO,) g5 3,852.96 2,522.35
Sulfur oxides (SO,) WAL (SO,) g5 102.66 73.84
Particular matters (PM) AR (PM) g5 283.69 185.71
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Al

Emissions (Continued)
GHG Emissions

The GHG emissions of the Group are mainly
derived from direct GHG emissions (Scope
1) caused by gasoline consumed by vehicles
and energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope
2) caused by purchased electricity. The Group
actively adopts power-saving and energy-saving
measures to reduce GHG emissions, including
stringent control of air conditioning usage,
lighting facility usage and office appliance
usage. Specific measures will be described
in the section headed "Energy Efficiency” In
addition, the Group will conduct meetings
through electronic means such as telephone or
online meetings instead of long-distance face-
to-face meetings to reduce carbon emissions
from business travel. Under the above policies,
employees’ awareness on carbon reduction has
been raised.

During the Reporting Period, the GHG
emission intensity of the Group decreased by
approximately 33% from approximately 0.39
tCO,e/m? in 2020 to approximately 0.26 tCO,e/
m?2in 2021.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Al

A. BE(E)

Emissions (Continued) Al BERWD ()
GHG Emissions (Continued) BEREH(E)
During the Reporting Period, the performance RWEHE - AEEMNAEERE
of GHG emissions of the Group is as follows: PERERIRANT -
Unit
Scope of GHG Emissions' BZEREHHEE" By 20214 20204
Direct emission (Scope 1)  EHiEHH (8E1)
Vehicle teams of the Group  AEEE K tCOe
—EftixEE 18.58 13.60
Refrigerants BS T tCO,e
M-EtikEE 24150 362.25
Energy indirect emission  AERREHEH (EE2)
(Scope 2)
Purchased electricity HNEE N tCOe
—&afriESE 1,355.45 1,251.77
Other indirect emission Hith Bk (88 3)
(Scope 3)
Paper disposed to landfill? B EDMIER A REAL 2 tCOQe
aitixEE 2.64 765
Business travel® EELHE tCOQe
—EfkikEE 52.03 3735
Total emission of GHG BERRBHHAE tCO,e
“EltiRE= 1,670.20 1,672.63
Total emission of GHG ’é;ﬁﬂ%@@%?ﬂ tCOze/m2
per square metre of BERBHHE “EIREE 0.26 0.39
floor area’ FHAK
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Al

Emissions (Continued)
GHG Emissions (Continued)

Notes:

1.

GHG emission data are presented in terms of
carbon dioxide equivalent and are based on,
including but not limited to, “The Greenhouse
Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” issued by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development; “How to
Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the
HKEX; “Global warming potential value” from
“The Fifth Assessment Report” of the United
Nations Intergovernmental Panal on Climate
Change in 2014; and “Sustainability Report
2020" issued by HK Electric.

The data consist of GHG emissions avoided
through paper recycling.

In 2021, although the COVID-19 epidemic
still affected the Hong Kong headquarter, the
epidemic situation in Shenzhen, another place
of business of the Group, was controlled, which
led to an overall increase in the number of our
employees who made business travel by air,
resulting in a corresponding increase in indirect
emissions. Such emission is calculated based
on the emission factor used by the International
Civil Aviation Organisation Carbon Emissions
Calculator.

In 2021, due to Group's newly added place of
business in Foshan within the reporting scope,
the total floor area of the Group’s self-use office
increased by 2,159.3 square meters compared
with 2020. And the Hong Kong office was
reduced in size due to moving into a new office
in October 2021. Therefore, when calculating the
total self-use office area, the Hong Kong office
area was calculated using the weighted average
of the total office area at the end of each
quarter.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Al

Emissions (Continued)
Waste Management

In 2021, the Group has continued to implement
the “Provisions of Classification and Reduction
of Domestic Waste” in the GDC Building
according to the “Measures of Administrating
Classification and Reduction of Domestic
Waste of Shenzhen” issued by the Shenzhen
Urban Management Bureau. \Waste separation
bins were placed and harmless waste were
properly recycled. Meanwhile, offices at various
operating locations purchased eco-friendly
stationeries and implemented measures
including double sided printing, recycling
papers and toner cartridge recycling scheme.
E-filing has been encouraged so as to reduce
the consumption of papers and toners and thus
reduce waste.

During the Reporting Period, the Group set
a waste reduction target for the first time
with an aim to reduce the intensity of non-
hazardous waste (tonne/m?) by at least 3% in
2026 compared with the level in 2020 (i.e. 0.002
tonnes/m?).

Due to the business nature of the Group, the
Group did not generate any hazardous waste
as a result of its business operations during
the Reporting Period. Despite that the Group
did not generate any hazardous waste during
the Reporting Period, the Group is required
to comply with relevant environmental laws
and regulations, and engage a qualified waste
recycler to dispose of the waste in case of any
hazardous waste generated.

During the Reporting Period, the non-hazardous
waste per square metre consumed by the
Group has decreased from approximately 0.002
tonnes/m? in 2020 to approximately 0.001
tonnes/m? in 2021, representing a decrease of
approximately 50%.

A. BE(E)
Al BERW (&)
EEYEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

Al

Emissions (Continued)
Waste Management (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the performance
of non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group is as follows:

BRI (&)
Al BRI ()
ERYETE (&)

RBSHE ~REELENES
BEEMRBMT

Unit
Non-hazardous Waste BMEREEY) By 20214 2020
Domestic waste HSEBIR tonne
7 6.50 770
Paper i tonne
73 0.55 0.36
Plastic Py tonne
o} 0.10 0.07
Wooden board KR tonne
7 0.15 0.05
Glass I B tonne
i 0.05 0.05
Total non-hazardous BMEBZEYME tonne
waste ) 7.35 8.23
Total waste disposed to BYHFREEEERN  tonne/m?
landfill per square metre EEFEEYELE 7
of floor area SET K 0.001 0.002
Saving Papers EATBAL

One of the goals of the Group in promoting
environmental protection is to become a
paperless office. The Group continues to
advocate sending e-bills and e-notices to
its tenants and staff to save papers. By
implementing e-filing and e-approval instead
of in paper form, applying double-sided
printing and paper recycling, and adopting
e-communication, the Group has reduced
the use of papers and stationeries and
hence, indirectly avoided emission of GHG
in its operation process. The operational
efficiency has been enhanced after applying
e-approval procedure due to less onerous
procedures among departments and improved
environmental performance, comparing to
traditional approval in paper form, and thus
enhanced the benefits to the Group.
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USE OF RESOURCES

Energy Efficiency

The Group aims to actively promote the efficient use
of resources, and monitors the use of energy and
water resources during its operations in real time. The
Group has relevant policies and systems, including
but not limited to the “Environmental Policy’, to
manage the use of resources during its operations in
a more effective manner.

The following energy-saving measures were adopted
in the Group's ongoing operations in supporting
environmental protection.

In the GDC Building, only two elevators were in
service at weekends while others were shut down.
Air conditioners of elevators were only operated
during office hours in the summer and air-conditioners
in the elevators machine room were only switched on
automatically when the room temperature was too
high. In the GDC Building, except that sensor lights
were installed in public corridors and the number of
lamps installed was reduced, some old lighting have
been gradually replaced by LED lighting in order to
reduce consumption of fuel for electricity generation,
and old water valves in toilets and the drainage
equipment of flushing toilets on each floor were
replaced to improve energy efficiency. Moreover, turn-
on hours of decorative lights of the GDC Building
and operating hours of the landscaped pool were
adjusted to further reduce consumption of electricity.
In response to the call of developing clean energy
vigorously with an aim to reduce carbon emissions
from the State, we currently have three new energy
recharging facilities for vehicles in the car park of the
GDC Building.

Offices at different locations were installed with LED
lighting and energy saving lighting and the lighting
systems of office areas were required to be turned
off during non-office hours. Temperature of air-
conditioning of each office was preset at 25.5°C and
automatic power shutdown function of airconditioners
was applied during non-office hours. Energy-saving
function of computer systems was utilised while
optimising the rendering devices in central engine
rooms and applying auto-shutdown or sleeping
mode for servers when not in operation. During the
Reporting Period, the Group built a new system of
server virtualisation and integrated storage capacity
with data transfer to reduce utilisation and shut down
more than one physical server, thus achieving energy
saving as indirect energy consumption of electricity
usage was reduced.

A2,

RIR - HERERERE
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USE OF RESOURCES (Continued) A2. ERfERE)
Energy Efficiency (Continued) BER M= ()
During the Reporting Period, the Group has set a RMERE - AEEH AR EEREE
target in terms of energy efficiency for the first time FHMEER  BEEEARN2026F - &
with an aim to reduce the intensity of electricity TEREZEE (TREF5K) 82020
consumption (kWh/m?) by at least 3% in 2026 FKF(BN326.81 TEE,FHK) &
compared with the level in 2020 (i.e. 325.81 kWh/m?). B A 3% o
The energy consumption of the Group is AEBMNRERERITZEAHEELZNE
mainly derived from electricity consumption for TBRENEWAFERANNTREBERE - B
daily operations and gasoline consumption for WEHE AEEMNgEREERER
vehicles. During the Reporting Period, the energy 2020 F #9325.81 F LB /3 /5 KRk
consumption intensity of the Group has decreased £2021F 49269.97 FE B, F XK
from approximately 325.81 kWh/m? in 2020 to FEIE 49517 % ©
approximately 269.97 kWh/m? in 2021, representing a
decrease of approximately 17%.
During the Reporting Period, the performance of REERRE - AEERLREFERIRN
energy consumption of the Group is as follows: ™
Unit

Energy Consumption BERUHFE By 2021 % 20204
Direct energy consumption — BHEfRER — AR’ kKWH

Gasoline’ ;= 67,681.83 48,682.70
Indirect energy consumption - I EERERE — B kWH

Electricity ;= 1,687,869.00 1,366,494.20
Total energy consumption BEREHREHAE kWH

FF B 1,755,550.83 1,415,176.90

Energy consumption BYAREEEEN kWH/m?

per square metre of BERUHAE TR,

floor area K 269.97 325.81
Note: Bist
1. The consumption of gasoline in 2021 and in 2020 was 1. 2021 5 F2020 F 8B BEED B A

approximately 6,983.73 litres and 5,023.31 litres, respectively.

Water Usage Efficiency

In order to further enhance its water usage efficiency,
the Group has installed automatic sensor faucets in
the GDC Building and substantially shortened the
operating hours of its landscaped pool to save water.
Further, the Group has also strengthened its checks
for all the water valves and had regular overhauls in
leak-proof water pipes of the GDC Building to prevent
the risk of leaking as well as continue to implement
the above-mentioned water usage efficiency
enhancement programme.
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USE OF RESOURCES (Continued) A2. ERfERE)
Water Usage Efficiency (Continued) Rk (&)
During the Reporting Period, the Group has set a RMEE - AEEHARERKTE
target in terms of water usage for the first time with WEZE  BEZEEARN2026F - AKE
an aim to reduce the water intensity (m%m? by at & (LA K/ FHAK)E 2020 FXKF (A1
least 3% in 2026 compared with the level in 2020 (j.e. 1.76 SLH K, FHK) HIERD3% -
1.76 m3/m?).
Due to the geographical location of the Group's HRASBEZENNHENE  A5E
operations, the Group does not have any major FESKEEAKR LR B EREARE
problems in obtaining suitable water sources. During B RIERE AEERKERER
the Reporting Period, the water consumption intensity 2020F $91.76 L A K/ F R KRB AL =
of the Group has decreased from approximately 1.76 2021 F#40.793 K, F K » FEIEH
m3/m? in 2020 to approximately 0.79 m3/m? in 2021, 555% °©
representing a decrease of approximately 55%.
During the Reporting Period, the performance of REERRE - AEERAKEERIRN
water consumption of the Group is as follows: ™

Unit
Water Consumption FEKE B 20214 2020
Total amount of water used' BAKE? m?

K 5,167.00 6,738.00
Amount of water used per BYAREEEEN m3/m?

square metre of floor area FAXKE LK

K 0.79 1.76
Note: Kat -
1. As the Hong Kong headquarter operates in a leased 1. EEBBINBEMR T EE - K

office building, both supply and disposal of water are
controlled by the property management office of the
landlord, which considers it is impracticable to provide
separate metre to measure water supply and disposal
for individual tenants. Hence, the water consumption
of the Hong Kong headquarter is not included in such
figures.

Use of Packaging Materials

Due to the business nature of the Group, the Group
does not have any industrial production and factory
facilities. Therefore, there is no significant amount of
packaging materials used for packaging products.

PR REE 2 EXRBITES > M
MRREE X R R R M E RIE P R4 A KA
PKBIER D SEILARIAT - UL A RH
BIBREEEHNAKE -

BEMBHER

ERAKENEHEE  AEEYET
EAE PEEAIREE  Hii &
HERERERAEBEMFK -
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70

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group continues to pursue environmental
protection and pay attention to the impact of the
Group’s business on the environment and natural
resources. As a responsible enterprise, the Group
has reduced its impact on the environmental and
natural resources arising from its operations, through
adjusting the management on its operation model and
adopting more ecofriendly operational measures. In
addition, the Group has encouraged its employees to
reduce emission and waste as well as make good use
of resources, no matter at work or at home, to put
our best efforts to protect the environment.

The Group has formulated the “Environmental Policy”
to continuously track and monitor the use of energy
and water resources for business operations of the
Group, and increased the use of innovative energy-
saving and water-saving technologies to reduce the
consumption of energy and water resources in daily
operations. In order to scale down the production of
wastes and the use of paper, the Group advocates
a paperless office and encourages employees to
communicate with internal and external personnel
through electronic means. Meanwhile, where
possible, personnel in the Procurement Department
should purchase recyclable and reusable items at
their best effort.
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CLIMATE CHANGE

In view that extreme weather is likely to be more
frequent and severe, addressing climate change has
become a global consensus. The Group is aware that
climate change will affect its business operations
in different ways, therefore, we have established a
comprehensive set of procedures to identify, monitor
and manage ESG issues including climate change.
Based on these procedures, we have identified the
following climate-related risks.

Physical Risks

First of all, the increased frequency and severity of
extreme weather such as typhoons, floods and heavy
rains caused by climate change may lead to physical
damage to the properties owned and managed by
the Group, thereby increasing the Group's expenses
related to maintenance, disaster response, etc. In
severe cases, the normal operation of the Group
may be affected, and the personal safety of building
managers and users may also be threatened. If such
incidents are not handled by the Group properly,
it will also have a negative impact on the Group's
reputation. Rising sea levels may also cause flooding
and damage to infrastructure and facilities, thereby
increasing the cost of repairing damaged facilities.

In response to these physical risks, the Group has
insured for employees and related properties to
protect corresponding interests and reduce potential
financial losses. In addition, the Group maintains
backups of IT systems and work-related documents
stored on local servers and off-site locations to
minimise the potential impact of business interruption
and their impact on the Group's business. Besides,
the Group regularly reviews and updates its business
continuity plan to ensure that normal operations can
be maintained and core business functions can be
properly performed during any material event.

A4
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CLIMATE CHANGE (Continued)

Transition Risks

In addition to the abovementioned physical risks,
the Group also faces transition risks arising
from the transition to a low-carbon economy. A
growing number of aggressive climate policies and
regulations formulated to support the vision of
global decarbonisation. For example, the HKEX has
required listed companies to enhance climate-related
disclosures in their ESG reports. China has also made
solemn commitments to “carbon peak” in 2030 and
“carbon neutrality” in 2060, and promulgated relevant
action plans and policies. Stricter environmental laws
and regulations may expose enterprises to higher
risks of claims and litigation. Corporate reputation
may also be negatively affected by failing to meet
climate change compliance requirements, thereby
increasing the Company’s relevant capital investment
and compliance costs.

In response to policy and legal risks as well as
reputational risks, the Group regularly monitors
existing and emerging climate-related trends, policies
and regulations and is prepared to remind senior
management if necessary to avoid increased costs,
fines for non-compliance or reputational risk due to
slow response. In addition, we have set a target for
reducing energy consumption and GHG emissions in
2021 to promote the sustainable development of the
Group.

SOCIAL

B1. Employment
Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes that employees are our
momentum for innovation and also the keys
to our operation and sustainable development,
as well as our core competitive advantage.
To maintain working team harmony and retain
high-quality talent, we ensure all employees
are treated with justice and fairness in terms
of recruitment, opportunities of promotion and
training, and remuneration and welfare, and are
free from discrimination. Meanwhile, the Group
is committed to providing a safe and healthy
working environment and to safeguarding basic
rights of employees proactively, ensuring our
employees are healthy both physically and
mentally, which in turn enhances their working
efficiency.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B1.

Employment (Continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

The Group recognizes the importance of
employment issues and safeguards basic
rights of employees, and also prepares and
implements strictly its “Staff Handbook” and
“Management System of Human Resources”
in accordance with the relevant employment
laws and regulations, including “Labor Law of
the People's Republic of China’] “Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
“State Council Interim Measures on Workers'
Retirement, Resignation’ as well as “Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance” and
“Rules in relation to jurisdiction under Family
Status Discrimination Ordinance” of Hong
Kong. Specific rules of recruitment, attendance,
remuneration, welfare and others are
detailed in the Group’s “Staff Handbook” and
“Management System of Human Resources”
The Group will strive for the best to review the
related policies regularly based on the changes
of policies and the feedback conducted during
the previous years. In addition, the Group
takes the health and welfare of its employees
seriously, and provides medical welfare to all
qualified employees, such as subsidies for
body checkup, provision of medical insurance
and personal accident insurance, in order
to enhance the sense of belonging of the
employees to the Group.

B. #&(#E)

B1.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B1.

Employment (Continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly
complies with relevant laws and regulations
in respect of employment, including but not
limited to “Labor Law of the People’s Republic
of China” and “Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China” The Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to human resources.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group (other
than employees of the Cultural Park) has 189
(2020: 192) employees in total, including 4 part-
time staff and 185 full-time staff.

Total Workforce by Gender

B.

He(E)
B1. 1{EE(#E)
EERET Z4 (&)

RBEHE AEBEBREETHE
BREHEBRERESR  BRET
EPREARXMELHSH
P EARKAMBESEE)
AREBWRBEREFERBEBEA
NERBEDIVERNEANEE ©

M2021F12A318 - X&EE &
BEHEF 189 (TMBIELEXE
ZEE) (20204 : 192) - HEph
AZFEHMET - 185K EHET o

BEHRE S NEERE S M

Gender 4 Bl 2021 20204
Male = 14 110
Female @ 75 82

Total Workforce by Age Group

BERARNSINEERE D M

Age group Fie4a R 20214 20204
Aged under 30 30 A T 63 54
Aged 30 to 50 30 & 507K 122 130
Aged over 50 50 BRUA E 4 8

Total Workforce by Geographical Area

ZinEE D NEELE D M

Geographical area HE 20215 2020 4F
Mainland China lElpN 181 181
Hong Kong, China REES 8 1

During the Reporting Period, the turnover rate
of the Group was 29.3% (2020: 26.5%).
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B1.

Note:

Employment (Continued)

RIR - HERERERE

He(E)

B1. 1{EE(#E)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued) EERELTEH (&)

Turnover Rate by Gender' EHRE D WEERLE"
Gender 1 5l 20215 20204
Male B 28.6% 29.6%
Female L8 30.4% 21.9%

Turnover Rate by Age Group

BERARNSDNEERAR

Age group Fie4a R 20214 20204
Aged under 30 30 AT 37.0% 34.1%
Aged 30 to 50 30 & 505K 21.6% 23.3%
Aged over 50 50 BRUA E 66.7% 14.3%

Turnover Rate by Geographical Area

ZinEE D NEERAER

Geographical area HE 20215 2020 4F
Mainland China B K B 28.7% 275%
Hong Kong, China REES 41.7% 7.7%
Hiet -
i 95 MRS BRI AMIES
The turnover Number ofRzm(?rlgzeeselr?gtddurmg the 1. ZK;%%E’]/R _ IR HIR L MRS AR
rate of the = poring RER 202141 A1 8#
Group Number of employees as at 1 January BB AE + RIS
2021+Number of new employees during EHEE AR

B2.

the Reporting Period

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a safe and
healthy workplace to its employees. We have
established a policy or guideline of occupational
health, in accordance with the “Law of the
People's Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases’,
“"Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance” of
Hong Kong and other related laws. The Group
has encouraged its employees to report to the
administration department of the Group for any
health and safety issues related to workplace
that they are aware or concerned of, so that
such risks will be mitigated or reduced by the
Group. The Group and its employees work
together to build a healthy and safe working
environment.

B2. fREHEZE
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B2.

Health and Safety (Continued)

There were no work-related fatalities or
permanent disability occurred in each of the
past three years including the Reporting
Period, and there were no lost days due to
work injuries during the Reporting Period.
During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with
laws and regulations related to safety and
health, including but not limited to “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Treatment of Occupational Diseases” of
the PRC and the "“Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance” of Hong Kong, which have a
significant impact on the Group.

The Group has adopted the following
occupational health and safety measures:

° Purchasing ergonomic design furniture,
locating multi-function copy machines in
separate areas, and procuring lightings
suitable for reading, to reduce the risk of
health hazard for employees;

° Providing different occupational health
trainings for employees of different
positions (including drivers and security
guards);

we(E)

B2.

REEZR(F)

BEBEHRENNI=F&F
EHRELERTHIIKA LS
BEMFAMRBRERELAERT
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AEES T ERHREERR
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B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. #&(#&)

B2. Health and Safety (Continued) B2. REHZZ (&)

o Arranging regular inspections on fire
equipment and safety facilities (including
installing fire distinguishers) in the
offices and replacement of expired fire
distinguishers;

o In addition to providing security guards
with torches, alarms and other safety
equipment, and providing training
courses for security guards to enhance
their awareness of self-safety;

o Arranging regular overhauls for vehicles
of the Group to ensure their proper
functioning so as to safeguard the safety
of drivers; and

o Organising regular safety education
seminars for tenants in the GDC Building
and employees and arranging fire
trainings and drills.

In addition, we did our best to prevent and
control the COVID-19 pandemic in 2021. The
Group’s property management company was
responsible for the prevention and control
of the pandemic for tenants, employees and
visitors entering and leaving the GDC Building
on a daily basis, whereby all personnel are
required to wear masks and check their body
temperature before entering the building. Office
and public areas are disinfected regularly while
suspend of fingerprint door access control
system (the “Fingerprint System”) and replaced
by access card for access control management
to avoid share use of the Fingerprint System'’s
screen. Meanwhile, we cooperated with the
community to promote effective prevention
work for the pandemic and encourage
employees to get vaccinated. Employees are
required not to travel to medium-and-high-
risk areas, and immediately report to their
immediate superiors and the Human Resources
Department if any flu symptoms such as fever,
cough, and headache occurred. The Group also
provided employees with surgical masks and
anti-pandemic items such as alcohol-based
handrubs were available in the offices while
following the government’s recommendations
and implementing a work-from-home policy,
flexible working hours and staggered meal
break to maintain an appropriate social distance
and reduce the risk of infection.

. iE B N E B E B RR B
Kt EZ 2Rt (BHE&
ERNE)ETRENER
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B2.

B3.

Health and Safety (Continued)

The Group also pays attention to the
employees’ physical and mental health while
the administration department of the Group
organises leisure and exercise activities for
its employees regularly to actively encourage
its employees to seek for a balance between
work and life. A leisure area for its staff in the
office of the GDC Building was established, so
that the staff from the creative department are
able to find new inspiration at any time in the
leisure area. Fitness and recreational facilities
are also provided to allow its staff to lay down
their jobs when necessary and take a break to
“recharge” themselves before getting back to
work.

Development and Training

We firmly believe that providing adequate
training to our employees is critical to the
growth of the Group. As a result, the Group has
formulated the “Staff Training and Management
Policy” to provide pre-employment or job-
transfer professional training to new recruits
and post-transfer staff to ensure their abilities
to cope with their job duties. Furthermore,
the Group has organised a number of on-job
training courses and seminars on different
subjects for employees to share information
and improve their skills so as to familiarize
them with any professional skill sets and
enhance their awareness to innovate. On top of
the traditional off-the-job training, the Group are
endeavored to developing a network in respect
of trainings in order to diversify the Group's
access to corporate training. In addition,
the Group will provide financial assistance
for employees attending external training in
response to their career development needs.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. #&(#)
B3. Development and Training (Continued) B3. BERIEI(E)

In 2021, the Group organised 9 seminar 20214 « REBERP T OER
programmes, including film appreciation BRE NABREFEE IR
training, atmosphere creation in animation HiIl - BERMERERE  EXE
production, industrial park planning and EEABREEHESS -
investment operation.
During the Reporting Period, the number of ARERRE AN ZFNE TH
employees trained of the Group was 189, and BiEZE189A FTHEBMEINX
the average training hours per employee were P A 0.5 /N o
0.5.

Percentage of employees trained (%)

ZIMBEBEDL (%)

By gender By employment type

R RIE 2 RESERE S

Male Manager level or above

St 100 IR £ 100
Female General staff

7 100 ET@mET 100

Average training hours per employee (hours)

BT AZINEE ()

By gender By employment type

gk ¥k pa RESERHED

Male Manager level or above

M 0.27 KIBARSIA L 0.96
Female General staff

g 0.85 LT@ET 0.38

Annual Report 2021 3 79



Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited R R E B A Z =R ER 2 5

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HEREREE

80

SOCIAL (Continued)

B4.

Labour Practices

The Group has complied with all laws and
regulations related to the prevention of child
or forced labour, including but not limited
to “Labor Law of the People's Republic of
China’} “Provisions on the Special Protection
for Juvenile Workers” and “Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labor of the People’s
Republic of China” of the PRC, as well as
“"Employment of Children Regulations” and
"Employment of Young Persons (Industry)
Regulations” of Hong Kong. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not find any
material violation of laws and regulations
related to the prevention of child or forced
labour. During the Reporting Period, the Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance
with laws and regulations related to the
prevention of child or forced labour.

The Group strictly prohibits the employment
of any child labour, and requires applicants to
provide true and accurate personal information
in open recruitment, and submit it to the
recruiters for cautious review. The materials
to be reviewed include academic certificates,
ID cards, etc. The Group has created a well-
established recruitment process to check the
background of candidates and a formal reporting
procedure to handle any exceptions. Besides,
regular reviews and inspections to prevent
any child labour during the operations will be
conducted. In order to avoid forced labour,
the working hours are clearly stated in the
employee contract. If excessive workings hours
are found, it will be investigated and handled
immediately. If it is found that child labour
is wrongly hired, the Group will immediately
suspend the child labour from work and follow
up the case.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B5.

Supply Chain Management

In strict reference to the relevant provisions
including “Bidding Law of the People’s Republic
of China’l the Group has formulated a set of
sound procurement systems. According to
the principle of fair competition, the Group
determines the purchase of materials in the
form of direct procurement or price comparison
based on the value of products or services.
Suppliers are carefully selected through product
or service quality and price to ensure that
the products and services are good value for
money, and to reduce the incidence of fraud.
In addition, the Group requires suppliers to
provide legal documents for production and
sales of products and licenses if necessary, and
ensures transparency and accountability in the
procurement process to safeguard the security
and compliance of the supply chain.

In order to avoid bias in the selection of
suppliers, our administration department has
compiled the “List of Appropriate Suppliers’”
This not only saves time and money in
identifying suppliers and also ensures the
quality of suppliers. At the same time, the
Group carries out long-term quality monitoring
and regular reviews against all its suppliers.
If any significant changes in a supplier’s
qualification or serious quality problems arise,
the Group will immediately stop purchasing
products or services from that supplier.

In addition, the Group also takes full account
of the social, ethical and environmental
performance of suppliers in the procurement
process. The Group is required to review the
followings in the regular audit of suppliers:

o The suppliers understand the environmental,
social and ethical issues related to its
business and has established minimum
standards for these issues;

o Key suppliers and suppliers with higher
risks have management systems in place
to deal with environmental and social
issues and risks;
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B5.

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Discrimination against small and medium
enterprises or local suppliers can be
minimised with the premise that the
needs of the Group can be met;

The accuracy of the information provided
by suppliers are identified through the
review, third-party verification or similar
procedures; and

Under other conditions being the same,
the Group prefer suppliers who are
responsible for the environment and
society, or those who promote products
and services that are favourable to the
environment.

In 2021, the Group had a total of 169 (2020:
99) key suppliers. All suppliers have passed the
review conducted by the above practices during
the Reporting Period. In 2021 and 2020, the
Group was not aware of any material adverse
impact on business ethics, environmental
protection, human rights and labour practices
of any of its key suppliers.

Geographical Distribution of Key Suppliers
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B6.

Product Responsibility

The Group has actively complied with
“Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of
China’l "Law of the People's Republic of China
on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests’] “Product Quality Law of the People's
Republic of China’} “Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China’ “Patent Law of the
People's Republic of China” and “Copyright
Law of the People's Republic of China" of
the PRC, as well as the “Trade Descriptions
Ordinance” of Hong Kong and other laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations related to
product and service quality, nor had there been
sold products that had to be recalled for safety
and health reasons.

Intellectual Property Protection

As a company in the creative industry, the
Group recognises the importance of adhering
to safeguarding and complying with intellectual
property rights. As for this, the Group has
formulated relevant internal measures, and
strictly enforced internal and external laws and
regulations to prevent inadvertent infringement
of the intellectual property rights of others
during the process of creation and business
operations. In addition, the Group will also
apply for copyright registration for original
drama series or films, and protect the Group's
intellectual property rights through commercial
confidentiality agreements and other
agreements restricting the use of the Group's
intellectual property rights.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B6.

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Customer Services and Complaint Handling

The Group is committed to providing high-
quality service experience to customers through
standardised service quality, humanised service
process and normalised service management.
Regarding the complaints about products and
services, the Group has established procedures
for handling complaints and has arranged staff
dedicated to follow up on each individual case
to resolve the problems raised by clients in
respect of designated matters. The property
management business of the Group conducts
surveys and visits to tenants on a regular
basis to collect opinions thereby improving the
property management plan. In 2021 and 2020,
the Group was not aware of any significant
complaints concerning the products or services.

Protection of Stakeholders’ Information and
Privacy Policy

The Group exercises caution in its daily
operations to safeguard stakeholders’
personal data as well as uses and handles the
stakeholders’ personal data under “Personal
Information Protection Law of the People's
Republic of China” of the PRC and the “Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance” of Hong Kong
accordingly, which includes setting up password
as to the electronic document of stakeholders’
data and the password will only be available
to authorised employees. All stakeholders’
personal data are for commercial operation
purposes of the Group only and shall never
be resold to any third parties. In addition, all
employees have entered into a confidentiality
agreement in order to regulate and limit the
utilisation of the Company’s data by employees,
so as to further protect the personal data of the
stakeholders. These measures and practices
are also regularly reviewed within the Group to
reduce the risk of data and privacy leakage.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B6.

B7.

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Advertising and Labelling

The Group has set up guidelines related
to advertising and labelling to regulate the
advertising and labelling of products. The
Group conducts a rigorous review of its sales,
marketing, advertising strategies and materials
related to the products and services it offers,
and ensures that our organisational marketing
and advertising to potential clients and agents
is ethical and accurate, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

Anti-corruption

The Group strictly requires all directors and
employees to act based on ethical conducts,
and prohibits all bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering. The Group has complied
with all laws and regulations related to the
prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering, including but not limited
to “Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China’ "Company Law of the People’'s Republic
of China”, "Bidding Law of the People’s
Republic of China’l "Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China” of PRC
and the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” of
Hong Kong etc. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations related
to the prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, nor had there been any
concluded corruption lawsuits brought against
the Group or its employees.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B7.

B8.

Anti-corruption (Continued)

Upon discovery of any misconduct by any
colleague or superior, an employee may inform
the Group's internal audit manager or the Audit
Committee directly through email in accordance
with the “Whistleblowing Policy” and each
whistleblowing email is only available to the
internal audit manager or the Audit Committee.
Upon receipt of such whistleblowing email, the
internal audit manager will immediately initiate
an investigation according to the procedures
and report the findings to the Chairman and
the Audit Committee. In addition, the internal
audit department regularly conducts internal
sampling reviews regarding daily operations
of the business divisions to reduce the risk of
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
During the Reporting Period, our Directors
and employees received two and four anti-
corruption training courses respectively, of
which contents include but are not limited to
"How directors should undertake and practice
anti-corruption responsibilities’, "Anti-corruption
disclosure requirements in an ESG report’,
“Relevant anti-corruption requirements and
regulations in the laws of Mainland China” and
Examples of corruption among personnel of
listed companies. Through relevant trainings,
Directors and employees at different levels
have learnt more about their corresponding
roles and responsibilities in respect of anti-
corruption and business ethics, as well as the
precautions for operation compliance.

Community Investment

Since its establishment 20 years ago, the
Group has been deeply involved in the
cultural and creative industry, conscientiously
implementing the government’'s policy of
“Developing the country through science and
education” (EI#EE), and actively supporting
the construction of community public welfare in
various operating locations. The scope involved
includes children’s science education, culture
and art and other fields, contributing to the
improvement of the quality of children’s science
and culture education.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

BS.

Community Investment (Continued)

When making decisions on the direction of
community investment, the Group relied on the
company'’s rich cultural and creative animation
resources from which the management
selected appropriate content and themes, and
organised and participated in various public
welfare activities after taking account into the
needs of the communities where it operates.
The Group has held hundreds of offline popular
science education activities with the theme of
original works, covering libraries, campuses,
classrooms and communities across China.
Among which, the National Defense Lecture
Hall (lﬁﬁﬁ‘%i) with the theme of “Captain
Shunliu (I8 & BX &))" the animation lecture by
the main creator and the public welfare lecture
on Caring for “Little Migratory Birds (/ME&)"
were not only popular among children, but are
recognised by relevant government authorities.

During the Reporting Period, we invited
families from Shenzhen Maling Community to
join our activity which is to popularise marine
knowledge held in the GDC Building. The
Group’s instructors introduced various marine
creatures that appeared in the marine adventure
series created by the Group, and carried out
popular science dissemination especially for
endangered marine animals, in order to help
children in cultivating their awareness of
protecting the ecological marine environment at
an early age and learn to live in harmony with
nature.

In addition, the Group was selected as one of
the enterprises in League of Popular Science for
Child Education of Nanshan District (FLLI52E#
BRIEE ), a league made of outstanding high-
technology enterprise selected by Government
of Nanshan District and established under the
governmental guidance of strategic planning
of making Shenzhen a “child-friendly city” The
Group conducted activities to promote cultural
and creative industry to children from time to
time during the summer holidays and gave
children a chance to get in touch with cutting-
edge information on science and technology,
lending a helping hand in fulfilling of the strategy
of “developing the country through science and
education” (BI#ER) and fostering children’s
knowledge in science and culture.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

BS.

Community Investment (Continued)

The Group also actively encouraged employees
to participate in various public welfare activities.
During the Reporting Period, employees in
Shenzhen participated in the anti-drug running
group held in Xixiang Street, Shenzhen, to
spread the positive energy of a healthy life —
“no drugs and no regrets” During the Reporting
Period, the staff in the Hong Kong headquarter
also continued to participate in “Love Teeth
Day"” co-organised by the Community Chest of
Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Dental Association,
and the Oral Health Education Division of
Department of Health for the people in need.
In addition, employees in the Hong Kong
headquarter also donated a number of desktop
computers, monitors, laptops and printers to
Caritas Computer Workshop. These electronic
equipment will be sold to the underprivileged
or NGOs after refurbishment.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors herein present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 33(e) to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
117 to 234 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business, a discussion and
analysis of the Group's performance during the Year and
an analysis of the likely future development of the Group's
business are set out in the sections headed "CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT"” and "MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS" of this annual report.

Save for note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
of this annual report, there is no important event affecting
the Group that had occurred since the end of the Year up to
the date of this annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group's environmental policies
and performance, key relationships with the Company’s key
stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company
are set out in the section headed "ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL
and GOVERNANCE REPORT" of this annual report.

THE GROUP’S PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group are set out in the section headed "CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT" of this annual report and note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively. Also, the
details of the other key risks of the Group are set out in the
section headed "CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT" of
this annual report.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
are set out on page 235 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of movements in the investment property of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the investment property of the Group as at
the end of the reporting period are set out on page 236 of
this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 121 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year were as follows:

Mr. Xu Liang
Mr. Wang Hongpeng
Mr. Xiao Yong
Mr. Chen Zheng*
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law*
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin*
Mr. Zheng Xiaodong*
Mr. LiYao*
(appointed on 29 March 2021)
Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu
(resigned on 30 June 2021)

# Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with clause 87(2) of the Bye-laws and
pursuant to Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr.
Wang Hongpeng, Mr. Xiao Yong and Mr. Zheng Xiaodong
shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “"DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES" on pages 7 to 11 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Xu Liang has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2020. Each of Mr. Wang Hongpeng and Mr. Xiao
Yong has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2022.

Mr. Chen Zheng has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from
11 December 2020.

Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2020. Mr. Lam Yiu Kin has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2021.
Mr. Zheng Xiaodong has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term commencing from 1 January
2022. Mr. Li Yao has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term commencing on 29 March
2021 and ending on 31 December 2023.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service
contract with the Company, which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Executive Directors are
determined by the Remuneration Committee with
delegated responsibility regarding their experience, duties,
performance and the prevailing market conditions. The
remuneration of the Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board. No
Directors are involved in deciding their own remuneration.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages,
including medical and retirement benefits, to eligible
employees. Apart from a basic salary, the Executive
Directors and employees are eligible to receive a
discretionary bonus taking into account the factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual's
performance during the year.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of
which are set out in “"SHARE OPTION SCHEME" below and
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company or
any of their respective associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares (the “Shares”) and
underlying Shares of the Company

Number of Shares/underlying Shares

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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EERBEITRAEBRRKRSG - HBEROKE
EEREDZNAR (F)

RARBDEBER ([RH 1) REBRD 2FA

Approximate
percentage
of total

held in the Company
BEEAARAKRG HERGHE

Capacity in which

Interests under equity

issued share
Total capital of the

Interests

Name of Director interests are held in Shares  derivatives interests Company

NG|

BERITRAE

RBRETE By

Y BEREZEH RROzER  ITEZED BERZ  BOESH

Mr. Chen Zheng Beneficial owner 185,988,200 - 185,988,200 12.33%
B L% ExEBA

Mr. Wang Hongpeng Beneficial owner 2,088,000 - 2,088,000 0.14%
TRELE EREBA

Mr. Xiao Yong Beneficial owner 380,000 - 380,000 0.03%
H BEXA EREBA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none B EXFi#EI 0 W2021F12A31 8 » #

of the Directors, chief executives of the Company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise, notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in "DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES"
above, at no time during the Year was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts that is significant
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or its connect entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors had an interest in a business (other than those
businesses where the Director was appointed as a director
to represent the interests of the Company and/or any
member of the Group) which is considered to compete
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
businesses of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the "SHARE OPTION SCHEME" disclosed below,
no equity-linked agreements was entered into by the Group,
or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

As permitted by the Bye-laws, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she may sustain
or incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties
of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto, and no
Director shall be liable for any loss, damages or misfortune
which may happen to or be incurred by the Company in
the execution of the duties of his/her office or in relation
thereto, provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty.

There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons or
corporations, other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company as disclosed above, had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares of the Company
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EEERES

FERRREDG - HEROREEE 2ER
1599}

MN2021F12A31H M FATEEAE( X
FIBE s EEXARNRTRETHRABRIN R
KRARRMDSEERDEBBEELARRAR
BEEMAEGENEIBRIEFE 2SI

SL N AN
mEORE -

Name of shareholder

Capacity in which
interests are held

RAERBRB 2HFR
Approximate
percentage of
Number of total issued
Shares held share capital of

in the Company

the Company

HARATE
ERITRAEH
RERER BEEEZHH s ARIRGEE ZBHABE DL
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled 619,168,023 41.05%
(“Shougang Group”) corporations (Note)
BiMlEEARAR([HMERE]) REEE (Hiat)
Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Interests of controlled 619,168,023 41.05%
Limited (“Shougang Hong Kong”) corporations (Note)
BHEAR (B8) BRAR] REEE (Kiat)
([BEEEE])
Upper Nice Assets Ltd. Beneficial owner 619,168,023 41.05%
("Upper Nice") EnEAA (Note)
(K15%)

Note: Upper Nice is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Hong
Kong which is in turn wholly-owned by Shougang Group.
Accordingly, all these corporations are deemed to be interested
in the share capital of the Company which Upper Nice is

interested under the SFO.

Hi5# : Upper Nice AR BB (HEMEE2EHR)
ZEEMBAG . At BEEHFRPER
Bl - FTBEZERFEHER BEFA Upper Nice BT
BAZ AR ATERER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Company has not been notified of any other person or
corporations (other than the Directors and chief executives
of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best of the knowledge of the Directors,
there is a sufficiency of public float of the Company’s
securities as required under the GEM Listing Rules as at
the date of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Shareholders adopted a share option scheme at the
annual general meeting on 18 June 2013 (the “2013 Share
Option Scheme”), which complies with the requirements of
Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules. No share option has
been granted under the 2013 Share Option Scheme since
its adoption. The 2013 Share Option Scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years.

The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme was to
motivate Eligible Persons (Note 1) to optimise their future
contributions to the Group and/or to reward them for
their past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on-going relationships with such Eligible Persons
who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success
of the Group, and additionally in the case of any proposed
employee or a person for the time being seconded to
work full-time or part-time for any member of the Group
("Executive”), to enable the Group to attract and retain
individuals with experience and ability and/or to reward
them for their past contributions.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of shares available for issue under the
2013 Share Option Scheme is 151,825,554, representing
approximately 10% of the Company’s total issued share
capital as at the date of this annual report. Unless approved
by Shareholders, the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the share options granted
to each Eligible Person (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the total share capital of the Company in
issue.

A grant of an option can be made at any time as specified
by the Board, so long as such grant is made within 8 years
from the effective date of 2013 Share Option Scheme, being
18 June 2013. Once an offer of the grant of an option is
made, a period of no more than 28 days will be given to
accept such offer. On or before acceptance of the offer,
HK$1 is to be paid as consideration to the Company.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board which
shall not be less than whichever is the highest of: (i) the
nominal value of a share of the Company; (ii) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of
share options; and (iii) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of share options. The Board
also has the absolute discretion to determine the minimum
period an option must be held before it can be exercised.

No share option was granted since its adoption according
to the 2013 Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this
annual report, the remaining life of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme is approximately 1 years and 3 months.

Note:

1 Pursuant to the terms of the 2013 Share Option Scheme,
Eligible Persons means “an Executive; a director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group; a direct or indirect shareholder of any
member of the Group; a supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group; a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of the Group; a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of
the Group; and an associate of any of the foregoing persons.”
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
repurchased its ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as
follows:

BE HEIEEAQAFZ LTEE

REZE2021F 12 AT BILFE AR A 8R
BRATRE D 2 EBR BT

Number of
ordinary Highest Lowest Aggregate
shares price paid price paid consideration
Month of the repurchases repurchased per share per share paid
e BREN BREN [=X5)
BmE A4 LERY™ BefE RIKE BIE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
November 2021 262,000 0.110 0.104 27520
2021411 B
December 2021 1,512,000 0.116 0.103 164,670
2021412 A
Total 1,774,000 192,190
At

During the year, all repurchased shares were cancelled and
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by
the nominal value thereof. The purchases were made for
the benefit of the Company’s shareholders with a view to
enhancing the net value of the Company and its assets and/
or its earnings per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities (whether on the Stock Exchange
or otherwise) during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution.
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UPDATE ON LITIGATIONS

Details of the business disputes between J& 5 I8 Bk &5 &l
EEXAMR AR (“Guangdong GDC"), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and I EF & K KR A A
("Pearl River Film Production”) in respect of the Pearl River
Film Cultural Park and litigations resulted therefrom were
reported in the preceding financial year and the first, the
second and the third quarter of this year. Updates are as
follows:

1.

In April 2019, Pearl River Film Production filed an
action with the People’s Court of Haizhu District of
Guangzhou City of the PRC (FREIEMN/EIKERE ARE
Bt )(the “People’s Court of Haizhu District”), requiring
Guangdong GDC to return the entire Pearl River Film
Cultural Park and its facilities and related documents.
On 24 September 2020, the decision for the trial of
first instance made by the People’s Court of Haizhu
District was in favour of Pearl River Film Production.
On 8 February 2021, the Intermediate People's Court
of Guangzhou City of Guangdong Province of the
PRC (FEIERZAEMMFHFARZER)(the “Guangzhou
Intermediate People's Court”) made the final
judgment (the “Intermediate Court Civil Judgment")
in which the original judgment was upheld. In April
2021, both parties have executed the judgment.

In May 2021, Guangdong GDC has applied to the
Higher People's Court of Guangdong Province of the
PRC(RFEIERAEA =K ARZEF) (the “Guangdong
Higher People’'s Court”) for setting aside of the
Intermediate Court Civil Judgment, initiated a re-trial
of the legal proceedings. On 13 October 2021, the
Company received a civil judgment (EZEEHTE) (the
“High Court Civil Judgment”) from the Guangdong
Higher People's Court, pursuant to which both of
the re-trial petitions and the application to set aside
the Intermediate Court Civil Judgment have been
rejected. The High Court Civil Judgment is the final
judgment.

It is important to note that, as the Group had already
derecognised the Pearl River Film Cultural Park as an
investment property of the Group since 1 December
2018, the Board does not consider the Intermediate
Court Civil Judgment and High Court Civil Judgment
to have any material impact on the financial position
and cash flow of the Group.
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UPDATE ON LITIGATIONS (Continued)

2.

100

In April 2019, Pearl River Film Production filed an
action with the Guangzhou Intermediate People's
Court, requiring Guangdong GDC to pay the property
occupation fee of the Pearl River Film Cultural Park
and related interest for the period between 23
March 2016 and 22 March 2019 in the amounts of
RMB148,745,800 and RMB9,593,000 respectively.

On 30 December 2019, the decision for the trial
of first instance was made by the Guangzhou
Intermediate People’'s Court that Guangdong GDC
was required to pay the property occupation fee of
the Pearl River Film Cultural Park and related interest
for the period between 23 March 2016 and 11
September 2019 in the amounts of RMB41,656,989
and RMB3,813,331, respectively.

Each of Pearl River Film Production and Guangdong
GDC filed an appeal with the Guangdong Higher
People’s Court. On 30 March 2021, a civil judgment
from the Guangdong Higher People’s Court was made,
the judgment from the Guangzhou Intermediate
People’'s Court was set aside and the case shall be
returned to the Guangzhou Intermediate People's
Court for re-trial. As at the date of this annual report,
no judgment in the first re-trial instance has been
handed down.
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UPDATE ON LITIGATIONS (Continued)

3.

In April 2019, Pearl River Film Production filed an
action with the People's Court of Haizhu District,
requiring Guangdong GDC and EM &S B ELEEIE
BPFR/AF], an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company (”Gaoshang Property Management*"”)
to pay the property occupation fee of the car park
of the Pearl River Film Cultural Park in an amount
of RMB26,457900 for the period between 1 August
2015 and 21 June 2018 and related interest in the
amount of RMB2,520,062 for the interest as of 27
March 2019.

On 30 April 2020, the decision for the trial of first
instance was made by the People's Court of Haizhu
District that Guangdong GDC and Gaoshang Property
Management were required to pay the property
occupation fee of the car park of the Pearl River Film
Cultural Park in the amount of RMB3,854,363 and
related interest for the period between 1 August 2015
and 21 June 2018.

The Guangzhou Intermediate People’'s Court made
the final judgment on 27 September 2020 in which
the original judgment was upheld. The judgment was
enforced by both parties in November 2020 and the
case proceedings were concluded.

On 8 March 2021 Pearl River Film Production has
applied to the Guangdong Higher People’s Court for
setting aside of the abovementioned final judgment,
and initiated a re-trial of the legal proceedings. As at
the date of this annual report, no judgment has been
handed down for the re-trial.

In April 2021, Guangdong GDC has initiated legal
proceedings against Pearl River Film Production,
claiming for the (i) return of capital contribution
invested in the construction for the Pearl River
Film Cultural Park and the related interests in the
amount of approximately RMB240,000,000 and
RMB54,900,000, respectively, and (i) compensation
on losses of RMB20,000,000 borne by Guangdong
GDC arising from the said investment due to breach
of contract by Pearl River Film Production. The
Guangzhou Intermediate People's Court has accepted
the filing of such civil action. As at the date of this
annual report, no judgment in the first instance has
been handed down.

Should there be any significant update, the Company will
make timely disclosure on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “"CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT"” and "ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT" of this annual report, the
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the operations of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group strives to conduct business in an environmentally
responsible manner. The Group has internal guidelines
on energy conservation and emission reduction so as
to minimize the impact on the environment and natural
resources during its operation. Details of the Group's
environmental protection measures and policies are set out
in the section headed "ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT" of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 53% of the revenue
for the Year and the largest customer included therein
amounted to approximately 16%. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
6% of the cost of sales for the Year and the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 2%. Save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best of the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company's total share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

RELATION WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group's success also depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers and
suppliers.
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RELATION WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS (Continued)

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. The objective of the Group's
human resource management is to reward and recognise
performing staff by providing a competitive remuneration
package and implementing a sound performance appraisal
system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training
and providing opportunities within the Group for career
advancement.

Customers

The CG creation and production division of the Group has
established good relationship with domestic and overseas
clients over the years. The division has maintained close
communication with clients and shared views with existing
and potential clients through participation in industry events
in order to have a better understanding of the clients’ and
the animated film industry’'s requirements for the latest
technology of animation production and its development
trend. This also facilitates the research and development of
computeraided animation software of the Group that caters
to the market demands and contributes to the provision
of quality and personalized production services to clients,
which in turn helps build up a long-term relationship with
clients.

In respect of the leasing business, the Group, dedicated
to improving the quality of property management services,
collects information through various channels, including
regularly visiting tenants, conducting annual survey on
management services and gatherings at leisure time with
a view to gaining a better understanding of the tenants’
general opinions on the services provided by the Group.
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RELATION WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS (Continued)

Suppliers

The Group carefully selects its suppliers and requires them
to satisfy certain assessment criteria including track record,
experience, financial strength, reputation, ability to produce
high-quality products and quality control effectiveness.
Sound relationships with key service vendors of the Group
are important in supply chain, properties management and
meeting business challenges and regulatory requirements,
which can derive cost effectiveness and foster long-term
business benefits. The key service vendors comprise
external consultants which provide professional services and
suppliers of office goods/merchandise.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting
period are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2021.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions, which were exempt
from any disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements
or do not constitute connected or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of the
Company and PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed
as the auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, both
with effect from 12 December 2019. Save as disclosed
above, there was no change in the auditor of the Company
in the preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. A resolution will be submitted
to the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
changes in information of Directors subsequent to the date
of the Company’s interim report 2021 are as follows:

1. Mr. Chen Zheng, a non-executive Director of the
Company, has been appointed as an executive
director of Greater China Financial Holdings Limited
which is listed on the Stock Exchange with effect
from 8 December 2021.

2. On 31 December 2021, Mr. Lam Yiu Kin, an
independent non-executive Director of the Company,
resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Bestway Global Holding Inc., which was delisted on
the Stock Exchange after privatisation on 12 October
2021.

By Order of the Board

Xu Liang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022

*For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 3L 4% BEM 35 55
i |

pwc

To the Shareholders of Global Digital Creations Holdings
Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Global Digital
Creations Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 117
to 234, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
("the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

° Valuation of investment property located in China

° Provision for rental and settlement payables in relation
to a commercial dispute and litigation

BB RE
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B BEN RS

Key Audit Matter
BRENSBE

Valuation of investment property located in China

R By R & 1418

Refer to Note 18 (Investment property) to the
consolidated financial statements.

BLHGEAMBEREME18(REME) -

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the
Group's investment property located in Shenzhen,
China (“Property”) amounted to HK$260.6 million.
2021124318 - BEEEUAFEIRIINIRE
ME([MEDNRAER2606 BEETT °

Management engaged an independent external
valuation expert to assess the fair value of
the Property. The valuation requires the use
of judgement in determining the relevant
methodologies and key assumptions used
including market rent and yield rate used in the
valuation model. We focused on this area due to
the financial significance of the Property to the
Group and the judgement and estimates involved
in assessing the fair value of the Property.
BERECEZEBAIMMEEERT ENRAARE -
HEAFRANECEBETERBRRR  SFEE
RARGERANTSHEERKGEEX  -HRYEYE 8%
Er B E 2 R E M E R DB R e HIE &
et MEPIEINEERSE -
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
EMNEFT N EERERETTEE

Our procedures in relation to assessing management’s
valuation of the Property include the following:

BABREFEEEBHMENGENEFBREATSEIA -

o Understood and evaluated the relevant controls
over the valuation of investment property
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.
TREFEHREMEGENRBZES - LR
Z R T T HERZE R EME A R EZEKFE
(BlaRiE Mt - FEM B RHRERERE X
HEFERME) - MG E AR E AR -

° With the involvement of our internal valuation
experts, discussed with the external valuation
expert and assessed the methodology and
the key assumptions used in estimating the
fair value of the Property and challenged the
judgement and estimates involved in the
calculation with management.
BERRFPABEEZER - BINFMEEZFETH
i o MEHERAR A M ERARENTTERBERRE
#& - WRLETE RS R A K& REIRE R G
B o

o Evaluated the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuer.

AHESNBEERMEE « BN REFEIE -
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BB RE

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
EMNEFT N EERERETTEE

Examined the relevant methodologies and key
assumptions used in the valuation model with
the management to identify any significant
differences in prior period assessment of
the valuation of Property to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation
process.
HEREESEMERETRMERNERTER
ARERR e - RAYEGRETERS
TREAZE LGB REGTBRENERIE -

Assessed the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the key assumptions by
making reference to comparable market
evidences on property prices and market rental
rates, and taking into account the contractual
terms and conditions, location and other
individual factors.
FRS2EMEEBREMBSHEENA ELRT SR
B RET KA KRR B AR - 1t B K B {E Rl
xMAERBRESEEREIE -

Based on the procedures performed above, we found
the judgement and estimates made by management
in determining the fair value of the Property to be
supportable by available evidence.

BIE P PTETEVRF  RFBEREEBEEWELR
BRF P 1E B9 HI T 2 (A EH RIS R P 55 o
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B BEN RS

Key Audit Matter
BRENSBE

Provision for rental and settlement payables in
relation to a commercial dispute and litigation

BRI R B EN 2 RAGE S

Refer to Note 27 (Provision for rental and
settlement payables) to the consolidated financial
statements.
FELHERAVERENF27(ENEES REERE
#) -

Refer to Note 4(a) Critical accounting estimates
and judgements — Estimation of provision for
rental and settlement payables.
2T 4e) AR e HEE LA ERNES N A
BB EMhE -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
a provision for rental and settlement payables
amounting to HK$222.9 million in relation to a
commercial dispute and litigation with ZK/I&E
FRFAABMRAT (“Pearl River Film Production”)
in respect of the investment and operation of
a cultural park — K X({LEZXE (the “Cultural
Park”).

R2021F12A318 - EXEHREKIEZHAE
RARI (TR ES ) ARARE MK EXLEEE - Ik
X LEXRR ([ XEEXE ] EmEUD MFAAR
ENHE RERERBEE22298E BT -
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
EMNEFT N EERERETTEE

Our procedures in relation to assessing the provision
of rental and settlement payables as at 31 December
2021 include the following:

BMB BTG 2021 F12 A31 BENHEE R4 E 30
HORRFBEATRIE

o Understood and evaluated the relevant controls
over the provision for rental and settlement
payables in relation to a commercial dispute
and litigation and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.
THREAEEHERZEUDRFLAEENENESD
NMEEFBEOERRES - WiBEERMA T
EMARE R EAME A Rk E =K (Plang gt -
FHE - BEREBRERERRIRFFAOKE) -
MR E AR R R ) E A R -

o Examined the relevant judgements and
estimates used in the provision for rental and
settlement payables with the management
to identify any significant differences in prior
period assessment to assess the effectiveness
of management’s estimation process.
HERERSCHERNEE RAERBERER
HOAERE I N b5t - HEE R F BB ERE A
FRIEAER - UL EREGFHARN AR

° Understood and evaluated the background,
status and potential exposures in respect of
the litigation by enquiring with management
and the lawyer.

FBRBAEEBREM  THRIETEFLNE
= R RBER R -
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Key Audit Matter
BRENSBE

Management engaged an independent external
lawyer to assist in assessing the magnitude and
likelihood of occurrence for the possible outcomes
of the litigation as at 31 December 2021 based on
the relevant information obtainable at the relevant
stage of the litigation, including court decisions
and related legal correspondence. Management
also engaged an independent external valuer to
assist in assessing the fair value of the economic
benefits arising from occupying the Cultural Park
during the periods in dispute.

BERELRE—RB /MR - LARB R SFFANE B RS
RIS E B (B IR AR HIR R AR AR ) -
AW BT #E £ 2021 F 12 A 31 HRF AP BEELER
BROBERITEN BERENZE BB LINBM
BRD - LA Bh AT AL BRI UL EE R B Pl BE EE AR RO 88
BAZE A E ©

Based on the magnitude and likelihood of
occurrence for the possible outcomes of the
current litigation status as advised by the
independent external lawyer, and with reference
to the valuation results from the external valuer,
management determined that provision for rental
and settlement payables in relation to the current
litigation status amounting to HK$222.9 million is
required as at 31 December 2021 based on their
best estimate.

A8 M8 37 HINED 1R R BT 45 038 I 5 54K 0PI BEEE AR Y18
KRHOEE RN - AREREINSHERO(EELS
Rz ERBERKEM  EER 2021512831
HERBRFLMRABEENENHEREERER®R
2229E&ATT o
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BB RE

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
EMNEFT N EERERETTEE

Discussed with management and examined
major agreements entered into between the
Group and Pearl River Film Production in
relation to the Cultural Park and all relevant
legal documents in respect of the litigation.
HERENmEAR BEEERKTZERHEXUE
EXRFUMETERE  AREFAOEHEAE
ERX M e

Discussed with management to understand
and evaluate management’s basis and rationale
in arriving at the best estimate for the provision
for rental and settlement payables as at
31 December 2021, based on the relevant
information available at the relevant stage of
the litigation, including court decisions and
related legal correspondence, and the latest
development of the legal proceeding.

RIZF LA R AIFHOERBEN (BIAR AR
MEBERZEE) WERRFNRHER - BE
BEN®ATHNMTHEREEET 20215124
JNHEMNEE REERBENREMANELER
E I

Evaluated the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent external lawyer
and valuer.

FHEBEU N R REEMNEE - e I REE
M o

Discussed with the external lawyer and
obtained the legal opinion from them for
which management relied on in identifying the
magnitude and likelihood of occurrence for the
possible outcomes.

HANER R R - W BN R EGE IR E R R
Al RABREM LA e R AT IKSERERER -
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B BEN RS

Key Audit Matter
BRENSBE

Estimating the provision for rental and settlement
payables in relation to the litigation requires
significant judgements and estimates in assessing
the magnitude and likelihood of the possible
outcomes based on advice obtained from legal
advisors; evaluating the results with reference to
the fair value of the economic benefits arising from
occupying the Cultural Park during the periods
in dispute; and using appropriate methodologies
and key assumptions to determine such fair value
during the periods in dispute, including market
rental rates and vacancy rates.
HETEFAEENENHE REERBEZTERBE
EREMNEZRT G ARNEREE LA EERNERX
I R ET  sAEE2Z U BRARGAXXtEXE M
EENKBNGNARBERAGNES  MEREES
WAERBRBRETUHDBRANAAE  BFEMS
MERZEEE -

We focused on this area due to the financial
significance of the provision for rental and
settlement payables and the judgement and
estimates involved in assessing the provision.
MR ENEE MEERBEOM B EZ AR #
HPTS K ) FIE R Ak Et - MBI E IR %R -
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
EMNEFT N EERERETTEE

With the involvement of our internal valuation
experts, discussed with the external valuation
expert and assessed the methodologies and
key assumptions used in estimating the fair
value of the economic benefits arising from
occupying the Cultural Park during the periods
in dispute, including market rental rates
and vacancy rates, by comparing to publicly
available market data or documents provided by
management such as rental agreements.

#iE RN T IS BUR SR IR B TR L Y S (10
EineE) TR - ERBEMABEEZK - EHIN
BEEERET R - W AR A D EEREE R
YIEEXEMEENLENZNAE(BETS
MeERZEX)REANTERFERR -

Tested, on a sample basis, the key data input
in management’s calculation of the provision
for rental and settlement payables, including
agreeing the rental amounts and rental
periods to the relevant rental agreements;
and comparing the interest rates adopted by
management to the People's Bank of China's
basic borrowing rate.
RHMEREEAGEREAERNEE REERE
BN ANBEREE BEHEEBAHEERSR
WHERHEEH: REEREBRANXEHREH
ARRITHIEEET KA R EITLR -

Assessed whether the consolidated financial
statements have adequately disclosed the
details of the litigation.

AR A MG RERE D WERFADFS

Based on the procedures performed above, we found

the judgement and estimates made by management

in determining the provision for rental and settlement
payables as at 31 December 2021 to be supportable
by available evidence.
BIE FPmETTHRF - RAIFHRERBEEN 2021 F
12 A 31 B8V FERIH & & 45 8 RO I BT VR L B9 21 B R My
STERSRIBAI R o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lee Chun Wah, Ryan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SmEEEBRARK

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12A31 BILEE

2021 2020
Note HK$000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
Continuing operations BESEER
Revenue Wz 5 84,689 78,635
Cost of sales HERMA 8 (40,125) (42,833)
Gross profit EF 44,564 35,802
Other income Hu g A 6 20,850 13,061
Distribution and selling expenses % 4% $4ER 8 (11,452) (3,714)
Administrative expenses THAX 8 (37,407) (35,759)
Provision for impairment of TREERGHNEEZ
financial assets and contract BB
assets (242) (586)
Other gains, net Hihizs - 558 7 6,032 1,757
Operating profit RERF 22,345 10,561
Finance cost A& KA 11 (14) (65)
Profit before income tax RRETEBARF 22,331 10,496
Income tax expense FTSHim > 12 (6,368) (2,389)
Profit for the year from REFELE
continuing operations EBRzEERR 15,963 8,107
Discontinued operation BRIEEEETE
Loss for the year FEEE 15 (15,140) (1,035)
Profit for the year FERR 823 7072
Other comprehensive income: HZEWA :
Item that will not be reclassified T &E#H 7 EZE
to profit or loss: Bzl HE -
- Exchange differences on -BMEREREEMESE
translation to presentation ZIEN Z%8
currency 9,912 18,044
Other comprehensive income FEEMEERA
for the year 9,912 18,044
Total comprehensive income SFEZXEWRAZLE
for the year 10,735 25,116
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEBARR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZ2021F 12831 HILFE

2021 2020
Note HK$000 HK$'000
et FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year DT ATEMEE
attributable to: =R (BR) -
— Owners of the Company - RRBIFEA
— Continuing operations - BEKEER 15,963 8,107
— Discontinued operation - BRI EETE (10,295) (704)
5,668 7403
- Non-controlling interests - FEIERiE R
- Continuing operations - BEKEER - -
— Discontinued operation - BRI EETE (4,845) (331)
(4,845) (331)
823 7072
Total comprehensive income/ I\~ ALTEGEE
(loss) for the year 2EBA(BE) 258 -
attributable to:
- Owners of the Company - KRR)FAA
- Continuing operations - BEREER 38,795 51,647
— Discontinued operation - BRI EETE (19,088) (18,041)
— Non-controlling interests - JEIERR R 19,707 33,606
- Discontinued operation - BRIEREER (8,972) (8,490)
10,735 25,116
HK cents HK cents
B BN
Earnings/(loss) per share RATREBEEAEEER
attributable to the owners BR(BR):
of the Company: 13
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) &R EZAN & #5E
per share &R, (E8)
— Continuing operations - BEREER 1.06 0.54
- Discontinued operation - BRI R ETS (0.68) (0.05)
0.38 0.49

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income iL a2 U R 3% E B BE M B R — O B2
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. & °
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ERARRQF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

E B R AR R AR

As at 31 December 2021 72021F12H31H

2021 2020
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
orza FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 16 15,021 15,599
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 17 10,857 10,110
Investment property HEME 18 260,588 246,912
Interest in an associate R—EBE R T 2 #Es 19 - -
Movies and television B N EIREE RiE
programmes rights 20 1,196 11,606
Productions work in progress ERIETH 20 19,074 5,345
Deposits e 21 291 -
Total non-current assets FREEEHEEE 307,027 289,572
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets BUNEE 5 - 537
Trade receivables E&EHQ%%E\E%’? 21 9,578 10,178
Deposits, prepayments and Ee B REA
other receivables FEW I8 21 8,030 6,703
Restricted bank deposits BRHSISERITER 22 46,603 36,462
Cash and cash equivalents B LIBSEEY 22 318,845 306,850
Total current assets MEEEHLE 383,056 360,730
Total assets EEHE 690,083 650,302
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners & FEHE AEGERE
of the Company
Share capital A& 2 23 15,083 15,100
Retained earnings {REB B 86,591 82,180
Other reserves HibEE 25 404,822 369,888
Total equity attributable to ERARFEABRLERERE
owners of the Company 506,496 467,168
Non-controlling interests FEVERR e (142,681) (134,068)
Total equity ERBEE 363,815 333,100
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE SRR R

As at 31 December 2021 #2021%12H31H

2021 2020
Note HK$000 HK$'000
orza FET FET
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 492 50
Deferred government grants 305 A TR A #66 B - 190
Contact liabilities AHaE 5 2,221 1,982
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFMBHIEAE 28 24,466 20,974
Total non-current liabilities kRBEEHEEE 27179 23,196
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables BB SRR 26 - 108
Accruals and other payables FEATE A R H AR FIE 26 64,911 85,702
Provision for rental and FEAH R & Mo A5 B ZR B
settlement payables 27 222,949 196,570
Contract liabilities AHBE 5 673 3,501
Deferred government grants EIE AT B 195 548
Lease liabilities HEaE 17 690 447
Current income tax payable FEST BN HAFT 1S 1518 9,671 7130
Total current liabilities ik E=NEF L 299,089 294,006
Total liabilities BEHAE 326,268 317202
Total equity and liabilities ERMEEEE 690,083 650,302

The consolidated financial statements on pages 117 to 234
were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022

and were signed on its behalf.

Xu Liang

4=
RE

Director

EF

The above consolidated statement of financial position
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= AN >< 4=
MERDEHR
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2021 %12 831 BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTAREAEE
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling
capital reserves earnings Sub-total interests Total
x Rifite REEN gt FERES ait
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000
AT AT AT AT AT i
{Note 25)
(Wi 25)
Balance at 1 January 2020 MNE1A18 265 15,177 342,671 76,461 434,309 125,578) 308,731
Comprehensive income (loss) 2EUN/ (BB
Profitf(loss) for the year EEEH/ (ER) - - 7403 7403 (331) 7072
Other comprehensive income/(loss) E2ERA/ (BR)
Currency translation differences EhpEzE - 26,203 - 26,203 (8,159) 18,044
Other comprehensive incomeflloss) for the year ~ EFE2ENA/ (BE) - 26,203 - 26,203 8.159) 18,044
Total comprehensive income!/(loss) EERERN/ (KR 4E

for the year - 26,203 7403 33,606 8,490) 25,116
Transactions with owners AEEAETZRE
Repurchase of treasury shares ERRADE - (747) - (47) - (147)
Cancellation of treasury shares ERRAEE 77 77 - _ _ _
Transfer to statutory reserve E Ry 1] - 1,684 (1,684) - - -
Total transactions with owners BEEAETZRBEE (7 1,014 (1,684) (747) - (147)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R20205 12 A3 Azt 15,100 369,888 82,180 467168 (134,068) 333,100
Balance at 1 January 2021 W21 F1 18268 15,100 369,888 82,180 467168 (134,068) 333,100
Comprehensive income (loss) 2EUN/ (BB
Profit/lloss) for the year EEEF/ (BR) - - 5,668 5,668 (4,845) 823
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hy2ERA/ (BB
Currency translation differences ERREED - 14,039 - 14,039 4,127) 9,912
Other comprehensive incomeflloss) for the year ~ £EE 2 ERA/ (BiE) - 14,039 - 14,039 [4,127) 9,912
Total comprehensive income! loss) FE2AUA/ (FR) 48

for the year - 14,039 5,668 19,707 (8972) 10,735
Transactions with owners EREAETZRA
Partial disposal of equity interest in a subsidiary 1€ —FHBAT 2 BAER (Wit 250)

(Note 25(iv)) - 19,813 - 19,813 359 20,172
Repurchase of treasury shares ERRAEE - (192) - (192) - (192)
Cancellation of treasury shares ERRA (17) 17 - - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve EREETRRE - 1257 (1,267) - - -
Total transactions with owners AEEAETZRRAE (17) 20,895 (1,257) 19,621 359 19,980
Balance at 31 December 2021 RN E12B3N Azls 15,083 404,822 86,091 506,496 (142,681) 363,815
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity _FiLARE #Eas & B3R & BRI BT 5 — GBI A -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ERAERQA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F 12831 BILEE

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FEx FET
Cash flows from operating KRETHHRESRE
activities
Cash generated from operations &KZME7RE 30(a) 9,417 29,264
Income tax paid B ATER (82) (3,438)
Interest paid BRFLE (14) (65)
Net cash inflow from operating &&/F8) IR & mAFEE
activities 9,321 25,761
Cash flows from investing BREZHEREESRE
activities
Redemption of structured &l 4B 7 3K
deposits - 267,154
Interest received BT B 8,225 5,726
Additions on productions work  EREERE
in progress (11,645) (6,882)
Purchase of structured deposits ¥ B &/ 11750 - (267,154)
Purchase of property, plant RNEBYE - WER&E
and equipment (2,050) (1,856)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - BMERZEZ
property, plant and equipment FTiS 318 30(b) 115 75
Net cash outflow from investing & & /&8 7 IR & mH 58
activities (5,355) (2,937)
Cash flow from financing BMEEHRERE
activities
Principal elements on lease HEBGZAEHD
liabilities 30(c) (612) (1,694)
Repurchase of treasury shares  [E{FH& 7 B 23 (192) (747)
Net cash outflow from financing BI&EEE 2 IRE mH F5E
activities (804) (2,441)
Net increase in cash and cash RERREZEY>
equivalents BmFEE 3,162 20,383
Cash and cash equivalents at REYzRe MIReEEY
the beginning of the year 22 306,850 270,251
Effect of foreign exchange rate fﬁi&iﬁ ZEMH
changes on cash and cash R 8 B
equivalents 8,833 16,216
Cash and cash equivalents RERZBEESRESEEY
at end of the year 22 318,845 306,850
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be ARSI M E K e EEEM P — O BIE -

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited (the
“Company"”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 9
October 2002 as an exempted company with limited
liability. The address of the Company's registered
office is at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 4 August
2003.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in provision of computer graphic
("CG") creation and production services, intellectual
property (“IP")-based value-added digital visual
business, new cultural space integrating culture and
technology development business, and provision of
property leasing and management services in the
People's Republic of China (the “PRC").

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provided a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated. The consolidated financial
statements are for the Group consisting of Global
Digital Creations Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries.

2.1  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment property which are
carried at fair value.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TSRS MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards,
improvements and interpretations
adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new
and amended standards, improvements
and interpretations for the first time for
their annual reporting period commencing
1 January 2021:

HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2

The standards and amendments listed
above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect
the current or future periods.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards,
improvements and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet adopted

Certain new and amended standards,
improvements and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory
for 31 December 2021 reporting periods
and have not been early adopted by the

RRHBASZTERERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RE R

ERSTBEREE ()

2.1 REEEE)

(b)

E A 15 18 18] K FRAN .2 FT AT
RASIEET B ER ~ 2O %
P
AEBYRREFHEMNET
BEMELEZE 2021 F 12
ﬂmat%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%
RHIER A RE&IEF
ROZERI - M MR RE

Group:

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
BB RERNE 16K 2B
HKAS 16 (Amendments)

BEREERE 16K 2B
HKAS 37 (Amendments)
BHEEERIZE 7R B
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
BERBMEREREIF 2B
Annual Improvements Projects
FESHIRE
Accounting Guideline 5 (Amendments)
BEIESIES KB
HKAS 1 (Amendments)
BEHERE 15 283]
HKFRS 17
BB BRERERETR
HKFRS 17 (Amendments)
BEMBREENE 175 2B

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Amendments)

BRREBEST 2B
HKAS 1, HKAS 8 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 (Amendments)

BREEAF N BEEHENESR

LEBYHREENEBRES 258284

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

BBETERE 1252 185]
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

EREBREENE 0 LEE ST E
F 283 2 ER]

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 2021

2021 R E2019E MRS RIEENELER

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended
Use

W% - R &R - FRE R PREE

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BEAH - BITAHNKA

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

HE SR BNRL

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle

2018 5 % 2020 F 1A EA M 2 i

Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations
HREZHEFNEHETE

C\assmcatlon of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
BENRDAFERDHE

Insurance Contracts

RBRAER

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
%Eji&fﬁﬁiﬁﬁ‘l% 175fZ /nﬂ kA =)

Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause

ERAHESERERBREXNTERERNDE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SHERNHE

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising From
a Single Transaction

HE-XFEANEERBERBOELHE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

WEEEHBANIGASNEY BNEEHERTE

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning
on or after
RT3BEH
W2 EBERN
R EES

1 April 2021
202154718
1 January 2022

202241818
1 January 2022
20225 1A1A8
1 January 2022
202217318
1 January 2022
202241818
1 January 2022
20225 1A1A8
1 January 2023
20231718
1 January 2023
202351418
1 January 2023
202351818
1 January 2023

202351818
1 January 2023

202351818
1 January 2023

20231718
To be determined

/.

HE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards,
improvements and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet adopted
(Continued)

The Group is still assessing what the impact
of the new standards, interpretations and
amendments will be in the periods of initial
application. It is not yet in a position to state
whether these standards, interpretations,
and amendments will have a significant
impact on the Group's results of operations
and financial position.

2.2  Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity
where the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business
combinations by the Group (refer to Note
2.3).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR E MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (see (c) below), after initially
being recognised at cost.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2  Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(c)

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised
at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’'s share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates
are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in
an equity-accounted investment equals
or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in these entities. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity-accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in
Note 2.9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR E MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2  Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(a)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate
or equity account for an investment
because of a loss of control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate
or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(d) Changes in ownership interests
(Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquired business

° equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest'’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:
° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity's incremental
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms
and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’'s net assets
including goodwvill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker. The chief
operating decision maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of
the Company who makes strategic decisions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6  Foreign currency translation

(1)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The functional
currency of the Company's subsidiaries
operating in Mainland China (for the
purpose of this report,”Mainland China”
refers to the mainland of the PRC and
does not include Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan) is Chinese Renminbi (“RMB").
The Company functional currency is
RMB, while the consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar ("HKS$").

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in profit or
loss. They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and
qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment
in a foreign operation.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a net basis
within “other gains, net”
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TSRS MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

(iri)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of
foreign operations (none of which has
the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position

o income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions), and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(i) Group companies (Continued)

° all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful
lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements
and certain leased plant and equipment, the
shorter lease term as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of the
unexpired lease term
or their estimated
useful lives of no more
than 50 years

Leasehold Over the shorter of terms

improvements of the lease or 10 years

Equipment, furniture 5 years

and fixtures
Computer equipment 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount
and are recognised within “other gains, net” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields
and are not occupied by the Group. Investment
property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequently, they are
carried at fair value. Changes in fair values
are presented in profit or loss as part of other
gains, net.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have
an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
entity that has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale and that represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area
of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated
plan to dispose of such a line of business or
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale. The results
of discontinued operation is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets

(1)

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (“OCI") or
through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the
entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in
profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

21

Financial assets (Continued)

(1i1)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group
measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL'), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset.

Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets
is included in other income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other gains, net” together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as a
separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11  Financial assets (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures
all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when
the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognised in “other
gains, net” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as applicable.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables, see
Note 21 for further details.

Annual Report 2021 53R

BEESHBERME(£Z)
2,11 E@MEEE)
(i)  AE ()

(1v)

IRATAR

5= B BE1& LA A IR A
BRANEFE - BEAK
ErEREEDERREAM
E2EWAZINEAERE 2
NaERmELER A
B4 M BB R IR
KRERTEEHNHEER
o REFEREZBERAK
£8 5 Y HR 3R 38 2 #E ) R S
REENBRERAEM
YA e

CRMEEAANBEZEIHIEZ
ARNEEBBREERES
A SRR A [ R
@me OFR] PER(ME
) e

1A

7N & B 12 A B 1 B E ST AL
HBHK AT ENET T
AMEENAREERRE-
BB T AR A BURRE
EREBASARL -

RERESERERME » &
SEEREBUERERE
AIF IR AFF BB ITE -
EHRERB NI HEREK
RAEERAHR2HE
8 FEA2EME21 -



Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited R ERE BRI ZE R AR 2 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

2.14

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position where the
Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has also entered into arrangements
that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off
in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or
the termination of a contract.

Movies and television programmes rights
and productions work in progress

Productions work in progress

Productions work in progress are carried at
cost, less accumulated impairment loss. Cost
includes all direct costs associated with the
production of movies and television programme.
Productions work in progress are transferred
to “Movies and television programmes rights”
upon obtained the release permit licenses.

Movies and television programmes rights

Movies and television programmes rights are
carried at cost, less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation for these movies and television
programmes rights is charged to profit or loss
on the straight-line basis over the expected
useful life.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
They are generally due for settlement within 30
days and therefore all classified as current.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14

2.16

Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair
value. The Group holds the trade receivables
with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Further information
about the Group’'s accounting for trade
receivables are set out in Note 21 and the
description of the Group’s impairment policies
is set out in Note 3.1(b).

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the
Company’'s equity instruments, for example
as the result of a share buy-back plan, the
consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income
taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to
the owners of the Company as treasury shares
until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Group prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 60 days of recognition. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

The deferred income tax liability in relation to
investment property that is measured at fair
value is determined assuming the property will
be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets
are not recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2.19

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets and liabilities and
where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognition
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leaves) after deducting any
amount already paid.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19

2.20

Employee benefits (Continued)
Pension obligation

The Group operates various defined contribution
plans for its employees in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. A defined contribution plan
is a pension plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in
the current and prior periods. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the relevant regulations
of the PRC government, the subsidiaries in
Mainland China participate in local municipal
government retirement benefits schemes
(the “Schemes”), whereby the subsidiaries
in Mainland China are required to contribute
a certain percentage of the basic salaries
of its employees to the Schemes to fund
their retirement benefits. The local municipal
governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of those
employees of the subsidiaries in Mainland
China. Contributions under the Schemes are
charged to the consolidated income statement
as incurred.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties
and make good obligations are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Provisions (Continued)

2.21

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The discount
rate used to determine the present value is
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when goods
and services are provided to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and
the applicable laws, goods and services may be
provided over time or at a point in time. Goods
and services are provided over time if the
Group's performance:

- provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

- creates and enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

- does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

Revenue recognition (Continued)

If good and service transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the
contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains the
goods and services.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation is measured based
on one of the following methods that best
depict the Group's performance in satisfying
the performance obligation:

- direct measurements of the value
transferred by the Group to the
customer; or

- the Group's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance
obligation.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable.
When determining the transaction price to be
allocated for different performance obligations,
the Group first determines the fees that the
Group entities in the contract period and
adjusts the transaction price for variable
considerations.

The Group includes in the transaction
price some or all of an amount of variable
considerations only to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue from CG production

The Group provides CG production
services under contracts with customers.
Under the terms of the contracts, the
Group's performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date. Revenue from CG
production is therefore recognised over
time based on the stage of completion
of the contract using input method.

The Group’'s CG production contracts
include payment schedules which require
stage payments over the service period
once certain specified milestones are
reached. The Group requires certain
customers to provide upfront deposits
ranging from 10% to 30% of total
contract sum. When the Group receives
a deposit before service commences,
this will give rise to contract liability at
the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised on the specific contract
exceeds the amount of the deposit.

Revenue from television programmes
and movies

Revenue from television programmes
or movies is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains the
control of the television programmes
and movies and the Group has present
right to payment and collection of the
consideration is probable. The normal
credit term is 30 to 60 days upon
delivery. Such revenue includes licensing
income from television programmes and
movies and box office receipts.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(a)

Revenue from television programmes
and movies (Continued)

Licensing income of television
programmes and movies to customers
such as online platforms is recognised
at the beginning of the periods during
which the customers are able to use and
benefit from television programmes and
movies.

Box office receipts are variable
licensing fees and calculated based
on a predetermined percentage of the
proceeds received by the customers,
which are recognised as revenue on a
net basis when the sales occurs.

Patent fee income

Patent fee income relates to granting
licensees the right to use trademarks
created, developed and owned by
the Group in different categories of
licensees’ products, including license for
use on consumer products. The revenue
from the provision of licensing services
includes the minimum guarantee and
excess royalties. The minimum guarantee
is recognised over the licensing period
on straight-line basis and excess royalties
are recognised as revenue when
cumulative royalties exceed the minimum
guarantee.

Management service fee

The Group provides property
management services to tenants.
Income is recognised over the contract
period when the relevant services are
provided by the Group and the tenants
simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits provided by the Group's
performance. The Group typically
receives one-month management service
fee in advance at the beginning of each
month.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

2.22

Revenue recognition (Continued)

A contract asset is the Group’'s right to
consideration in exchange for goods and
services that the Group has transferred to
a customer. A receivable is recorded when
the Group has an unconditional right to a
consideration. A right to consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group
has right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfer a good
to the customer, the Group represents the
contract liability when the payment is made or
a receivable is recorded (whichever is earlier).
A contract liability is the Group's obligation to
transfer goods to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

° the profit attributable to owners of
the company, excluding any costs
of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Earnings per share (Continued)

(i1) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the
figures used in the determination of
basic earnings per share to take into
account:

° the after-income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.23 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-
lease components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based
on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

o the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in
the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts
with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for
credit risk for leases held by the Group,
which does not have recent third party
financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease,
e.g. term, country, currency and security.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability
° any lease payments made at or before

the commencement date less any lease
incentives received

o any initial direct costs, and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset's useful
life. While the Group revalues its land and
buildings that are presented within property,
plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do
so for the right-of-use buildings held by the
Group.

Payments associated with short-term
leases and all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23

2.24

Leases (Continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets
are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position based on their nature. The
Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received,
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in the profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and
are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose or giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial assets to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance.

The Group's risk management is predominantly
controlled by a central finance department (the “Group
Finance Department”) under policies approved by the
board of directors. The Group Finance Department
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in
close co-operation with the Group’s operating units.
The board provides written principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk.

3.1 Finance risk factor
(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. It
is exposed to foreign exchange risk
primarily with respect to US dollar
("US$") and HK$ denominated
transactions. Foreign exchange risk
arises where future commercial
transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities are denominated in
currency that is not the Company'’s
functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1  Finance risk factor (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
Majority of the cost and revenue
of the local operations are primarily
transacted in local functional
currency and therefore foreign
exchange transactional risks are
minimal.

Management manages its foreign
exchange risks by performing
regular review and monitoring
its foreign exchange exposure.
Management is of the view that
the Group’'s exposure to US$ is
minimal since HKS$ is pegged to
the USS.

As at 31 December 2021 and
2020, the Group has no material
foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities and does not
have material foreign currency
exposure.

Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating
cash flows are substantially
independent from changes in
market interest rates and the
Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets except for cash and
cash equivalents, details of which
have been disclosed in Note 22.

Credit risk
The Group's credit risk arises from

trade receivables,

contract assets,

deposit and other receivables, amount
due from an associate, cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits.
The carrying amounts of these financial
assets represent the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.
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FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Finance risk factor (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group
basis. Management considers the
Group has limited credit risk with
its banks which are leading and
reputable and are assessed as
having low credit risk. Majority of
bank balances are deposited with
reputable banks. The Group has
not incurred significant loss from
non-performance by these parties
in the past and management does
not expect so in the future. The
Group trades only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group’'s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. Receivable
balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has four types of
financial assets that are subject to
the expected credit loss model:

° trade receivables;

° contract assets;

° deposit and other receivables;
and

° amount due from an associate

While cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank deposits are
also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was
immaterial.
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3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1  Finance risk factor (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract
assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables and
contract assets.

To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables and
contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days
past due. The contract assets
relate to unbilled work in progress
and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss
rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the
loss rates for the contract assets.
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FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1  Finance risk factor (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract
assets (Continued)

Receivables relating to customers
with known financial difficulties
or significant doubt on collection
of receivables are assessed
individually for provision for
impairment allowance. The Group
also estimates the provision
for expected credit losses on a
collective basis by grouping the
trade receivables and contract
assets based on shared credit
loss risk characteristics and
collectively assessed for likelihood
of recovery, taking into account
the nature of the customer and
its ageing category, and applying
expected credit losses rates to
respective gross carrying amounts
of the receivables. The expected
credit losses rates are based on
historical credit losses experienced
over a period of 24 months before
31 December 2021 (2020: 24
months before 31 December 2020)
and are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking factors,
such as Gross Domestic Product
("“"GDP") and inflation, affecting
the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables. As at
31 December 2021, the expected
credit losses of these collectively
assessed receivable balances was
HK$26,000 (2020: HK$642,000)
based on expected loss rates
range from 0.02% to 0.26%
(2020: 0.03% to 100%) applied on
different groupings.
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3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1  Finance risk factor (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract
assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract
assets are written off where there
is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there
is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in
a repayment plan with the Group,
and a failure to make contractual
payments for a period of greater
than 180 days past due.

Impairment losses on trade
receivables and contract assets
are presented as net impairment
losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised
cost

The Group adopts general approach
for expected credit losses of
deposits and other receivables and
amount due from an associate.
Except for the amount due from an
associate which is fully impaired
during the year, the Group
considers these financial assets
have not significantly increased in
credit risk from initial recognition.
Thus, these financial assets are
classified in stage one and only
consider 12-month expected credit
losses. Considering the history
of default and forward-looking
factor, the expected credit loss is
immaterial.
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3

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Finance risk factor (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash, the
availability of funding from an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and
the ability to close out market conditions.

Due to the non-dynamic nature of
the underlying businesses, the Group
primary cash requirements have been
for payment for obligations under other
payables and accrued liabilities. The
Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through internal resources.

The Group's policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash balances to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and
long-term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’'s financial
liabilities, based on undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at
the date of consolidated statement of
financial position) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

3.2

Finance risk factor (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

e MR RE R

3 HREREEE)

3.1

BEREE ()
) REBELEE(E)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BHRBEARESR
On
demand Between
or within 1and 2 Carrying
1 year years Total amount
REEXR 15
H1FER F2% CH) REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 December 2021 7420215128318
Other payables HAER IR 28,607 - 28,607 28,607
Lease liabilities HEERE 712 498 1,210 1,182
29,319 498 29,817 29,789
At 31 December 2020 R2020%F12 A 31H
Trade payables T E SRS 108 - 108 108
Other payables Hib AR 31,500 - 31,500 31,500
Lease liabilities MEBE 453 b4 507 497
32,061 54 32,115 32,105
Capital risk management 3.2 EXEEER

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholder and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may return capital to
shareholder, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 were zero as the Group has no external
borrowing or debt.

AEEEEEAZBBRRRER
SEFBBERLE 2T URRR
DR L RS AREE R
HA R TRHBBZEARE
R E KA o

SRFTAABEARE  A&H
FEABRREE - BITHRM K
& & EARDRET -

HRAEBLBIISEESE
& At &N &EER20021F &
202012 A31 AWM ERAE
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3

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

This note explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair
values of the non-financial instruments
that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To
provide an indication about the reliability
of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three
levels prescribed under the accounting
standards.

The table below analyses financial
instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices)
or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).
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3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(1)

(1)

3 HREREEE)

33 QREMEE)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) DAEER (E)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1% o2 ERE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2021 }%2021%512H31R
Investment property ENE
- Office building NN - - 260,588 260,588
As at 31 December 2020 742020128318
Investment property REWE
- Office building = /YN - - 246,912 246,912
There were no transfers between levels 1, FRWRBEE 14 F24
2 and 3 during the year (2020: same). N 3z RIEEER (2020
F :M8R) o
Valuation techniques used to determine (i)  HAREEFEIRLLEL

level 3 fair value

The Group obtains independent
valuations for its investment property
every six months.

At the end of each reporting period, the
management update their assessment of
the fair value of each property, taking into
account the most recent independent
valuations. The management determine
a property’'s value within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates.

The best evidence of fair value is current
prices in an active market for similar
properties. Where such information is
not available the management consider
information from a variety of sources
including:

° current prices in an active market
for properties of a different
nature or recent prices of
similar properties in less active
markets, adjusted to reflect those
differences

CY-E3]
AEBELB6EAYHE
BV EETEEE -

RERSHKR BEES
SDERFONBULEE E
MEBRMELNENF
- BEEEZRAEN
NAEGBABERNERT —
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RAENRERELBL
Y EAEE BT 5T E A
Bff - HEZEFUEE
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ERAZERRNER
B
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3

166

FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

Valuation techniques used to determine
level 3 fair value (Continued)

o discounted cash flow projections
based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows

o capitalised income projections
based on a property’s estimated
net market income, and a
capitalisation rate derived from an
analysis of market evidence.

All resulting fair value estimates for
properties are included in level 3. The key
inputs under this approach are the price
per square metre from current year sales
of comparable lots of land in the area
(location and size).

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair
value

The following table summarises the
quantitative information about the
significant unobservable inputs used in
recurring level 3 fair value measurements

Fair value at
31 December
2020
R2020%
12A318
ZARE
(HK$"000)
(F#71)

Fair value at

31 December

Description 2021
R E

125318

it ZARE
(HKS000)

(F#7)

Valuation
technique

fEEBH

Office building 260,588 246,912

BAAE WA
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Range of
unobservable
inputs
ATRE
AUEE BAREN
BARE L]

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value

Unobservable
input

FURRBA
HERAAENER

175%

(2020: same)
(20205
1)

Yield rate The higher the yield, the
lower the fair value

hiz kE=as  AAERE

RMBY75
(2020:RMBS) per
Square meter

per month
AR#975T
(2020%

AR 957
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3 FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iv)

Valuation processes

As at both 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the fair value of the investment property
has been arrived at on the basis of
valuations carried out by Roma Appraisals
Limited, external, independent and
qualified valuer. Roma Appraisals Limited
is member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in
the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations.

The Group’'s finance department
reviews the valuations performed by
the independent valuers for financial
reporting purposes. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held
between the financial department and
valuer at least once every six months, in
line with the Group’s reporting dates.

At each financial period end, the finance
department:

o Verifies all major inputs to the
independent valuation report;

o Assesses property valuations
movements when compared to the
prior year valuation report; and

o Holds discussions with the
independent valuer.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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168

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group makes estimates and judgements
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed

below.

(a)

Estimation of provision for rental and
settlement payables

The Group is exposed to the risk of litigation,
regulatory judgements and contractual disputes
in the course of its operations in ¥kg XL EZE
(the "Cultural Park”). The Group evaluates
whether a present obligation exists under
the litigation claim after taking into account
all available evidence, including the opinion
of experts. A provision is recognised for the
litigation claim if the management of the
Company consider it is more likely than not
that present obligation exists and a reliable
estimate can be made on the settlement
amount of the claim. If it is more likely than
not that no present obligation exists, the Group
should disclose a contingent liability, unless the
possibility of any transfer of economic benefits
in settlement is remote. Changes in the
assumptions around the likelihood of an outflow
of economic resources or the estimation of any
obligation would change the values recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, provision for rental
and settlement payables of HK$222,949,000
(2020: HK$196,570,000) was recognised after
taking into consideration of the independent
external lawyer’s opinion and the status of the
litigations. For details for the litigation claim,
see Note 27

Fair value of investment property

The fair value of investment property is
determined by using valuation technique.
Details of the judgement and assumptions have
been disclosed in Note 3.3.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Provision for impairment of movies and
television programmes rights and productions
work in progress

At the end of each reporting period, the
management assessed the amortisation policy
and expected useful lives of the movies and
television programmes rights and productions
work in progress classified as intangible asset.
The determination of amortisation policy and
expected useful lives requires management'’s
significant judgement.

Other than the amortisation, the management
also assessed whether impairment indicator
exists on movies and television programmes
rights and productions work in progress and
provide impairment up to its recoverable
amount. For movies and television programmes
rights and productions work in progress, the
assessment was made on a film-by-film basis.
The recoverable amount of the movies and
television programmes rights and productions
work in progress was determined based on
the present value of the expected future cash
flow generated from the movies and television
programmes rights and productions work in
progress less future cost of revenue.

In determining the recoverable amount of
movies and television programmes rights and
productions work in progress, the Group takes
into consideration both internal and external
market information, for example, the sales
forecasts, the production, sales and distribution
costs budget and the general economic
condition of the relevant markets.

For the year ended 31 December 2021,
no provision for impairment of movies and
television programmes rights (2020: same)
and no provision for impairment of productions
work in progress (2020: HK$691,000) was
recognised. For details for provision, see Note
20.

4  EXREFEFTRAHE
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170

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of financial assets and contract
assets

The loss allowances for financial assets and
contract assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group's
past history existing market conditions as
well as forward-looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key
assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in
the tables in Note 3.

Income tax and deferred income tax

The Group is subjected to income taxes in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

The income tax expense or credit for the year
is the tax payable on the current year's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Segment information

The chief operating decision maker (“CODM")
has been identified as the Executive Directors.
The Executive Directors review the Group's
internal reports in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on
these reports.

The CODM considers the business from
service perspective and assess the
performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of adjusted profit before income
tax before unallocated income/expenses for the
purpose of allocating resources and assessing
performance. These reports are prepared on
the same basis as the consolidated financial
statements.

The management has identified two reportable
segments based on the types of services,
namely (i) CG creation and production and (ii)
new cultural space.

There were no material sales between the
reportable segments for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: same).
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5
(Continued)

(a) Segment information (Continued)

Wz ko HER (&)

(a) ZEER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ2021F12A31BLEE

CG creation
and New cultural
production space Total
E1&AI1E
REME XL HEH a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
- Revenue from CG production - 7 8 E S E&EE 2 A 2,806 - 2,806
- Box office receipts -BREIA 10,653 - 10,653
- Licensing income from - REBLTFAZERSFEREY
television programmes and ORI
movies to online platforms 5,699 - 5,699
- Patent fee income from - REREEEENEFIBBA
granting the right to
access of trademarks 1,225 - 1,225
- Management service fee - BEREE - 16,057 16,057
- Rental income - HelA - 48,249 48,249
Total revenue from external KEIIMNIEE 2 Wi 1asE
customers 20,383 64,306 84,689
Segment results NEEE (2,909) 44,753 41,844
Unallocated income AOEWA 66
Unallocated expenses ROBHX (19,579)
Profit before income tax from  REFELLEBL 2 RITERATE
continuing operations bl 22,331
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WKk oEBE R (£Z)

(Continued)
(a)  Segment information (Continued) (a) DEBEHR(E)
Other information: R E# -

Year ended 31 December 2021
BZ2021E12A31BLEE

CG creation
and New cultural
production space Unallocated Total
B
B A
REME  HEH FOE CL

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Depreciation of property, 1% - BERREZITE

plant and equipment (Hit8)

(Note 8) (662) (373) (243) (1,278)
Depreciation of right-of-use  [FFEEEINE (#/:18)

assets (Note 8) - (298) (647) (945)
Provision for impairment el —EE e ARFIE A

of amount due from an BB (Wit 33)

associate (Note 33) (242) - - (242)
Amortisation of movies and B K B8 80 B HuiE 2 B

television programmes (Hit8)

rights (Note 8) (10,622) - - (10,622)
Interest income (Note 6)  FISWA (H:#6) 7817 342 66 8,225
Government grants (Note 6) HfT#iB) (F16) 11,740 660 - 12,400
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(a) Segment information (Continued)

Wz ko HER (&)

(a) ZEER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2021
BEZ2021F12A31BLEE

CG creation
and New cultural
production space Total
ST
RBUE XHEE &t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Timing of revenue recognition  ZEHR 7 RAZEA KIS
for revenue from contracts
with customers
- At a point in time -RE-EY 16,352 - 16,352
- QOver time - BEESFE AR 4,031 16,057 20,088
20,383 16,057 36,440
Rental income Bl A - 48,249 48,249
Total revenue from external FEIBEP 2 Wiz ez
customers 20,383 64,306 84,689
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR E MR

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)

5

Wz ko HER (&)

(a) ZEER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A31 HILFE

CG creation
and New cultural
production space Total
B
Bl AIE
e XL E At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
- Revenue from CG production - & 8 EfSEl&EE 2 JA 14,585 - 14,585
- Box office receipts - ZEKA 728 - 728
- Licensing income from -REBLFAEGHER
television programmes and EHRERA
movies to online platforms 2,820 - 2,820
- Patent fee income from - RERLEEENEFIBBA
granting the right to access
of trademarks 1,314 - 1,314
- Management service fee - BEREE - 13,440 13,440
- Rental income - el - 45,748 45,748
Total revenue from external REINRKPz Wz es
customers 19,447 59,188 78,635
Segment results NEEE (14,819) 42,696 27877
Unallocated income FOBERA 738
Unallocated expenses AAERX (18,119)
Profit before income tax from  REBELLEL 2
continuing operations BR PTG RS A 10,496
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 Wk oEHER (&)
(Continued)
(a)  Segment information (Continued) (a) HBER(E)
Other information: R E# -

Year ended 31 December 2020

176

BZE2020F 12 B31 BILFE

CG creation
and New cultural
production space  Unallocated Total
B
BlEIE
R XEHZEE vl Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FAET FET FAET
Depreciation of property, 0¥ BEIREZNE
plant and equipment (Hits)
(Note 8) (1,804) (234) (480) (2,5618)
Depreciation of right-of-use  fFREAEIE (4/:18)
assets (Note 8) - (161) (1,721) (1,882)
Provision for impairment of W E S8 7 HERE
trade receivables (Hizt21)
(Note 21) - (586) - (586)
Provision for impairment BEYREREARERTE
of movies and television 58 2 REREWZS)
programmes rights and
productions work in
progress (Note 8) (691) - - (691)
Amortisation of movies and  E N ERE B Mg 2 B
television programmes (Hit8)
rights (Note 8) (6,580) - - (6,580)
Interest income (Note 6)  FIEMA (H77#6) 5318 175 216 5,709
Government grants (Note 6) Biff#E) (f1516) 5,937 632 516 7135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR E MR

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)

Wz ko HER (&)

(a) ZEER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12 A31 HILFE

CG creation
and New cultural
production space Total
B
Bl AIE
REUE el ik At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Timing of revenue recognition  IZEHER 7 RAZEA QMU
for revenue from contracts
with customers
- At a point in time -RE-EY 3,648 - 3,548
- Over time - BEERLE 15,899 13,440 29,339
19,447 13,440 32,887
Rental income He WA - 45,748 45,748
Total revenue from external REINPEP 2 Wi B8
customers 19,447 59,188 78,635
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e RS

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(a) Segment information (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

5 Wz ko HER (&)

(a)

DEER (E)
MR 20214 K 202061243182

DHEERBEMT:

Year ended 31 December 2021
EZ2021512B31BLFE

CG creation
and New cultural
production space Unallocated Total
E&AIE
REHE  XEHZEH RAE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEn FET FET
Segment assets DEEE 277,845 335,339 76,899 690,083
Segment liabilities NEEE 50,311 36,345 239,612 326,268
Additions to non-current AEFRIDEE
assets 15,178 - 1,949 17127
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZ20205 12 A31 BILERE
CG creation
and New cultural
production space  Unallocated Total
B
B el
REE  XEHZER ROM aFf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Segment assets NHPEE 279,997 285,657 84,648 650,302
Segment liabilities HEBE 50,427 54,586 212,189 317,202
Additions to non-current REFRBEE
assets 9,750 21,080 88 30,918
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e ISR E MR

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a)

Segment information (Continued)
Geographical information

The following table shows revenue generated
from the reportable segments by geographical

area as according to the location of the
customers:

Wz ko HER (&)

(a) ZEER(E)
i & FY

TRETEBEPUERILRE

ﬁﬁ_ .

B AT EE £ HY I

DHHAEZ®mD A

2021 2020

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Mainland China AR B i 83,902 78,541
Hong Kong BB 177 94
Others H A 610 -
84,689 78,635

The following table shows non-current assets
by geographical segment as according to the
location where the assets are located:

NRERRIBEE E TR RIR
B RE D HIERBEE

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Mainland China R R A, 304,860 288,460
Hong Kong BB 2,167 1,112
307,027 289,572
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e RS

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a) Segment information (Continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing 10% or
more of the total revenue of the Group are as

follows:

Customer A ZFEA
Customer B ZFB
Customer C BEC
Customer D ZFED

5

Wz ko HER (&)

(a) ZEER(E)

T ERLEN

DTS 4 7 56 4 3 1 10%
A L2 B -

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT FETT

9,186 -

- 9,925

10,312 9,655

13,245 -

(b)  Assets and liabilities related to contracts
with customers

The Group has recognised the following

(b) EEFEWNHBNEERAER

REBECDHIATEEFSLOMNE

assets and liabilities related to contracts with N EENREBE :
customers:
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contract assets (Note (i) BHEBE KL G) - 537
Contract liabilities EHEE
- Revenue from CG creation - A TISEGEIER & EY
and production (Note (ii) Wz (BEE (i) 2,894 5,411
— Management services fee - BBREE (W17 (i)
(Note (iii) - 72
Total contract liabilities A4 BERE 2,894 5,483
Notes: Bt -

(i) These contract assets arise from CG creation
and production for the portion of fee that the
Group had not invoiced to customers in relation
to performance obligations that have been
satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)  Assets and liabilities related to contracts
with customers (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii) These contract liabilities arise from CG creation
and production when the Group received
payments from customers in advance. Decrease
in contract liabilities balance is due to decrease
in overall contract activities.

(iii) These contract liabilities consist of advanced
payments received from customers who have
leased the Group's properties.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities:

The following table shows how much of the
revenue recognised in the current year related
to carried forward contract liabilities:

e MR RE R

5 Wz ko HER (&)

(b)

HEFENMEBNEERER
(#%&)
Wizt - (&)

(ii) = K Bl 5 8 f’E&*‘WEZ/\ZﬁE
%%Eﬂi‘il? A TR M B P 3R
REREE - é%’ﬂ%%ﬁ%%ﬁi?ﬁiQ\
EHNEES IR -

(i) ZEAEMEEAKCEE ZIS‘%
R/ ES RS Sl € S EEN B
RRK -

HEKREHBE BERKA -

TRETNFERIN KRS HE
REANAEHRRENTE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue recognised that was REHFAS DB BTN
included in the contract BRI ¢
liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year:
- Revenue from CG creation - REBIEE&GAIEREEZ
and production e zs 2,521 820
— Management services fee - BERRGE 72 265
2,593 1,085
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e RS

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)  Assets and liabilities related to contracts
with customers (Continued)

Unsatisfied performance obligation:

The following table shows unsatisfied
performance obligations with aggregate amount
of the transaction price allocated to contracts
that are partially or fully unsatisfied as at
the end of the year and are expected to be
satisfied in the following time bands.

Wz ko HER (&)

(b) HEHEFENHEBENEEREE
(/”/;-:g
KRIETTHIEXIZT -
TRETRERDEERLDHE
MARBTANNRZHEEBRILIEA
IR T OISR R B 1T 2 RIBTT
HIB KIS -

N

Revenue from

CG creation
and  Management
production services fee Total
REEMK
E& Al B
REEzKR R & a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
As at 31 December 2021: 202112 A31H
- Within one year - —EPR 937 5,323 6,260
- More than one year but not - BB—FEFZRESE
more than five years 850 8,957 9,807
- More than five years -BERE 1,449 1,200 2,649
3,236 15,480 18,716
As at 31 December 2020: 7202012 A31H
— Within one year - —FHUR 3,190 4,524 7714
- More than one year but not - HBE—FALLRRLE
more than five years 966 6,046 7012
- More than five years -BELE 1,012 1,716 2,728
5,168 12,286 17454
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e MR RE R

OTHER INCOME Hiplr A
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Government grants (Note) BT B (B7aE) 12,400 7135
Interest income B U A 8,225 5,709
Others Hih 225 217
20,850 13,061

Note: Hiat -

During the year ended 31 December 2021, government grants
included subsidies and awards of HK$11,842,000 (2020:
HK$5,795,000) received from the relevant authorities in the PRC
which are incentive payments to the Group whereby no future
related cost is required or expected to be made.

In addition, an amount of HK$558,000 (2020: HK$824,000)
is related to government grants on computer equipment
acquisition which are amortised to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income during the year on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of the acquired assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, government
grants of HK$516,000 are grants from Employment Support
Scheme (“ESS"”) under Anti-Epidemic Fund, which is related to
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19"). There are no unfulfilled
conditions or other contingents attached to the grants.

HZE2021F 12 A3 BLLEE » WFHEBEE
B B AR RE M W ER 2 11,842,000/% 7T (2020
F 1 5,795,000/870) ML R HEE) - EAY A
E@8 7 BEFE - WEARE g AR RE

540 - 558,000 7T (2020 4F : 824,000 7T )
ZEeBEBEEKKEBEZBFREER - I
REBZREABEEZ Mt Al FRFRIAELR
REEE LA 2 ERARE -

H 22020128318 It F & BT & B
516,000/ 8 L AR B ZIEESE MR E
B (R ZEE ) WFB) > E2019BRAESE
75 ([COVID-19]) B 78 » ;2B EEEHT K12
FRAG 1 SR EL A SR ARG o

Hiblzs - FEE
OTHER GAINS, NET
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Gains on disposal of property, HEME - BENMERE 2z W=
plant and equipment 95 34
Change in fair value of investment &&WENEZ B (Hfit18)
property (Note 18) 6,038 1,867
Exchange losses Ve 5 E51a (101) (144)
6,032 1,757
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8

EXPENSES BY NATURE

8 RHMEAASZEX

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Employee benefit expenses EERNFE (Hat)(#iE9)

(Note) (Note 9) 38,787 41,253
Marketing expenses TIGERRS 10,069 2,683
Subcontracting and movie PBEBMNEYREE

services fee 548 5,633
Amortisation of movies and BN ELRETE i #iH

television programmes rights (Ktit20)

(Note 20) 10,622 6,580
Provision for impairment of movies & & EARED B ke M ERE B

and television programmes BB (K 20)

rights and productions work in

progress (Note 20) - 691
Utility expenses IKEE 6,945 5,547
Legal and professional expenses JAENBERGE 2,674 2,146
Consultancy fee (Note 33(a)) AR & (/7% 33(a)) 2,880 2,880
Depreciation of property, plant M - BB REEITE (K57 16)

and equipment (Note 16) 1,278 2,518
Real estate duty and land use tax FEEM T {FEBT 2,524 1,744
Deprecation of right-of-use assets {FREEZEZITE (#1:iF17)

(Note 17) 945 1,882
Rental expenses for short-term REEE s HeMX

lease 1,145 187
Auditor's remuneration ZER S

- Audit services - BER 1,320 1,320

— Non-audit services - JEEATARTS 360 360
Cleaning expenses BRE 1,116 1,001
Travelling expenses (Note) EIRE (HiE) 1,480 605
Others (Note) HAth (K732) 6,291 5,376
Total cost of sales, distribution HERAN « DHEMEERI UK

and selling expenses and TR 8%

administrative expenses 88,984 82,306

Note:

For the year ended 31 December 2021, research and
development costs of HK$13,134,000 (2020: HK$14,562,000)
have been incurred and HK$10,807,000 (2020: HK$3,650,000)
has been capitalised in movies and television programmes

rights and productions work in progress.
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EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)
Note: (Continued)
Below represents the research and development costs which

are recognised within “cost of sales” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the year.

e MR RE R

8 BRMEASZHAX(E)
Mg (%)

AT RHMERS  ZRXEFEFE2EKA
WP [HERAR] PRER -

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Employee benefit expenses BEERAFEX 1,653 8,988
Travelling expenses ERE 6 7
Others Hitp 668 1,917
2,327 10,912
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EERBFMAX
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Wages, salaries and bonus T8 - HFamiEs 48,430 47065
Pension costs — employer’s RIREKA - BERFERRK
contributions to defined BEEGENC =,
contribution plans (Note) 6,837 1,673
Other benefits HAth a7 947 722
56,214 49,460
Less: Amount capitalised in movies i : AL EEBE K&
and television programmes BAREN B i &
rights and productions work ERIEEAZ
in progress
Wages, salaries and bonus T8 - HFamEs (14,688) (7823)
Pension costs — employer’s RIREKA —BEMRER-R
contributions to defined BEEGENC =,
contribution plans (Note) (2,607) (338)
Other benefits HAER (132) (46)
(17,427) (8,207)
38,787 41,253
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e RS

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) EEERMX(E)
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of sales THERM A 14,277 18,150
Administrative expenses ITHHEX 24,510 23,103
38,787 41,253

For the year ended 31 December 2021, employee
benefit expenses of HK$17,427,000 (2020:
HK$8,207,000) have been capitalised in movies and
television programmes rights and productions work in
progress. The amount will be subsequently recognised
in “cost of sales” when obligations are performed.

Below represents employee benefit expenses
incurred from the Cultural Park during the year which
are classified as “discontinued operation” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

HZE2021F12A3MBIEFE: BB
& F FH %17427000% JT(20204F :
8,207.0008 L) EEAMELAEBEF L ER
EEMRENERBHEN - BERAOK - %
TEEBEEASTE [SHERMA ] RRER -

UTRFEEBXICEXRBEELZEEE
MAX - REa2mBARRKRAED R
BIERIEEEER] -

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Wages, salaries and bonus TE& - FreamiEe 4,146 3,659
Pension costs — employer’s BKESRAN EXAATHK
contributions to defined FHEIA R
contribution plans 299 287
Other benefits HAth a7 142 /8
4,587 4,024
Note: Biat -

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group (the employer)
and its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
generally at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The monthly
contributions of each of the employer and the employee are
subject to a maximum contribution of HK$1,500 per month
(for period after 1 June 2014) and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. The Group has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for employees
of its subsidiaries established in Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2021, there were no forfeited contributions
available to offset future retirement benefit obligations of the
Group (2020: same).

Five highest paid individuals:

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include two (2020:
two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented in Note 10. The emoluments

9

e MR RE R

BEBANEX (&)

Mg < (4)
REREEEEANAT - AEBARERE
PO 37 40 BB 23 ) 0 B 1) B3 B SR AR

S -

M2021F12A31H - HIETARKELAEE
RGBSR T E LU FR (2020 - FEE]) ©

hfismEFMAL

FR - AEBRUESHMHALTS - M
% (2020F - MB) BEE - FEZHSE
EMFEI02ZzoNMRM - 2 FES
FRBTN =R AT (20204 : =%) W3k

paid/payable to the remaining three (2020: three) ARARESEIERTHAR  BEEN
individuals who are neither a director nor chief SN Z S FBT ¢
executive of the Company during the year are as
follows:
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Wages, salaries and bonus IE& - HFaeiEs 2,375 3,272
Pension costs — employer’s BEREHRA EERAFREEIGTEN
contributions to defined e
contribution plans 131 54
2,506 3,326

The emoluments for these three individuals (2020:
three) fell within the following bands:

ZE=# (20205 : =B) AL ZBIE A
TEHER :

2021 2020
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,0008 7T 3 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T % 1,500,000 % 7T - 2

During the year, no emoluments have been paid by
the Group to the directors or the five highest paid
individuals mentioned above as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office (2020: Nil).

AEBWEETMESS AL RS M
AT NEMBE - LEARSERERN
MAKINAREEZ 2 BB BB E
(20204 : 4®) o
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10 BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 10 BEEZEANRANZE
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERBSTHAENEH
The remuneration of each director and the chief HE2021F 12831 B IEFE -
executive for the year ended 31 December BREZER&ESTEA B FH M
2021 is set out below: mn
Employer's
contribution
Estimated toa

mongy value ~ retirement
Discretionary ~ Housing ~ of other benefit

Name Fees Salary  bonuses allowance  henefits  scheme Total
fEim
EfEAN  BRAER

#t4 fit B¢ BREL  RERM (GIEWEE REGMR ait

HKS000  HKSO0D  HKSOO0  HKSUOD  KKSUDD  HKSUO0  HKSUOO
fér  TEr  TEr  FEn FEx FEr fEn

Executive directors #ires
Wi Xu Liang (Chairman) BERL(ZE) - - - - - - -
Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu (Note {i) BE=RL (B2 - 1,100 - - - 5 1,155
M. Wang Hongpeng A,y 1,080 0 - - 18 1818
M Xiao Yong BBRE - 569 145 - - i 785
- 2,149 865 - - 144 3,158
Non-executive director FHES
M. Chen Zheng Rtk 150 - - - - - 150
150 - - - - - 150
Independent non-executive directors  BUFHTES
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law BUHHR 20 - - - - - 40
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin i 10 - - - - - 240
Mr. Zheng Xiaodong Hpars 40 - - - - - 40
M. LiYao (Note i) BEREWEH ) 14 - - - - - 4
834 - - - - - 834
Total At 984 2,149 865 - - 144 4,142
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10 BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 10 EEZHEFKRFIZEE)
(Continued)
(a)  Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) ESBSKBESTHBAEWHIN(Z)
(Continued)
The remuneration of each director and the chief HZE2020F12A31BIEFE -
executive for the year ended 31 December BUEZERERTHA B8 &b
2020 is set out below: wmr
Employer's
contribution
Estimated toa
money value  refirement
Discretionary ~ Housing ~~ of other benefit
Name Fess Salary ~ bonuses  allowance  benefits  scheme Total
EtM
RN RIOGE
14 s ¢ BB REEL GHYREE  EORT G
HS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSUOD  HKSUOD  HKSOOD
78T FET FEL AT 7T FET AT
Executive directors 4173
Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu (Chaiman) (Note (i)~ BEF%+(28) (W& 1) - 2640 - - - 132 2
Mr Wang Hongpeng A 7 - 1,080 - - - 18 1,098
Mr. Xu Liang et - - - - - - -
M. Xiao Yong BERE - 486 200 - - 13 699
-4 20 - - 6 45
Non-executive director FiEE
M. Chen Zheng Bl 687 - - - - - 667
697 - - - - - &
Independent non-executive directors  FUAETES
M. Kiwong Che Keung, Gordan (Note (i) E5% %t (K i) u - - - - - 9
Prof, Japhet Sebastian Law BUIR 20 - - - - - yli
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin MESLE 240 - - - - - 240
Mr. Zheng Xiaodong Hrris 204 - - - - - 204
178 - - - - - 178
Total A 1,465 4,206 200 - - 163 6,034
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e TSRS MR

10

190

BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Ms. Cheng Xiaoyu was retired on 30 June 2021.

(ii) Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon was retired on
22 May 2020.

(iii) Mr. Li Yao was appointed on 29 March 2021.

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any retirement benefits during the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any termination benefits during the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services
(2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
there is no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected
entities of such directors (2020: Nil).
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EEBARAE(E)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EERESITHRAENHM (&)

Hiat -

(i) TEHEF 2+ 202146 A30H
BT -

(i) BB EoR S AR 20205 A22 H
RIE -

(iii) FEERAER2021FE3 A29HE
E1{E o

EEZENRER

HZE2021F12A31BIEFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RE R

BENEFIT AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 10 EECHEFNEFZFE)
(Continued)
(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions, () EENRE RHHENTHNE

arrangements or contracts
Save as disclosed in Note 33,

no other

transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the years or at any time

during the years.

o
BRI S3 FTREES - ADFE
455 42 10 4F SR 4 O AE TS R 7
B A2 A BT 47 B A
EEEBEMIEATS  BH
RAKTRAEEREE EA
s -

FINANCE COST 11 ®BWERE
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Finance cost on lease liabilities HEBGBEZBEKA (14) (65)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 FrEHAx
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Continuing operations BEKEXR
Current tax: BIHATS 1A -
- Hong Kong profits tax - BAENER - -
- PRC corporate income tax - PRI EREH ([REMEH])
("CIT") 3,575 2,186
— Over provision for prior years - AR E 2 BRE A (19) (20)
3,556 2,166
Deferred income tax (Note 28) ELEPRS R (Mat28) 2812 223
Income tax expense Frigfif 2 6,368 2,389
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12

192

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes:

a.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as there is
no assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the year
(2020: Nil).

PRC CIT represents taxation charged on assessable
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the cities in Mainland China in which the Group
operates. The tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries in
Mainland China is 25%, except for two subsidiaries (2020:
three subsidiaries) of the Group in Mainland China which
were approved as High and New Technology Enterprise
and accordingly, it is subject to a reduced preferential
CIT rate of 15% for a 3-year period according to the
applicable CIT Law.

According to applicable tax regulations prevailing in the
PRC, dividends distributed by a company established
in Mainland China to a foreign investor with respect to
profits derived after 1 January 2008 are generally subject
to a 10% withholding tax. Such dividend rate is further
reduced by applicable tax treaties or arrangement.
According to the tax treaty arrangement between
the PRC and Hong Kong, the withholding tax rate on
dividends paid by a Mainland China resident enterprise
to a Hong Kong resident enterprise is further reduced to
5% if the Hong Kong resident enterprise holds at least
25% equity interests in the Mainland China resident
enterprise.

As at 31 December 2021, there was no deferred income
tax provided (2020: same) in relation to the unremitted
earnings as the Group's management has approved
that Mainland China subsidiaries have no intention and
are not probable to declare dividend in the foreseeable
future and the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is decided
that the unremitted earnings will not be remitted in the
foreseeable future.

According to relevant laws and regulations promulgated
by the State Tax Bureau of the PRC that was effective
from 2018 onwards, enterprises engaging in research
and development activities are entitled to claim 175%
of their research and development expenses so incurred
as tax deductible expenses when determining their
assessable profits for that year (“Super Deduction”).
The Group has made its best estimate for the Super
Deduction to be claimed for the Group's entities in
ascertaining their assessable profits for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR E MR

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12

The income tax expense on the Group's profit before
income tax from continuing operations differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the
taxation rate of the home country of the Group
companies as follows:

FrigBimx% (&)
AEBREFELE XTI

ERY:Il

A Z IS RIARRBAKERELZ
MERMAEIERVBZEZRBMD

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Profit before income tax from KA ERESER 2B ITERATS R
continuing operations 22,331 10,496
Tax calculated at the domestic tax %@ B E B8 B K & 5 f B A 7 R
rates applicable to profit in the HERRIE
respective countries 7,369 3,352
Income not subject to tax A ERFLUA (11) (125)
Expenses not deductible for tax  FLFE M S T~ FHFHFEX
purposes 679 599
Tax losses not recognised REERT G EE 565 957
Utilisation of previously B AL H R IER 2 B B 1R
unrecognised tax losses (83) -
Effect of Super Deduction granted #4539 B A4 fff /& A &)
to certain subsidiaries in Mainland BEEIEMN 7 £
China (2,132) (2,374)
Over provision for prior year PARISFE 2 tBEa B (19) (20)
Income tax expense for the year K BEEEREER
from continuing operations ZFEEERES 6,368 2,389
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13 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13 BREF(BR)
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners ZNA&3EH AER 2T
of the Company (E18)
- Continuing operations - HRKEER 15,963 8,107
- Discontinued operation - BRI TS (10,295) (704)
5,668 7403
2021 2020
No. of No. of
shares shares
B AR Sk 4=
‘000 ‘000
FR FR
Weighted average number of BT R INEFHE
ordinary shares in issue 1,509,917 1,514,074
2021 2020
HK cents HK cents
B JEN
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss)  FRREREEERF, (E8)
per share
- Continuing operations - BFECEER 1.06 0.54
- Discontinued operation - BRIEREER (0.68) (0.05)
Total basic and diluted earnings SR EZANERESE ~ B F|40%E
per share 0.38 0.49
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year excluding ordinary
shares repurchased by the Company (Note 23).

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the same as basic
earnings/(loss) per share as there were no potential
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the year
(2020: same).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend is paid, declared or proposed during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, and no
dividend has been proposed since the end of the
reporting period.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In prior years, the Group was involved in the investment
and operation of the Cultural Park through a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group. As a result of the full
impairment of the investment property of Phase | of
the Cultural Park as set out in Note 27 the Cultural Park
operation was classified as discontinued operation since
1 December 2018. Certain costs continued to be incurred
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 as
the matters as set out in Note 27 remain unsolved.

13

14

15

e MR RE R

BREF(FHE)(#F)

BREARER, (BE)WAETERE
RAREEAEIMEGEFBRARFERNE %
TEBRZ MEFIH (TREEARIRE
LA ) (fisE23) °

ERFRNREDEITHNEEESER
B mEREEsEN (BB ES
MEXRZEF,(EE)HRE (20204 : 18
@) e

B S

H 220214 K2020F12 A31H It
B BERM - SRR IR ST
B BARSREHRA R INE 2 R

B °

ERIEREEK

RBEFE  AEEFAAEE—HFE
2EMBARZEXICEXENRE R
BIE EREXLEXRE —BH2EE
YIEERTRE (RMIFE27 HEE) - X
(FEEXREZLEDE2018F 12 A1 HiEE
FREACRIECEER - ARIEERHK
FE2THMEEMABR - BE2020F K&
2021 F 12 AN BHIEFENEEEES
FRCA o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 15 CRIEKEER(EF)
Financial information relating to the discontinued ERIEREEBRFANIMBER N
operation for the year is set out below: N
Cultural Park XALEEE
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income Efbug A 843 113
Other losses, net HibEstE - HEE (3) (4)
Administrative expenses ITHFAX (9,198) (8,804)
(Provision for)/reversal of e REEMAS (BE) B OEE
provision for rental and
settlement expenses (7,963) 7662
Loss before income tax BTSRRI E B (16,321) (1,033)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FrsfiEe, () 1,181 (2)
Loss for the year from RADKRIEEEERZ FEEIE
discontinued operation (15,140) (1,035)
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from KEEB2H S (Rd) / RAFE
operating activities (Note) (K1) (4,416) 11,311
Net cash inflow from investing KEEFH 7B R A FEE
activities 21 19
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from MEEBHSRA (L) FE
financing activities 5,000 (10,305)
Net increase in cash and cash ERIEREER 2 Re MNRE
equivalents in discontinued ZEVIEINFRE
operation 605 1,025

Note: Net cash inflow from operating activities for the year

Kiat -

ended 31 December 2020 included the cash received
from the release of one bank account of the restricted

bank deposits (Note 27).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR E MR

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y¥ BERRE
Equipment,
Building Leasehold  furniture and Computer Motor
(Note ()] improvements fixtures equipment vehicles Total
B %l G
(W) BExE R&E EERE nE &
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAT FAT FAr FAT AT AT
At 1 January 2020 22051518
Cost i - 1975 5,033 37555 4572 49,135
Accumulated depreciation Zithe - (1.778) (4,766) (34,038) (3762) (44,364)
Net book amount BEFE - 197 27 3517 790 4771
Year ended 31 December 2020  HZ 2020
12ANALEE
Opening net book amount ENEREE - 197 27 3517 790 4
Additions (Note (i) REWn) 11,807 - 19 1737 - 13,663
Depreciation (Notefi) REMW) (205) (197) (276) 2713 (221) (3612)
Disposal hE - - 1) (39) (5) (45)
Exchange realignment 3k 647 - 16 158 1 822
Closing net book amount EXERTE 12,049 - 125 2,660 565 15,599
At 31 December 2020 #2020512831R
Cost A 12,466 1,975 4,74 35,953 3,756 58,894
Accumulated depreciation 2ifng (217) (1,975) (4,619) (33,299) (3,191) (43,295)
Net book amount EESE 12,249 - 125 2,660 h6b 15,599
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16  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16  #13 - BERRME (&)
Equipment,
Building Leasehold  furniture and Computer Motor

(Note ()] improvements fixtures equipment vehicles Total
B R &

(Hitl) il e R#E ElRE at- &

HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS 000

A1 FAT FAr AT TET FET

Year ended 31 December 2021  BZ 2021512831 BLEE

Opening net book amount ENEEEE 12,049 - 125 2,660 566 15,599

Additions TE - 234 234 1582 - 2,050

Depreciation (Note (i) wEMW) (377) (30) (102 (2,369) (182 (3,050)

Disposal HE - - (10) - (12) (22)

Exchange realignment ERRE 370 - 10 63 1 444

Closing net book amount ERERFE 12,24 204 257 1,946 37 15,021

At 31 December 2021 RONE12R31H

Cost s 12,848 233 3,151 33,71 3,005 53,061

Accumulated depreciation ZifnE (606 29) (2,894) (31828 (2,683 (38,040)

Net book amount BEE 12,242 204 257 1946 37 15,01

Notes: Hiat -

(i) As set out in Note 26, the building acquired during the (i) B 26 ATt - A ZE 20204 12 A 31
year ended 31 December 2020 is located at Foshan, the AILEFEBENEFURPEFHLT -
PRC.

(ii) Depreciation expense of HK$932,000 (2020: (ii) FERMK932,0008C(2020F
HK$1,830,000) has been charged in “cost of sales” 1,830,000 70) B AT AT SHER A A -
HK$346,000 (2020: HK$688,000) in “administrative 346,0007% 7t (2020 5 : 688,000 7T )
expenses” and HK$32,000 (2020: HK$71,000) has ErFATITERAZ ] A M32,000%
been charged in “discontinued operation” The remaining 7L (20204 : 71,0008 70) EFFATE
amount of HK$1,740,000 (2020: HK$1,023,000) R EETE | o #2581,740,00078 7T
represents amount capitalised in movies and television (20204 : 1,023,000 7T) B & A{LTE
programmes rights and productions work in progress. EYLERMEMERTRHERN - &
The amount will be subsequently recognised in “cost of EITHER  ZoBBBEERATH
sales” when sale is performed. B ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

This note provides information for leases where the
Group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

17

e MR RE R

EREEENREERE

ARG AR BEARRANE
&2 AR -

(i) HEHESUBKRABRTFEINE

statement of financial position =L
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Land use right + Hb {5 A 9,614 9,621
Buildings B3 1,197 427
Office equipment PRERE 46 62
10,857 10,110
Lease liabilities HESE
Current E 690 447
Non-current JERH 492 50
1,182 497

Additions to the right-of-use assets during
the year ended 31 December 2021 were
HK$1,401,000 (2020: HK$9,350,000).

HZE2021F12A31BIEFE -
¥ 1% {5 B M & B2 1,401,0000%8 I
(20204 : 9,350,000/ 7T) ©
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17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

17 FERAEEEREEREE)

(i)

AHREZEHBABRKRABRR ZE
o

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Depreciation charge of right- FREEEZITE
of-use assets
Land use right T Hb{E AR 298 161
Buildings gF 631 1,704
Office equipment WNEHRME 16 17
945 1,882
Interest expense (included in R E X H (BFEBEKERN)
finance cost)
Buildings B¥F n 60
Office equipment WRERE 3 5
14 65
Expenses relating to short- EHGHME 2R (BEETH
term lease (included in HXA)
administrative expenses) 1,145 187

The total cash out flow for leases during the
year was HK$626,000 (2020: HK$1,759,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Group leases various land, offices and
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 2 to 33 years and do not
have extension options.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets are not used
as security for borrowing purposes.

200 Annual Report 2021 53k

(iii)

FR-BEMNHR LS RLERE
£626,000/87C (2020 F
1,759,000 7T) °

AEBNEEEIREARLERK

AEERERZR L  BAE
K- IRl HEARHBESR
NF2EBFHNETFEHR - B8
BEHEEE -

HERZRENEEZTE LB
%18 [R50 B AR 1 o BRI
AFRENHEEEEMNERER
S HHE 15 R AR E (225 -
HEEETHIERERER



Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited R ERE BRI ZE R AR 2 7
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e ISR E MR

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18 BREWE
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
Non-current assets - at fair ERBEE - BANRE
value
Opening balance as at 1 January #1 A1 BE&4 246,912 229,922
Net gain from fair value NAERE FRE
adjustment 6,038 1,867
Exchange realignment PE o, % 7,638 15,123
Closing balance as at R12 A31 BERE
31 December 260,588 246,912
The investment property is located at Shenzhen, the KEMFL AR E AR o
PRC.
The following amounts have been recognised in the HIREMERGEE2EBARKPEHE
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for RAT R -
investment property:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental income from operating RELEHE 2 HSWBA
leases 48,084 45,748
Net gain from fair value NAERE 2 FWE (Kaz7)
adjustment (Note 7) 6,038 1,867
Direct operating expenses from  E4AHSWANYE Y BEELLHY
property that generated rental
income (2,650) (1,915)
Refer to Note 3.3 for the fair value estimation on the BRIREMENRAAEGRE - B2 REM
investment property. 3.3¢
Refer to Note 31 for minimum lease payments EHBEYMEHENREEKEEN
receivable on leases of investment property. ;o E2HEMEST -
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19 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19

Set out below is the associate held by the Group as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 and is accounted for
using the equity method.

Opening balance at 1 January B A1 BEYEH
Share of result JEIE 34

R—EBE QT 2R

LA 2 AREER 2021 € K 2020512 A
N HEEMNBE QR - WEHRAEREZ

At

H o
Ean

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET T

Closing balance at 31 December 12 A 31 BEKRAH

Particulars of the associate, which is unlisted, as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

%2021 4 }20209F12A318 » 3 £
MZBERRZHBOT

Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ value of issued share
establishment/ capital held by the
Name of entity operation Group Principal activities
MR HAKEREZERITR
ERER B3 E i B AEREEL A FEEK
2021 2020
G.D.C Institute of Digital Macau 49% 49% Provision of CG animation
Media Technology (Macau) creation and production
Limited ("IDMT (Macau)”) services
RIRBUBH BRI ORFI) A R REBEKEGBERIERR
PR A A ([IRIRERTS 1ERRTS
OCRFI) 1)

No summarised financial information in respect of
the Group's associate is set out as the financial
information of IDMT (Macau) is considered as
immaterial during the year ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.
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e ISR E MR

MOVIES AND TELEVISION PROGRAMMES 20
RIGHTS AND PRODUCTIONS WORK IN

EXNRERTERERERGH

PROGRESS
Movies and
television Productions
programmes work in
rights progress Total
EREGERE EHRHE aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 R20205181H
Cost DN 61,688 11,541 73,229
Accumulated amortisation ESg T (55,166) (2,778) (57.944)
Net book amount FEFE 6,522 8,763 15,285
Year ended 31 December 2020 & %2020 &
12A3NALEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 6,522 8,763 15,285
Additions NE - 7905 7905
Transfer #ig 10,993 (10,993) -
Amortisation b (6,580) - (6,580)
Impairment loss BEERE - (691) (691)
Exchange difference &7 Z%8 671 361 1,032
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 11,606 5,345 16,951
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20

204

MOVIES AND TELEVISION PROGRAMMES 20
RIGHTS AND PRODUCTIONS WORK

PROGRESS (Continued)

At 31 December 2020

IN

R2020512H31H

EXNRERTEREREREGE (&)

Movies and
television Productions
programmes work in
rights progress Total
BRTARE  EREE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET TET

Cost AN 77,324 9,034 86,358
Accumulated amortization 2Ty (65,718) (3,689) (69,407)
Net book amount IRMEFE 11,606 5,345 16,951
Year ended 31 December EZ2021F12 831 HLEEE
2021

Opening net book amount FYEREFE 11,606 5,345 16,951
Additions NE - 13,385 13,385
Amortisation 3 (10,622) - (10,622)
Exchange difference R 212 344 556
Closing net book amount FREEFE 1,196 19,074 20,270
At 31 December 2021 R 2021512 H31H

Cost B AR 79,690 22,876 102,566
Accumulated amortisation Sty (78,494) (3,802) (82,296)
Net book amount BREFE 1,196 19,074 20,270

For the year ended 31 December 2021, amortisation
amounting to HK$10,622,000 (2020: HK$6,580,000)
was included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “cost of sales”

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no provision
for impairment of movies and television programmes
rights (2020: same) and no provision for impairment
of productions work in progress (2020: HK$691,000)
was included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “cost of sales”
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MOVIES AND TELEVISION PROGRAMMES
RIGHTS AND PRODUCTIONS WORK IN
PROGRESS (Continued)

The Group has entered into a joint operation
arrangement to produce a movie (2020: same). The
Group has participating interests of 49% (2020:
same) in this joint operation. The aggregate amount
of this intangible asset recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position relating to the Group’s
interests in this joint operation arrangement is
approximately HK$13,652,000 (2020: HK$4,712,000).

TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(i) Trade receivables

20

21

e MR RE R

EXRERHARERERGE (F)

REEBIVAELHUNRE—SER
(20204 : #8[]) - AEERZAEEF
B49% W2 Bz (20204F - FHRA)) »
REBT BRI BRRPERNEREE
EZeELHPHIERER I ZERE
E # 4 % %) 513,652,000 7T (2020
£ :4,712,00077T) ©

BHREZHRR #E BAARKRHEAM
WA

(i) EREZRXR

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

Trade receivables from KEHEERFANZEWNE FIER
contracts with customers 4,538 4,999
Rental receivables FEUHE & 5,066 5,821
9,604 10,820
Less: Provision for impairment J& : B RE (26) (642)
9,578 10,178
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21 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(i) Trade receivables (Continued)

Except for rental receivables from tenants,
which is due for settlement upon issuance of
invoices, the Group generally grants a credit
period ranging from 30 days to 120 days. The

21 ERESKRXR BE AIRRHEA
FEWRIR (2)

(i)

FEWR & 5 BRK (42)

B FE TR HH P U 2 2 WA B
HERRRINMEEI  AEE—
REEHNFI0HE120HHEE
Hi - B BRI EREH

aging analysis of the gross trade receivables HZ BREC D ATIAT
based on invoice date is as follows:

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current to 90 days BIEAZ 90 H 8,246 10,166
91 to 180 days 91 H£180H 1,358 12
Over 180 days 180 B E - 642
9,604 10,820

The Group has applied the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires the
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the assets. This provision
matrix is determined based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. Note 3.1(b)(ii) provides for
details about the calculation of the allowance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables (Continued)
Movements in the provision for impairment of

e MBEREMEE
BRE SRS EE - BARREL
ARV ()

(i) BRESRMRGE)
EWE SIRFBERBNEEE

trade receivables are as follows: SIAT
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Opening loss allowance at B 1 A1 BREYSERE
1 January 642 456
Increase in loss allowance REBEERZ REFELSEER
recognised in profit or loss 2 R EIE N
from continuing operations - 586
Receivables written off during &= A s M SE Uk O] 7 FE W BE 30
the year as uncollectible (629) (436)
Exchange realignment VE i, 2L 13 36
Closing loss allowance at ®12 A 31 BMEREE
31 December B 26 642

The carrying amounts of trade receivables
approximate their fair values.

Balances are denominated in RMB and there
is no concentration of credit risk with respect
to trade receivables as the Group has a large
number of customers.

The creation and release of provision for
impaired receivables have been included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

EUEZERFOREAERIER
JofE -

RBBRAAREIIE BRAEH
BRERERP HUEKES KR
REEERBRIL T EH -

T M5B RO M 938 4 0 B 2 AR T
EffASZSEZERAREKRA - &
BHAS W DEINR D - HEH
TRESURBEHME -
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21 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(ii)  Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

21

BRESER BE FAARKRHEAM
e o8 (48)

(i) #E AARREMERFER

2021 2020

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Deposits e 434 901

Prepayments KRS 1,329 1,168

Other tax receivables HubpEURFi%A 980 776

Other receivables Hip e z1a 5,578 3,858

8,321 6,703

Less: Current portion R - BIEAER (8,030) (6,703)

Non-current portion FERNHRER 291 -
Denominated in: YIE -

- RMB - AR 7,552 5,823

- HK$ -ET 769 880

8,321 6,703

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments
and other receivables approximate their fair

values.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 22

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

BeRBLZEMURERETE

=k
TA

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Restricted bank deposits (Note) — BGR&RITIER (H1:E) 46,603 36,462
Cash at bank RITRE 82,845 174,627
Fixed deposits THIFER 235,974 132,150
Cash on hand FEBES 26 73
365,448 343,312

Denominated in: YA -
- HK$ - BT 8,714 8,905
- RMB - AR 341,912 301,405
- Us$ - %7 14,781 32,958
— Others - HAh a1 44
365,448 343,312

Reconciliation to consolidated statement of cash
flows

The above figures reconcile to the amount of cash
shown in the consolidated statement of cash flows at
the end of the financial year as follows:

HESREREBRNLR

A EEFRPBEREER

TR BERERNT

ERERM

2021 2020

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Balances as above XGRS 365,448 343,312

Restricted bank deposits BRE4HRITER (46,603) (36,462)
Balances per consolidated IMERESRERTER

statement of cash flows 318,845 306,850
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23

210

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 22 RBReRELEZEVWURERFERTE
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS (Continued) (&)
The fixed deposits were highly liquid with THEREERaSONRBME R
original maturities of three months or less. As at A A=1{EH=xFm- - ©n2021F12
31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents A31B AEEBEMNE & KR & EE
of approximately HK$295,261,000 (2020: Y1 47295,261,0007%8 70 (2020 F
HK$264,868,000) of the Group were denominated in 264,868,000 7T) LA RESIE - WiF
RMB and deposited with banks in Mainland China. Ef(Eq:‘lWimE’JfEﬁ‘:F' o ARKFIER
The conversion of the RMB denominated balances KRB IR R INEE JH 8 T R B BT AR AR /Y
into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and 9\\[’%%‘17‘%%5\%1%%& o
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government.
Note: K -
As at 31 December 2021, approximately HK$46,603,000 (2020: M2021F12 A31H - & BB X It 5t X ft E
HK$36,462,000) were restricted deposits held at one (2020: XEFDLERERMNES BERHITFR
one) bank account as reserve under a court order granted for a 46,603,000 7T (20204 : 36,462,000/ JT )
litigation claim on the Cultural Park (Note 27). f?%f:;ﬁ%ﬁ —(ARITARS (20205 : —{E) (Ff
27
SHARE CAPITAL 23 &
Number of
ordinary shares Nominal value
ZBERROEE H{E
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: ERE
As at 1 January 2020, 2020118
31 December 2020, 2020 12 431 H ~ 2021 F 1
1 January 2021 HA1HK2021912 A31H
and 31 December 2021 % 0.01 T
at HK$0.01 each 2,400,000,000 24,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR
As at 1 January 2020 at 20201 A1 8
HK$0.01 each Bix0.018T 1,5617,721,540 15,177
Cancellation of treasury shares JE{FA%D 5+ (7686,000) (77)
As at 31 December 2020 and  A2020F 12 A31 B K
1 January 2021 at HK$0.01 20211418 -
each B 0.01 8T 1,510,035,540 15,100
Cancellation of treasury shares [E{FEA%D 5% (1,774,000) (17)
As at 31 December 2021 at 2021124318 -
HK$0.01 each FR0.01 87T 1,508,261,540 15,083
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SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company repurchased a total of 1,774,000 (2020:
7598,000) of its own shares on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited at prices ranging from
HK$0.103 to HK$0.116 (2020: HK$0.079 to HK$0.157)
per share for a total consideration of approximately
HK$192,000 (2020: HK$747,000).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The shareholders of the Company adopted a share
option scheme at the annual general meeting on 18
June 2013 (the "“2013 Share Option Scheme”). No
share option has been granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

An option may be exercised at any time during the
period to be determined and notified by the Directors
to the grantee but may not be exercised after the
expiry of ten years from the date of offer of that
option. Option is immediately vested at the date of
grant and a consideration of HK$1 is payable upon
acceptance of the offer.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors,
and will not be less than the higher of the nominal
value of the share on the date of offer, the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer;
and the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer.

No share option was granted or exercised during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

23

24

e MR RE R

A (42)

R2021F12A31H IEFE - AQ 7
TEBBEXZFMBRAGNEGRE
% 77 F0.103% JT £0.116 7% 7t (2020
F:0.0798LE0.157 L) BEA &
1,774,000 & (2020 4F : 7,598,000/%)
RARRGD - BRELNR192,00087T
(20204F : 7470008 7T) °

BRESE

RARKEPR2013F6 A18H BT 2
BERAF RS RBEMNTOERETE
([2013 R #ERTEI]) - B H HiE -
BB IR I 2013 B E AR A 5T 21 E R
Hl' °

BRETRESETIT NG FEEAZH
MAZ ERERITE B ERENH
HARBETm T2 1TE - BRENIK L A
AV ZASE MEMEZLNREZNRE
1787 ©

TEEHEREET A8 TMERENA
Hifth 2 HfE - AARIRMHNELH
ZHH B R B R B 24 A BAT AL (E
LERAZTHRHE(ARSERE)

B 220214 2020412 A31 8 1t %
& BER D ERESEITEREARE -
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25 OTHER RESERVES 25 Htf#E
Share Capital  Contributed Property Treasury
premium  contribution surplus Statutory ~ revaluation Exchange Special share
18s8Ive 1S8IVe reserve reseIve 18serve 18S6IVe reserve reseve Total
kiaE%R ARl HARE VEEL ERRH
1 i i ] EERE 1 EiGaE RhlGE 1 Ait
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
AT AT AT FAT AT AT AT FAT AT
(Note (i) Note (i) (Note i) (Note fiv))
aEn)  wEm)  WE ) (it ()
Balance at 1 January 2020 RNNE11RER 75,799 b 245,831 8,120 45,787 (31,395) (1,983 (13) 342,671
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef2EHRA
Currency translation differences ~ EHREZS - - - - - 26,203 - - 26,203
Total other comprehensive Rf2ENALE
income - - - - - 26,203 - - 26,203
Transaction with owners BEEARGLRA
Repurchase of treasury shares BTz IR EEE - - - - - - - (47) (47)
Cancellation of treasury share  ERRGEH (683) - - - - - - 760 7
Transfer to statutory reserve EUEEERR - - - 1,684 - - - - 1,684
1683) - - 1,684 - - - 13 1,004
Balance at 31 December 2020 2020512 31 &R 75,116 5 245,831 9,804 45,787 (6,192) (1,953 - 369,888
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OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 25 HitbfEE (&)
Share Capital ~ Contributed Property Treasury
premium  contribution surplus  Statutory  revaluation  Exchange Special share
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
R EER EAER HARg NEEfR EfRkf
i fife iR EERRE ik ELGHE IR R At
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
Fér F&r 77 Fér Fér F&r 77 Fér 273
(Note (i)~ (Note (i) (Note (i) (Note fiv))
WM mE ) i) (H fiv))
Balance at 1 January 2021 RNNE11RER 75,116 445 245,881 9,804 45,787 (5,192) (1,953) - 369,888
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef2EHRA
Currency translation differences ~ EHREZS - - - - - 14,039 - - 14,039
Total other comprehensive Rf2ENALE
income - - - - - 14,039 - - 14,039
Transaction with owners HERARTZRA
Partial disposal of equity interest ~ HE—FHBAR FHER
n a subsidiary (Note (iv) Witli) - - - - - - 19,813 - 19,813
Repurchase of treasury shares jEl: - - - - - - - (192) (192)
Cancellation of treasury share  BZR[HH (175) - - - - - - 192 17
Transfer to statutory reserve Yy - - - 1,257 - - - - 1,257
(175) - - 1251 - S T 11 - 8%
Balance at 31 December 2021 2021512318 74,941 445 245,881 11,061 45,781 8,847 17,860 - 404,822
Notes: Hiat -

Capital contribution reserve represents accumulated
effect of imputed interest on amount due to other
related parties.

Contribution surplus reserve represents (a) the
difference between the nominal value of share capital
of the Company and the aggregate amount of nominal
value of share capital of subsidiaries acquired by the
Company through an exchange of share pursuant to
a group reorganisation which was completed on 31
December 2002 and; (b) the transfer of the share
premium reserve to contributed surplus reserve which
was applied to eliminate the deficit of the Company.

(if)

AREHH R R A 708
ZHEENBZ REtHE -

BARRFEEE (@) AN A R RAEEEA

NAEIRESEBEEA (2002412 A31
B 5K ) BB MR IR FT R B I B A 7]

AmELRE 2 =58 & (b) RDEER

gﬁﬁ&@)\&ﬁ%ﬁﬁw&%zkﬁiz
5/“ o
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25

OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Articles of Association of the companies
incorporated in Mainland China now comprising
the Group, it is required to allocate at least 10% of
their after-tax profit according to the PRC accounting
standard and regulations to the statutory reserve until
such reserve has reached 50% of registered capital.
Appropriations to the enterprise expansion fund and
staff welfare and bonus fund are at the discretion of
the respective board of directors of the subsidiaries.
The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to
offset prior years' losses, if any, and may be converted
into registered capital in proportion to their existing
shareholding, provided that the remaining balance of
the statutory surplus reserve fund after such issue is no
less than 25% of registered capital.

The special reserve is generated from the transactions
with non-controlling interests relating to the change of
shareholding in subsidiaries.

On 11 January 2021, the Group disposed of 10% equity
interest in Foshan Global Digital Media Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (@R LIRRES AR BR A R]) (“Foshan GDM"),
a then wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the
Group, to Foshan Xincai Property Development Co.,
Ltd.* (fBIL{E M B XA EFRAR]) (“Foshan Xincai”) for a
non-cash consideration by transferring the legal title of a
property with a fair value, net of tax, of RMB16,984,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$20,172,000) to the
Group. After the transaction, the Group owned 90%
equity interest of Foshan GDM. Refer to Note 26 for the
details of the arrangement. The effect of change in the
ownership interest on the equity attributable to owner
of the Company during the period is summarised as
follows:

25

Hetfd s (&)
e - ()

(iii)

(iv)

BRIEFRABEBEEEREIERAEEA
X HY 1 HR B 9 b s A SZ B R B YA B
Z2 0 ARAIRPBRY 2K B ARA
EPRgER KR EIEERERZNE
L10% P ERELATEGBRFEE  BEEMHHE
HEETHFMRAZ 50% ALk - ¥
BREESUNETRAMESES B
FHWBARSEMNESRSSIRTE < AT
BN TE S ] LA A 2RO 4 LA BT FE AN fES
B(nAa)  WAMRHEIR AR AE L i ik
BEMER  BETEROEATRHB AT
SHEIEBLREME RN 25% °

B o 28 9 B R AR 2 T A5 P
BARRELED XS -

R2021F1B1MH AEEBERE HE6GH
IR PR ES H R AR A A ([ 1L
IRBEGER ) (AEEERNEES
BEHBRAR)10%KETHLETHEE
MEARAB(TBLEE]) RS
REFBAAEEEREAABARE
16,984,000 7T (#H & 74 49 20,172,000 7
L) (BEHMBRBIE) IWESEMERES
i o X5k - AEE A G ILIRIRETS
IHE290% g - BREL HEFFIB B2
5126 FTEREEZHEHARGEFEA
HAAE(R RS E T

2021
HK$’000
FET
Consideration received from partial disposal HE—RBRAR Z o R mEZ KE
of equity interest in a subsidiary 20,172
Carrying amount of non-controlling interest BRI IR A M s 2 BR (B
acquired (359)
Excess of consideration received recognised Rz TERHIZEIMEELE
within equity 19,813

* English entity name is for identification purpose only
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26 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER
PAYABLES

(i)

(i)

Trade payables

The ageing analysis of the trade payables based
on invoice date were as follows:

Current to 90 days BIEAZ 90 H

26

e MR RE R

BRESRNR  EBtERARAEMERN

bS]

(i) ENEZERX
N E SRR IZERE R 2Rk

DITEE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TETT
- 108

The carrying amounts of trade payables
approximate their fair values and are

denominated in RMB.

Accruals and other payables

BN EZERANRAERIER
SfE - EAAREIIE -

(i) EEERREMENYIR

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Receipt in advance (Note) UK (B7aE) 24,480 43,923
Accruals FETE 4,050 4,355
Salary payable R E e 11,204 9,770
Deposits BE 16,627 18,025
Construction cost payables FEAT TA2R AN K 2,148 2,298
Other tax payables H b ER TR 73 243
Advance from leasees T EFKIE 395 135
Others Hi 5,934 6,953
Total A&t 64,911 85,702
Denominated in: B :
- RMB - AE% 62,082 83,206
- HK$ - BT 2,829 2,496
64,911 85,702
The carrying amounts of accruals and other JEETE A R E AN RIER AR
payables approximate their fair values. HEZOEARE -
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26

216

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER
PAYABLES (Continued)

Note:

On 17 December 2018, Institute of Digital Media Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited* (3RIKEME H BB R ORI B R A )
("IDMT Shenzhen”) and Foshan GDM, both indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into a cooperation
agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) with Foshan Xincai
and Brilliant Link International Limited (15 2 Bl (% & R 2 &)
("Brilliant Link™), both independent third parties.

Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, Foshan Xincai agreed
to contribute a property located in Foshan to Foshan GDM
as capital contribution in exchange for 10% equity interest in
Foshan GDM while Brilliant Link agreed to contribute cash in
the amount of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,480,000) to Foshan GDM in exchange for 5% equity
interest in Foshan GDM. The full amount of the advance
payment formed part of the cash consideration payable by
Brilliant Link under the Cooperation Agreement.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the legal title of
the Property was transferred to Foshan GDM at its fair value of
RMB19,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$23,000,000)
as at date of the transfer of legal title of the Property. The
corresponding amount formed a part of the consideration by
Foshan Xincai for the acquisition of 10% equity interest in
Foshan GDM which the transaction was completed during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (also see Note 25).

As at the date of this report, the transaction with Brilliant
Link are yet to be completed as the transfers of the 5%

equity interest in Foshan GDM to Brilliant Link has not been
completed.

* English entity name is for identification purpose only
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BRESRNR  EBtERARAEMERN
I (&)

Hits -

R2018F12 4178  IRKEISEEREMECR
D BRA R (DRIERBREIE |) K LIRBRES
HE(—EHAARQANBEZEWNBAR)HE
BILET REERBRERAR ([E%]) (Z&H
BENE=)FIAERE ([&ERZE]D -

RIBAEWZ - L0 B E M LR ERETS
HE ARG ILAYE - DUREUEILIRERE
ISIERE 10% IR A= R E A6 ILIRERES
HeEHEE4e AR 20,000,0007T (HERLY
24,480,000/ 7T ) + LAIRER#B 1L IR BRENAS L B8
5% JeiE - BNRNEBEREEREAERS
EARBESREN—FD -

HE2020F 12 A3V BILFEE » ZWENEE
FERCEBREMHIUIRKEIGEE R mE
VREFTERZEBBEY  ZWEZARES
AR 19,000,000t (48 & 7 #923,000,000 %
JC) o RS R A L5 B U BB 138 LU 3R BRI
IHE10% REMNBLRE  MEBIZIERE
;%?021 F12 A31 BIEFE TR (B2 HEME
25) o

RARE B E - BRI RIREIS R DR T

gﬁ%%%%ﬁ 5% [t - BEENRFINART
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PROVISION FOR RENTAL AND SETTLEMENT 27

PAYABLES

Accrued rental and settlement
payables and late payment
surcharge (Note)

e MR RE R

FERT & REERARBRE (HiT)

EAAEREERRE
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET BT
222,949 196,570

Note:

In prior years, the Group was involved in the investment
and operation of the Cultural Park. The Cultural Park was a
property project based on a framework agreement on 28 March
2007 (as supplemented on 3 April 2008) (the “Framework
Agreement”) entered into by ERIRIREIGAIZEEXARL
7] (“Guangdong GDC"), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and BFRIBEE A BRAHF (“Pearl River Film
Production”), a limited liability company established in the
Mainland China and a state-owned enterprise, to redevelop
the Cultural Park. Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, Pearl
River Film Production, as the landlord of the Cultural Park,
agreed to grant the property leasing right to Guangdong GDC,
in return for predetermined monthly rental payments (the
“Predetermined Rental”) from Guangdong GDC for a term up
to 31 December 2045. Guangdong GDC is responsible for the
design, financing, construction and operation of the Cultural
Park and the funding of the entire construction project. Upon
the expiration of the Framework Agreement, Guangdong GDC
has to return all properties to Pearl River Film Production. After
the redevelopment, the whole Cultural Park project will have
a commercial area, a cultural entertainment area and a film
production and development area, which was intended to be
held for investment purpose.

On 11 April 2016, Pearl River Film Production as the plaintiff
initiated legal proceedings against Guangdong GDC in respect
of alleged breach of the Framework Agreement governing the
lease and reconstruction of the Cultural Park (2016 litigation”).
On 11 October 2016, FBEREEMTHRRARZER (the
“Guangzhou Intermediate People’s Court”) declared that the
Framework Agreement was terminated as of 22 March 2016.
Accordingly, the Group had been providing for rental and
settlement payables based on the actual rental amounts it
received from the tenants as stipulated in the rental agreements
entered between the Group and these tenants, the amounts of
which were higher than the Predetermined Rental stipulated in
the Framework Agreement with Pearl River Film Production.

Mzt -

RBEFE  FAEEG2EMLEXRNERE
Mg e MrEXER—EWEEER - HiIRE
RRFEEENMBARERRHEBAEESE
ARAR(ERBRREE ) B IEYRAA
RAarl ([HERA D) (RPBEAMKINERE
FREINMEAEE)R200743 A28 HF M
SMACE ¥ B EER S EIEZE # % (742008 &
4R38/@7) ([MERKBRE]) MEL - RIFIEZSR
WiE o AR (FEAXLEXENEX)RE
BREMERER T ERIRIRENE - UAEERR
HEBWBELETHTARSRE (BT
& DIEADR  HREZE20459F 12 A31H
BRRNEBEEVEEEXRMET  BE -
BREEE ULRBEEZBEMNES - FIE
RipHEE%  BERBRHEGAGHEMER
EELERE c ReE® - BESMEEXEE
BEEE—EmER - —EAX R RE K —E
BEYRERERE - HESEREEN -

R2016F 48118 KEERERREMER
REEBER S RERMERERREEERMIE
B R E AR (20165772 1) » 42016
F1I0ANMH PREREBEMNTHHRARZER
(BN RARER]) BEERBZER 2016 F
3A22BM&IE At - NEBEREHEAFFIL
WHEEHEmMARAE RN ERRSTREN
HEeRBEER  ZERERREREREFE]L
WIERBZARENTEEHES
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218

PROVISION FOR RENTAL AND SETTLEMENT
PAYABLES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

In November 2018, Pearl River Film Production issued a formal
demand letter which demanded Guangdong GDC to return the
entire Cultural Park. On 1 December 2018, upon the lapse of
the re-trial appeal period of 2016 litigation, the Group decided to
derecognise the investment property and cease recognition of
all revenue in relation to the operation of the Cultural Park. The
Cultural Park operation was classified as discontinued operation
since 1 December 2018.

In April 2019, Pearl River Film Production initiated three legal
proceedings against Guangdong GDC (1) to require Guangdong
GDC to return the entire Cultural Park (2) to claim for property
occupation fee of the Cultural Park and related interests and (3)
to claim for property occupation fee of certain parking spaces
and related interests.

(1) Return of the Cultural Park

With respect to the return of the Cultural Park, a final
judgement under civil case dated 8 February 2021 from
Guangzhou Intermediate People's Court was received
by the Group pursuant to which Guangdong GDC shall
return the Cultural Park to Pearl River Film Production.
On 27 April 2021, Guangdong GDC returned the Cultural
Park to Pearl River Film Production and ceased to
receive rentals from tenants since then.

(2) Property occupation fee of the Cultural Park

A civil judgement (“Civil Judgement 1"”) dated
30 December 2019 from the Guangzhou Intermediate
People’'s Court was received by the Group pursuant to
which Guangdong GDC shall pay property occupation
fee and related interest for the period from 23 March
2016 to 11 September 2019 of the Cultural Park
determined on the basis that the property occupation
fee shall be calculated based on the Predetermined
Rental as stipulated in the Framework Agreement.
Subsequently, Guangdong GDC and Pearl River Film
Production both filed appeals with the Guangzhou
Intermediate People’s Court on 6 January 2020 and 14
January 2020, respectively on various matters about the
Civil Judgement 1.

On 16 April 2021, a civil judgement (“Civil Judgement
2") from the FEIEREL M ARZET (the “Guangdong
Higher People’'s Court”) dated 30 March 2021 was
received by Guangdong GDC that the judgement from
the Guangzhou Intermediate People's Court was set
aside and the case shall be returned to the Guangzhou
Intermediate People’s Court for re-trial. Up to date of
this report, no further court’'s judgement has been
received by the Group.
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PROVISION FOR RENTAL AND SETTLEMENT
PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(3) Parking space

With respect to the parking space that was governed by
a separate agreement dated 1 August 2012, occupation
fee of RMB4.6 million had been paid to Pearl River Film
Production as settlement and a court order from /& Zk[&
ANEJEBT (the “People's Court of Haizhu District”) was
received on 19 November 2020, notifying Guangdong
GDC the closure of this civil case. On 8 March 2021,
Pearl River Film Production has initiated a re-trial to the
Guangdong Higher People’'s Court. Up to date of this
report, no further court's judgement has been received
by the Group.

Management engaged an independent external lawyer to assist
in assessing the magnitude and likelihood of occurrence for the
possible outcomes of the litigation as of 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020 based on the relevant information obtainable
at the relevant stage of the litigation, including court decisions
and related legal correspondence. Management also engaged
an independent external valuer to assist in assessing the fair
value of the economic benefits that could be derived from the
Cultural Park during the periods in dispute.

Based on the magnitude and likelihood of occurrence for the
possible outcomes of the current litigation status as advised by
the legal advisors, and with reference to the valuation results
from the external valuer, management determined that provision
for rental and settlement payables in relation to the litigation
amounting to HK$222.9 million and HK$196.6 million is required
as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, respectively
based on their best estimate.

As at 31 December 2021, restricted bank deposits of
approximately HK$46,603,000 (2020: HK$36,462,000) were
held at one bank account (2020: one) according to a court order
granted to preserve bank account for litigation claims relating to
the Cultural Park.

e MR RE R

ENEEREERBE(E)

st - (48)
(3) X

m—1 BH A2012F8 818 8B L
BEMEENEEMLMS  FRBEAR
MAEBLE XN TFHRERAEAL
& ORRQFEIR2020FE 1N A19BEES
e ARZERAES - B EMERER
RETS R BERMER - R2021F3 A
8H kAL CRERSMARER
REBE HEAHKEAY  A£ET
M — B E AR HR o

ERERE—ZB Y MINIERM - RIBEFRA
EREPE R A BB BER (BIEARARE &
HEARER) BB EEZ2021F 12 A 31
HX%2020%F 12 A31 HEF AR REE LR RARE
ERATEEE - EREINZIEE MNP L ERD
B B AT A S BRI AT AR UL E E B
BEFZOANME -

R EBEMAT S AN E R AR BEE R
BAEMIZE R ATAE - WREI L EMART
HER BEEET R2021F12A31H
X 202012 318 - EfnEENEMES
MEE S ENREEB DR A229E888 TR
196.6 BEBT - NIBEEREMERSES -

M20219F12 8318 - & B % bt gt 1k &
EYEFLREBRRE2BTEFNES &
[ % 58 17 17 7% #946,603,00078 7T (2020 4F :
36,462,000/ 7T ) 17 i — B R 77 B8R = (2020
F—f@) -

Annual Report 2021 5% 219



Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited R R E B A Z =R ER 2 5

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TSRS MR

28

220

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 28 REFBBIAERE
The net movement on the deferred income tax BEFTSIEIB 2 FEBUT -
account is as follows:
Fair value
change of
investment
property Others Total
REMEZ
ARELH Hith CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 7202051818 14,799 4,668 19,467
Charged/(credited) to RiEa2ERAREIR/(GTA)
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 466 (243) 223
Exchange realignment fE A% 993 291 1,284
At 31 December 2020 and 1 R2020F12 4318 R
January 2021 20211418 16,258 4,716 20,974
Charged to consolidated RERE 2ERARK NG (HF12)
statement of comprehensive
income (Note 12) 1,510 1,302 2,812
Exchange realignment B 5 5% 517 163 680
At 31 December 2021 R2021512 4318 18,285 6,181 24,466

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$11,976,000
(2020:HK$10,557,000) have not been recognised
for the withholding tax and other taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding tax total HK$239,536,000 at 31 December
2021 (2020: HK$211,102,000). The directors of the
Group are of the view that such amounts are not
intended to be distributed in the foreseeable future to
the Group companies outside of Mainland China.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
loss carry-forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profits is probable.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of HK$4,370,000 (2020:
HK$3,617000) in respect of losses amounting to
HK$27069,000 (2020: HK$26,209,000) that can be
carried forward against future taxable income.
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the above tax losses due to unpredictability of

future profit streams.

The expiry date for the unused tax losses is as

28

e MR RE R

EEFTSHERE (E)

AR AR IRAE AR B9 A R TR - E R
A SRR R ERIAEE

REBHBEEBHEWT

follows:
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 year 1F A - 3,374
Between 1 and 2 years 15224 - -
Between 2 and 3 years 2E3F 735 -
Between 3 and 4 years 3FE4F 6,518 684
Between 4 and 5 years 4AZEBHF 4,044 6,379
Without expiry date EEIHHE 15,772 15,772
27,069 26,209
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 29

The following is an analysis of financial instruments

by category:

EMIAZSE
AT RZBANE BT AN

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets SHMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost (RSS2 2 2RV EE
—Trade receivables (Note 21) - EWE SR (K2t 21) 9,578 10,178
— Other receivables and deposits — Hfth E R IE R iE S
(excluding non-financial assets) e EERRIN (Bt 21)
(Note 21) 6,012 4,759
- Restricted bank deposits - BRHBRITER(KaE22)
(Note 22) 46,603 36,462
- Cash and cash equivalents -BekBeSED (Hit22)
(Note 22) 318,845 306,850
381,038 358,249
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial liabilities at amortised BHEXNATECEREE
cost
- Trade payables (Note 26) - B E SRR (Kt 26) - 108
— Other payables (excluding non-  — EfthfE{I50IE (FE2 @ B EEERIN)
financial liabilities) 28,607 31,500
Lease liabilities (Note 17) HEaEHF17) 1,182 497
29,789 32,105
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30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 30

(a)

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to
cash generated from operations

e MR RE R

RERBzBE

(a)

BRATSHADE R EREEMENER
TR

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HiaE FET FET
Profit before income tax B8 A TN&IE 2 B FrSH AT
from A
- Continuing operations ~ — FEEEK 22,331 10,496
- Discontinued operation - EAXIEEEZER (16,321) (1,033)
Profit before income tax  BRFTEFLETZ & Fl 6,010 9,463
Adjustments for: LA TIEB ER AR
— Depreciation of - - BEREE
property, plant and T E
equipment 16 1,310 2,589
- Depreciation of right-of- — {FREEEFTE
use assets 8 945 1,882
— Provision for impairment — $@EEREWEE
of financial assets and BB
contract assets 242 586
— Fair value gain on - BEYE L A EWE
investment property 18 (6,038) (1,867)
— Provision for/(Reversal - EfTEE MEE R
of provision for) B (B o)
accrued rental and
settlement payables 15 7,963 (7662)
— Government grants - HYE - WEMEE
related to property, H8RE 2 BUT B
plant and equipment 6 (558) (824)
- Interest income - YA (8,225) (5,726)
- Finance cost on lease - fAEBENFEK A
liabilities 11 14 65
- Amount due from an - FEY—EEs & A R FRIE
associate (242) -
- Gains on disposal of - LEYE - WENEE
property, plant and olEy
equipment 30(b) (93) (30)
— Provision for impairment — £ &0 B 7 REEE
of productions work
in progress 20 - 691
— Amortisation of movies - EF R EIRENE RER
and television
programmes rights 20 10,622 6,580
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e RS

30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 30 KR&EmFEBE2HL(£E)

(Continued)
(a)  Reconciliation of profit before income tax to (a) PBRATISFHADGFIERLE TSR
cash generated from operations (Continued) ESHNHIR (&)
2021 2020
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
Operating profit before LEESEEF 2L E R A
changes in working capital 11,950 5,747
Changes in working capital: &iE& ¢ 7 &8) :
Restricted bank deposits ERHRIT1ER (8,905) 581
Trade receivables TEWWE Z R 899 (2,378)
Deposits, prepayments e BEZE
and other receivables H b s kI8 (1.419) (3,307)
Trade payables JERTE 5 BR (108) 62
Accruals and other FERT & B R H Ab FEAT K18
payables (2,955) (2,727)
Provision for rental and FE & R 4 B RS
settlement payables 12,130 22,100
Contract liabilities adaE (2,718) 4,098
Contract assets SHEE 543 5,088
Cash generated from REMBZRE
operations 9,417 29,264
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, (b) HEHEBRESREXRD HEY

proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment comprise:

¥ BEMREBZHM

/8 =h

SREE

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Net book amount (Note 16) BREFE (KL 16) 22 45
Gains on disposal of property, HEWE - HEMBZEOUES

plant and equipment 93 30

Proceeds from disposal of HEME - HE M
property, plant and equipment R &IPS IE 115 75
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 30
(Continued)

(c)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c)

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are liabilities for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from

e MR RE R

RERBzRE(E)

ARETHELENEGENHEK

TRAMAEEAME TS EE
WEENEH (BRES NIRRT
28) - IRELDEENAER
Eﬁi/m;jﬂixfﬁimiﬁ/\\$w
EiReREeRmEBRFT DB IER
ﬁ/ﬁ@ﬁﬁi/mimg\fﬁ °

financing activities.

Lease liabilities

HEAE
HK$000
FET
At 1 January 2020 720201818 2,117
Cash flow from operating activities KEEBRENE
- Interest paid - BEfAIE (65)
Cash flow from financing activities BMEEBRERE
— Principal elements on lease liabilities -MHEERZEREH S (1,694)
Acquisition — leases WhiE - HE 77
Disposal — leases hE - HE (3)
Non-cash movement JEIR S B 65
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 8202012831 K
20211818 497
Cash flow from operating activities KEEEIR GRS
- Interest paid - EFIE (14)
Cash flow from financing activities REEEIRCRE
— Principal elements on lease liabilities -HEBEZRRED (612)
Acquisition — leases Wig - HE 1,297
Non-cash movement R E 14
At 31 December 2021 M2021%12HA31H 1,182
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30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 30

(Continued)

(c)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (Continued)

The non-cash movements represent the related
finance cost of HK$14,000 (2020: HK$65,000)

(Note 11) arising from the lease liabilities.

RERBzRE(E)

(c) HERMEIBHELNEENEHIR
(%)
R EFIEREEREmME
HHERERVE KA 14,0008 7T
(2020 4F : 65,0007 7T)

(M=) ©
31 COMMITMENTS 31 TRIE
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor REHERIE- REBEALHEA
The investment property is leased to tenants under KREMERBLELHERTHER, - HE
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. BIEAXZAT o
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of REWMFEHENREEWHEE R
investment property are as follows: DK
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 year 1F A 40,792 37887
Between 1 and 2 vyears 1824 30,137 18,010
Between 2 and 3 years 2FE3F 19,391 13,783
Between 3 and 4 years 3FE4L4F 12,043 12,198
Between 4 and 5 years 4B B5F 11,008 10,170
Over b years S5EE 11,264 17472
124,635 109,520
32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32 Z|AREME
As detailed in Note 27 the Group is subject to EEZZZDWE\EN@/TL AEETFARER
uncertainty regarding the final outcome of the RERERFTEFETHARR - £E&
litigation claim. Having considered the various %Mgﬁ"\ﬁkﬁgﬁﬁxﬁ—f%%%fé =it

possible outcomes of the current litigation status,
management considered a provision for rental and
settlement payables amounting to HK$222,949,000
as at 31 December 2021 to be sufficient and not

excessive.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’'s substantial shareholder with
significant influence is Shougang Holding (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Shougang HK"), which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a
state-owned enterprise under the direct supervision
of the Beijing State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administrative Commission.

The following transactions were carried out with
related party:

(a) Consultancy fee

Consultancy fee charged by HiEBWHAERE

Shougang HK

33

e MR RE R

BBALTRS

ARBIFEERZENNIZRRAE
Mz (BR)BRAR(TEWEE])
HABaMEEERAR (—HAltREE
BEEEEHEZBEEEREENEAL
XN EMBAR -

HEEB T ETTATRS

(a) EEREE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTAET TATT
2,880 2,880

Consultancy fee charges are negotiated with
Shougang HK with terms mutually agreed.

(b) Key management compensation

Key management personal includes directors
(executive, non-executive and external
directors) and the senior management of the
Group. The compensation paid or payable to

BHEEDEGHEEREABE
EVRBETTRER o

(b) EEEEASHM

TEERAEBBREER(MTE
£ FRTEZERINES) KA
SESREBEAE  REERYK
ENENEEEEABFHHW

key management for employees services is TRIR
shown below.
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Salaries and other short-term %% K& H b4 Hi{E 8187
employee benefits 4,598 5,871
Post-employment benefit RIRAET 144 163
4,742 6,034
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(c)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33 BEEALIXRR(E)
Year end balances (c) HFR&ERE
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amount due from an associate, fEUR— REIEEE AR FTE - LA
at cost 1,259 984
Less: Provision for impairment & : FEUL— L A T 0E 2
of amount due from an BB
associate (1,259) (984)
Exchange difference M H AR - -
The receivable from related party is unsecured, JFEE 52 28 B RIBAEER R
interest-free and receivable on demand. The B RARK %iﬂlﬁz AR BR A
carrying values of the balance approximates its BREEARE -

(d)

fair value.

For the year ended 31 December 2021,
provision for impairment of amount due from an
associate of HK$242,000 (2020: HK$ Nil) was
recognised and included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within
“provision for impairment of financial assets
and contract assets”

Transaction with other PRC government-
related entities

The Group has entered into various banking
transactions, including deposits placements and
corresponding interest income, with certain
bank and financial institutions and use of public
utilities which are state-controlled entities in
its ordinary course of business. In view of the
nature of those transactions, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that separate
disclosure would not be meaningful.
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33 BBMALIXRF(E)
(e)  Principal subsidiaries (e) EEMBLF
The following is a list of the principal FTEWBRARFIERDOT :
subsidiaries:

Issued and fully

paid share
Place of incorporation or capital/register
establishment and kind of ~ Principal activities and and paid-up  Proportion of ownership interest
Name of subsidiary legal entity place of operation capital held by the Company
BEAR
AL HERE/
WEARER RIBEREBER IEXBAEELS BT LS ARRGEZERRLA
2021 2020
Direct subsidiary
EENEAR
GDC Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI"),  Investment holding in US$5,214,181 100% 100%
limited liahility company Hong Kong
ABRNEE(2BRRE  REERERR 5,214,181 %7
&1) BRELAT
Indirect subsidiaries
BENEAR
GDC Asset Management BVI, limited liability company ~ Animation investment in US$1 100% 100%
Limited Hong Kong
ABRAES RREMLA  REEREYE 1%
GDC China Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding in HK$2 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
FRUBEREERAT Bk AREMERA REBRELR 28T
GDC International Limited ~ Samoa, limited liability company Provision of CG animation US$1 100% 100%
creation and production
services in Hong Kong
FRUBERERAT REGHE  ERELAT REBRUEREGHSAER 1%
e
GDC Management Services  Hong Kong, limited liability Provision of administration and HK$2 100% 100%
Limited company management service in
Hong Kong
FRUBERREERAT  BE AREMLA REBRETHRERRE 28T
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33

230

Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELARZR

Indirect subsidiaries
(continued)

BENEARE)

GDC Cultural Parks Limited

RREBaEX
BRAT

GDC International Limited

[LEXE

FROBERERAA

FRABREHRIE (R

BRAT

FROBREABIE (RI)

BRAT

Annual Report 2021 53R

Place of incorporation or

establishment and kind of

legal entity

LA
RIBHREHER

Hong Kong, limited liability

company

&% ARAMLAT

Hong Kong, limited liability

company

&% BRRELT

Mainland China, limited liability

company*

hEM  BRAEAT

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33

BBALRS (&)

(e) EEMBLRAE(E)

Issued and fully

paid share

capital/register

Principal activities and and paid-up

place of operation capital

BEAR

fRBx/

IERBAEELE BT LS

Investment holding in HK$1

Hong Kong

REBRELR 187

Provision of CG animation HK$1
creation and production
services in Hong Kong

REARIERBELISHIER 187

el
Provision of CG and animation ~ US§36,633,896

creation and production

services, development of
multimedia software and

hardware, provision of

related technical consultancy

services and property
holding in the Mainland
China

PR RHERERR @%
EIfEREERS - HESRE
QR RERI RIRHEER

BRRHRERNE

36,633,896 % 70

=5 e

held by the Company

ALARERZERRLH
2021

100%

100%

100%

Proportion of ownership interest

2020

100%

100%

100%
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33

Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELARZR

Indirect subsidiaries
(continued)
BENELRE)
MR R R
ERAH
MRS EE R
ERAH
MITELERREE

ISR

RMITALERRE
g

RRBHAENEES
ABAF

EREREELIZER
ARAH

ENRREZEEEE
ARAH

ENRREZEEEE
ARAH

L RRERRABE R

BRAT

FRRERREBE R

BRAT

Place of incorporation or
establishment and kind of
legal entity

LA
RIBHREHER

Mainland China, limited liability
company

hEM  BRAEAT

Mainland China, private non-
enterprise institution

TR RRFLREN

Mainland China, limited liability
company

RER BREEAF

Mainland China, limited liability
company

PERY BREEAF

Mainland China, limited liability
company

hER  BRAEAT

BBALRS (&)
(e) FEMBLR ()

Principal activities and
place of operation

TERBANEELY

Animation Investment in the
Mainland China
REENEEEE

Provision of CG and animation
training in the Mainland
China

RPERREEREERSE
BEE

Provision of culture,
entertainment and related
commercial property
investment in the Mainland
China

RPERMRE U RERE
BRENEEERE

Provision of building
management service in the
Mainland China

RPERRENEERRE

Provision of graphic animation
creation in the Mainland
China

RPERREEE S E

Issued and fully
paid share
capital/register
and paid-up
capital

BEAR
fRBx/
BT LS

RMB3,000,000

N
3,000,0007C
RMB200,000

ARE
200,0007C
RMB10,000,000

N
10,000,0007
RMB1,000,000

N
1,000,007
RMB15,000,000

AEE
15,000,000

Proportion of ownership interest

held by the Company

ALARERZERRLH
2021

100%

100%

68%

68%

100%
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2020

100%

100%

68%

68%

100%
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e RS

33

(e)

Name of subsidiary
[if: PNEE2:

RIMRREBLIER R
ARAH

RIMRREELIERER

BRAH
MmN EERARAA

RImENEERARAA

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation or
establishment and kind of
legal entity

HRALS
AUAEREEER

Mainland China, limited liability
company
MER  BRELLF

Mainland China, limited liability
company

hERE BREAEAT

33 BEBMALTXZHEE)
(e) EEMELRE)

Principal activities and
place of operation

TERENEELE

Provision of graphic animation
creation in the Mainland
China

el e EiE

Provision of building
management service in the
Mainland China

R Bl E B R

B RIREE R Mainland China, limited liability ~ Provision of CG and animation
ERAF company creation and production
services in the Mainland
China
BIRREBRERR hERY  BREFAF ReARsREEREGH 2
ERAF {ERRUERT
Eﬁigﬁ;ﬁ(ﬁ%ﬂ&(&%ﬂ)ﬁ % Mainland China, limited liability ~ Provision of culture, sport,
NG company* and related property
development and operation
in the Mainland Ch'\na
%%Hﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ%@ﬁm hERY  BREEAA w¢|m BRI BA R
27 BNFEREE
# Registered as foreign investment enterprise in

Mainland China

in Mainland China

Registered as wholly -owned foreign enterprises

afRELRA

RMB2,000,000

RMB1,000,000

RMB10,000,000

RMB50,000,000

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affect the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Issued and fully

paid share

capital/register

and paid-up
capital
BRAR
HERE/

Proportion of ownership interest
held by the Company

KRARFZERRLA
2021 2020

100% 100%

AEE
2,000,0007C

100% 100%

N
1,000,000

90% 100%

N

10,000,000

100% -

ARE

50,000,0007¢

# R E AR A ERE D
ES

* NP B A EMRINEEE S
ES

FREFINEEFRRUAERZ
%ﬁﬁééﬁig%%zwg
Ao %%uuﬁrﬁﬁ”ﬁﬁﬁmtﬁ
HIETREBANIIE

ZEMBRBNANEREFARE
(TR T B 1T (AR 55
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RE R

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 34 ZAATTBRIBRNEEESS

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
Note HK$000 HK$'000
Bz FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KM Erelze® - -
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and 124 ~ F8 {5k 5 H i fE g 208
other receivables 406 401
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 2,923 4,564
3,329 4,955
Total assets EEHE 3,329 4,955
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to AABEEABEER
owners of the Company
Share capital A&7 15,083 15,100
Reserves i (a) 290,043 290,218
Accumulated losses ZETEE (a) (302,574) (301,559)
Total equity ERBE 2552 3,759
LIABILITY =R
Current liability REBEE
Accruals and other payables  fE&TE K E b fE N 5008 777 1,196
Total liability EEBEE ____________________________7_7__7 ____________ '1,19_6
Total equity and liabilities #EXMEEELE 3,329 4,955
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35

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 34 AN BERRBERNFEERE (Z
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Note(a) Reserves and accumulated losses movements of izt (a) RARZREERRTBEES
the Company
Share Contributed Treasury
premium surplus Accumulated share
reserve reserve losses reserve Total
RIVEERE HABHRE BB ERRGRE a5t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2020  #2020F181H 75,799 215,102 (301,494) (13) (10,606)
Loss for the year FEER - - (65) - (65)
Repurchase of BERFRAEE
treasury shares - - - (747) (747)
Cancellation of EMRG E8H
treasury shares (683) - - 760 77
At 31 December M2020512A31B R
2020 and 1 2021F181H
January 2021 75,116 215,102 (301,559) - (11,341)
Loss for the year FEEER - - (1,015) - (1,015)
Repurchase of BERRIAEE
treasury shares - - - (192) (192)
Cancellation of BT
treasury shares (175) - - 192 17
At 31 December R2021E12A31H
2021 74,941 215,102 (302,574 - (12,531)
EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING 35 $R&EHIAR4ECHIF
PERIOD
After another wave of outbreak of Coronavirus M2022 F¥)IEE S — K 2019 MR =
Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2022, B ([COVID-19/% % 1) 12 - B {E =

a series of precautionary and control measures have
been and continued to be implemented across the
region. The Group will pay close attention to the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate
its impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group. As at the date on which this
set of financial statements were authorised for issue,
the Group was not aware of any material adverse
effects on the financial statements as a result of the
COVID-19 outbreak.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHERE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

mE¥EE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MBLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(&3)
Continuing operations FESEXK
Revenue Wz 80,762 107642 96,771 78,635 84,689
(Loss)/profit from operations w2 (E18),/&h (40,882) 21,004 24,283 10,561 22,345
Finance cost BEKK - - (135) (65) (14)
Share of loss of an associate [E—REe AR ER (23) - - - -
(Loss)/profit before income tax B AERA (ER) /5 A (40,905) 21,004 24,148 10,496 22,331
Income tax expense EHRX (535) (11,320) (3,460) (2,389) (6,368)
(Loss)/profit for the year from REBELCEER L
continuing operations EE (1) 85h (41,440) 9,684 20,688 8,107 15,963
Discontinued operations BRIEREXES
Profit/(loss) for the year from KECRIEEEB 2 EER
discontinued operations F,/ (E#) 17425 (456,221 (16,258) (1,035) (15,140)
(Loss)/profit for the year EE (BR) 67 (24,015)  (446,537) 4,430 7,072 823
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HEEERAERE
At 31 December
W12831H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FE
Total assets EELS 1,030,888 534,282 573,561 650,302 690,083
Total liabilities BfEEH (155,133) (223,447) (264,830) (317202) (326,268)
Net assets BEFE 875,755 310,835 308,731 333,100 363,815
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY

REVMFRE

Details of the Group’s investment property at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

5

ATRARBERARAIEEZ T 2REMEF

Attributable

interest of

Location Existing use Lease term the Group
rEE

1th 2 RERAR HEH LR
No. 9, Gaoxin Central Avenue 3rd
Nanshan District, Shenzhen
the People's Republic of China Commercial Medium 100%
REARKEMEDFYIMEIUESHH=EI5R GES FHj
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